

# New York Chamber of Commerce and Industry records 6621724

This finding aid was produced using ArchivesSpace on January 13, 2025. English

Describing Archives: A Content Standard

Rare Book and Manuscript Library

Butler Library, 6th Floor Columbia University, Mail Code 1127 535 W. 114th St. New York, NY 10027 Business Number: (212) 854-5153

Fax Number: (212) 854-5153
Fax Number: (212) 854-1365
rbml@libraries.cul.columbia.edu

URL: http://www.columbia.edu/cu/lweb/indiv/rbml/index.html

# **Table of Contents**

Summary Information	. 3
Biographical / Historical	3
Summary	8
Arrangement	8
Administrative Information	8
Related Materials	10
Controlled Access Headings	10
Collection Inventory	12
Series I: Administration	12
Series II: Annual Reports	25
Series III: Bulletins	28
Series IV: Commerce and Industry Association	30
Subseries IV.1: Administration	30
Subseries IV.2: Bulletins	31
Subseries IV.3: Committees	35
Subseries IV.4: Correspondence	41
Subseries IV.5: Meeting Minutes	45
Subseries IV.6: Printed Materials	52
Series V: Committee on Arbitration	53
Subseries V.1: Arbitration Cases	53
Subseries V.2: Case Correspondence	72
Subseries V.3: Chairman's Files	92
Series VI: Committees	99
Subseries VI.1: Administrative Committees	99
Subseries VI.2: General Committees	101
Series VII: Correspondence	114
Subseries VII.1: Administration	114
Subseries VII.2: Gwynne, Charles T.	118
Subseries VII.3: Subject Files	127
Series VIII: Member Meeting Minutes	135
Series IX: Printed Materials	137
Series X: Photographs	139

# **Summary Information**

**Repository:** Rare Book and Manuscript Library

**Creator:** New York Chamber of Commerce and Industry

**Title:** New York Chamber of Commerce and Industry records

**ID:** 6621724

**ID:** MS#1440

**Date [inclusive]:** 1768-1984

**Date [bulk]:** 1860-1973

**Physical** 185 linear feet 337 document boxes, 81 oversize bound

**Description:** volumes, 50 bound publications, 17 flat boxes

Language of the

**Material:** 

English.

**Abstract:** These records document the history of the New York Chamber

of Commerce and Industry, beginning with its establishment in 1768. Tracking the wax and wane of the organization's influence over the next two centuries, the collection provides a first hand account of the Chamber's many contributions to New York City and State business and development. These records exist in a wide variety of formats, such as bulletins,

correspondence, minute books, and printed materials.

#### **Preferred Citation**

Identification of specific item; Date (if known); New York City Chamber of Commerce and Industry records, 1768-1984; Box and Folder; Rare Book and Manuscript Library, Columbia University Library.

# **Biographical / Historical**

The New York Chamber of Commerce and Industry, founded in 1768 by twenty New York City merchants, was one of the first commercial organizations of its kind in the country. Formed around the premise of serving the needs of the local business community, the Chamber eventually became one of the industry's strongest advocates. Over the years, its activities

<sup>^</sup> Return to Table of Contents

attracted the participation of a number of New York's most renowned business leaders, including former New York City Mayor and the Chamber's first president, John Cruger, Samuel F.B. Morse, John Jacob Astor, Peter Cooper, J. Pierpont Morgan, and multiple members of the Vanderbilt, Rockefeller, and Murray families; notable figures such as Thomas Edison, Andrew Mellon, and Herbert Hoover were elected to honorary membership. The Chamber aimed to unify the voice of commercial industry in New York, allowing a respected forum for dialogue among its members which would often result in an amalgamated effort towards action and resolution. The prominence and power of its members garnered distinction for the organization, placing the Chamber in a unique position to command the attention of government bodies both locally and nationally. Collectively, the organization was able to agitate for legislation that would provide a favorable climate for the growth of business in New York City and State, in turn encouraging the development of a complex urban environment in which commercial industry could thrive.

^ Return to Table of Contents

# **Biographical / Historical**

The Chamber's founding members first met on April 5, 1768 at Bolton and Sigel's Tavern, now known as Fraunces Tavern, to form a mercantile union that would defend and promote their collective interests. Organized under the name the New York Chamber of Commerce, the society moved its home base to the Royal Exchange in 1770, and was granted a royal charter from King George III incorporating it as "the Corporation of the Chamber of Commerce in the City of New York in America."

^ Return to Table of Contents

# Biographical / Historical

At the outbreak of the American Revolutionary War, the membership was divided into Loyalist and Patriot factions. Patriot members, including John Cruger, the first President of the Chamber, left New York City after the British invasion of 1776 while their Loyalist counterparts continued to hold meetings and transact business in the City. After the British evacuation in 1783, the Chamber's returning Patriot members quickly established control over the organization and relocated to the Merchants' Coffee House building. The Chamber was issued a new charter in 1784 reincorporating it as "the Corporation of the Chamber of Commerce of the State of New York." In 1793, the Chamber again relocated; this time to the Tontine Association across the street from the Merchants' Coffee House. Member participation began dropping steadily after the turn of the century, and by 1806 meetings were suspended due to lack of attendance.

^ Return to Table of Contents

# **Biographical / Historical**

In 1817, Chamber President Cornelius Ray called for resumption of the organization's business. New officers were elected and the membership base was increased by thirty-six during the first meeting. This marked the beginning of a new era for the organization. As of 1827, the Chamber had claimed the Merchants Exchange Building as its headquarters; however, the Great Fire of New York in 1835 forced members to relocate once more, this time to the Merchants Bank on Wall Street. Though many of the Chamber's prized historical objects and documents were saved from the fire, including member portraits, minute books, and the Chamber's official seal, the original charter is believed to have perished.

^ Return to Table of Contents

# **Biographical / Historical**

By 1849, membership had surpassed the two hundred mark, and the administration became increasingly consumed by management concerns. Elected officers authorized the hiring of an official clerk and librarian to assist the elected Secretary in overseeing day-to-day functions. The administrative staff was vital to the operation of the Chamber, answering outside inquiries on the organization's work and fielding appeals for guidance and counsel from commercial organizations across the country, all the while facilitating dialogue among the Chamber's constituency and countless committees. The outreach efforts of the administration, in addition to the prestigious projects the organization was involved in, quickly established the Chamber as a model for other chambers of commerce, both domestically and abroad.

^ Return to Table of Contents

# **Biographical / Historical**

As its membership increased in size and prestige during the 1800s, the Chamber's power grew accordingly and the organization proved to be instrumental in the realization of several initiatives integral to the development of both New York City and State. In the interest of serving regional commerce, the Chamber heavily promoted the construction of the Erie Canal in the early 1800s and the establishment of the first transatlantic cable in 1858. The Chamber became progressively more involved in trade and commercial concerns at the national and

international levels, and began releasing annual reports in the mid-1800s which outlined the condition of mercantile affairs and noted important changes relative to trade in the national business market. Perhaps one of its most recognized contributions to the business industry was its role in arbitrating commercial disputes among regional merchants. The Chamber's creation of a Court of Arbitration, a body recognized by the State to oversee commercial disputes, and its own Committee on Arbitration, whose records and purpose often overlap with the Court's, are both indications of the Chamber's commitment to settling mercantile disagreements and furthering its goal of providing merchants with an agreeable environment in which to conduct business.

^ Return to Table of Contents

# **Biographical** / **Historical**

The Chamber also lent its support to major public works within New York City--the expansion of the City's water and waste management system, construction of a rapid transit system, and quality commercial education for area businessmen were all projects championed by the Chamber. The defense and management of New York ports and harbors were also of concern; the eruption of the Civil War in the United States prompted the Chamber to gather funds and successfully petition both the Executive and Legislative branches of the United States, the New York State Legislature, and the New York City Council for an allocation of money for the defense of the New York Harbor. In addition to these large scale ventures, the organization was involved in numerous smaller projects over the years, including construction of a lighthouse in Martinique, overseeing the Nautical School of the Port of New York, and developing measures to protect the City's population during cholera outbreaks in the 1890s.

^ Return to Table of Contents

# **Biographical** / Historical

Many of these accomplishments can be attributed to the work of the Chamber's standing committees which began to appear in great numbers by the second half of the 19th century. Committees were an essential component of the organization; they allowed members to focus on a broad range of issues relevant to commercial industry in the New York region and nationwide. Standing committees often concentrated on a general sector of commerce such as finance, conservation, public service, or taxation laws, while ad hoc special and subcommittees focused on these topics in finer detail. The proliferation of committees at various points in the Chamber's history can be directly linked to contemporary affairs; certainly, the occurrence of particular events throughout the 19th and 20th centuries, such as debates on

the National Budget, natural disasters, or urban entertainments, can often be traced by the existence of corresponding Chamber committees.

^ Return to Table of Contents

# Biographical / Historical

At the turn of the 20th century, the Chamber's administration grew again as it faced a progressively more complex business environment; the administration now included the elected positions of Executive Vice President, Assistant Secretary, and Assistant Treasurer. The result of the Chamber's growing influence and prosperity was the 1902 completion of construction of the Chamber of Commerce building at 65 Liberty Street in lower Manhattan. Illustrating the Chamber's importance at the national level, both President Theodore Roosevelt and former President Grover Cleveland spoke at the building's dedication. The top floor of the new building, the Grand Hall, was lined with the Chamber's collection of over 200 member portraits and it was here that most business was transacted, including regularly occurring member meetings. The Chamber's wealth and prestige continued to swell exponentially, and in honor of the Chamber's significant projects and influential membership, increasingly opulent annual banquets were held. Invitations were delivered by messenger and hand engraved by Tiffany and Company, whose founder was also a member.

^ Return to Table of Contents

# **Biographical / Historical**

Following this period of economic and civic prosperity leading up to the 1920s, the Chamber began a gentle descent, slowly losing members and influence. The Chamber began considering the possibility of merging with other New York City commercial organizations as early as the 1940s. An agreement was reached in 1973 between the Chamber and the Commerce and Industry Association, formerly the Merchants' Association, to merge the two parties into one organization: The New York Chamber of Commerce and Industry. However, this new incarnation of the Chamber did little to alleviate the organization's declining revenue and dwindling authority. In 1979 the Chamber left its headquarters at 65 Liberty Street and moved in with the New York City Partnership, an affiliate organization founded by Chamber member, David Rockefeller. In 2002 the two organizations formally merged to form the Partnership for New York City and the Chamber ceased to exist.

<sup>^</sup> Return to Table of Contents

## Summary

The archival records of the New York Chamber of Commerce and Industry provide a thorough history of the organization, rendering a vivid portrait of the Chamber by means of committee records, minute books, printed materials, photographs, reports, and a wealth of correspondence. Materials originate mostly from the 19th and 20th centuries, though there are some notable items from the 18th century such as the first volume of Chamber of Commerce meeting minutes that dates back to 1768. Subject matter in the collection primarily focuses on New York City and State commercial and urban development, though it often extends to national and global business concerns. This collection is particularly notable because of the presence of the records of the Commerce and Industry Association, formerly the Merchants' Association, a commercial institution whose focus and constituency were comparable to that of the Chamber. The Chamber of Commerce merged with the Commerce and Industry Association in 1973 and thereby acquired the Association's historical records. Series IV is devoted solely to the records of the Commerce and Industry Association while the remaining nine series are divided according to format or purpose.

^ Return to Table of Contents

# Arrangement

This collection is arranged in ten series.

^ Return to Table of Contents

## **Administrative Information**

#### **Publication Statement**

Rare Book and Manuscript Library

Butler Library, 6th Floor Columbia University, Mail Code 1127 535 W. 114th St. New York, NY 10027 Business Number: (212) 854-5153

Fax Number: (212) 854-1365 rbml@libraries.cul.columbia.edu

URL: http://www.columbia.edu/cu/lweb/indiv/rbml/index.html

## **Revision Description**

File created. xml document instance created by Carrie Hintz EAD was imported spring 2019 as part of the ArchivesSpace Phase II migration. 2009-03-25 2009-25-03 2019-05-20

#### **Restrictions on Access**

This collection is located off-site. You will need to request this material at least three business days in advance to use the collection in the Rare Book and Manuscript Library reading room.

#### **Restrictions on Access**

This collection has no restrictions.

## **Terms Governing Use and Reproduction**

Reproductions may be made for research purposes. Permission to publish material from the collection must be requested from the President of the New York City Partnership and Chamber of Commerce or his or her designated representative.

## **Immediate Source of Acquisition**

Source of acquisition--York City Partnership. Method of acquisition--Gift; Date of acquisition--2002 (material was physically transferred in 2004. Additional transfers were made in 2005 and 2006).

#### **Processing Information**

Papers processed Jillian Cuellar and Katie B. Henningsen 2008-2009.

## **Processing Information**

Finding aid written by Jillian Cuellar and Katie B. Henningsen February 2009.

## **Processing Information**

Collection is processed to folder level.

#### **Accruals**

Materials may have been added to the collection since this finding aid was prepared. Contact rbml@columbia.edu for more information.

^ Return to Table of Contents

## **Related Materials**

#### **Related Material**

New York Chamber of Commerce and Industry Publications Rare Book & Manuscript Library, Columbia University. <a href="http://www.columbia.edu/cu/libraries/inside/projects/findingaids/scans/pdfs/NYCCPublications.pdf">http://www.columbia.edu/cu/libraries/inside/projects/findingaids/scans/pdfs/NYCCPublications.pdf</a>

#### **Related Material**

New York Chamber of Commerce Building Architectural records 1901-1966, Avery Architectural and Fine Arts Library, Columbia University. <a href="http://www.columbia.edu/cu/lweb/archival/collections/ldpd">http://www.columbia.edu/cu/lweb/archival/collections/ldpd</a> 7084607/index.html

#### **Related Material**

The New York Chamber of Commerce Portrait Collection, New York State Museum

http://www.nysm.nysed.gov/research\_collections/collections/history/nycc/

#### Online exhibit

The Chamber of Commerce of New York. Columbia University Libraries.

^ Return to Table of Contents

# Controlled Access Headings

- Arbitration and award -- United States -- Cases
- Boards of trade
- City planning -- New York (State) -- New York
- City planning -- New York Metropolitan Area
- Commerce associations
- Industries -- New York (State) -- New York
- International commerce and arbitration
- International commercial arbitration
- Interstate commerce -- United States
- Merchants -- New York (State) -- New York -- History -- 18th century

- Transatlantic cables
- Transportation -- New York (State) -- New York
- Usury laws -- New York (State)
- Usury laws -- United States
- Great Britain -- Colonies -- America -- History -- 18th century
- New York Harbor (N.Y. and N.J.)
- New York (N.Y.)
- New York (N.Y.) -- Commerce -- History -- 18th century
- New York (N.Y.) -- Commerce -- History -- 19th century
- New York (N.Y.) -- Commerce -- History -- 20th century
- New York (N.Y.) -- History
- New York (State)
- New York (State) -- History
- United States -- Commerce -- Law and legislation
- Addresses
- Annual reports
- architectural drawings (visual works)
- Autograph albums
- Business records
- Bylaws (administrative records)
- Case files
- Clippings (Information Artifacts)
- Deeds
- Invitations
- Leases
- Membership lists
- Memorabilia
- Menus
- minutes (administrative records)
- Pamphlets
- Photographic prints
- Press releases
- Programs (documents)
- Reports
- Scrapbooks
- Slides (photographs)
- Visitors' books
- Bernheimer, Charles L (Charles Leopold), 1864-1944
- Bush, Irving T., 1869-1948
- Cohen, Julius Henry, 1873-1950
- Cruger, John, 1710-1791
- Rockefeller family
- Commerce and Industry Association of New York
- Court of Arbitration (New York Chamber of Commerce)
- Hundred Year Association of New York
- Merchants' Association of New York
- New York Chamber of Commerce

- New York Chamber of Commerce. Committee on Arbitration
- New York Chamber of Commerce and Industry
- New York City Partnership
- Partnership for New York City
- · Port of New York Authority
- Sailors' Snug Harbor (Institution)

# **Collection Inventory**

### Series I: Administration, 1866-1980

#### **Scope and Contents**

The first series of the collection offers materials that reflect the administrative tasks of the organization. Because the subject matter is broad in scope, the series has been divided into small sections with each section heading arranged alphabetically. Records related to financial matters, the construction of the Chamber of Commerce building in lower Manhattan, and public relations materials such as press releases and printed distribution materials can be found in this series. Also present are the records of the Board of Trustees of the Real Estate, a designated group of Chamber members who dealt primarily with the property holdings of the Chamber; various affiliate organizations who shared membership with the Chamber and often maintained offices in the Chamber of Commerce building; and of particular significance, documents that detail the Chamber's eventual merger with the Commerce and Industry Association in 1973. Items related to the events hosted by the Chamber are especially rich—records of the Chamber's annual banquets, New York public school essay contests, and various luncheons and receptions honoring prestigious figures can be found here. This series also offers a few items of realia, notably several medals created especially for the Chamber of Commerce to commemorate specific accomplishments.

Title/Description	Instances	
General		
100th Anniversary of the Inauguration of George WashingtonScrapbook,, 1938	box 392	folder 2
Action Program for the '70s, 1970	box 373	folder 1
Archival Project, 1979-1982	box 373	folder 2
Archival ProjectInventory, 1966-1984	box 373	folder 3
Commissioner of PilotsElection, 1866	box 1	folder 4
Famous Signatures, 1869-1883	box 373	folder 4
George Washington Statue, 1881-1883	box 271	folder 7
History of the New York Chamber of Commerce, 1960-1968	box 374	folder 6
Members in the Service, undated	box 271	folder 8
Membership		
Butler, Nicholas Murray, 1943	box 373	folder 5

Eisenhower, Dwight D., 1948	box 373	folder 6
Rockefeller, John D., Jr., 1950-1954	box 373	folder 7
Memorials in Manuscript		
1869-1875 (bound volume), 1869-1875	box 437	
1875-1880 (bound volume), 1875-1880	box 438	
1883-1906 (bound volume), 1883-1906	box 439	
Military Service Records, 1918 (4 Folders), 1918	box 373	folder 8 to 11
New York Chamber of Commerce and Industry Day, 1973	box 392	folder 1
New York Port Treaty, 1920-1921	box 373	folder 12
Other Chambers of Commerce, 1960s	box 374	folder 1
Papers Relating to Wrecks on the Bahama Banks		
1859 (bound volume), 1859	box 437	
1860 (bound volume), 1860	box 435	
Petition to Congress from Citizens of New York for Postal Reform, 1856 (bound volume), 1856	box 436	
Purchase of the Site for the United States Post Office, 1869 (scroll), 1869	box 376	
Stainback, ThomasA New Look at the Assets of New York City, undated	box 271	folder 9
Statistics on Vision, 1915-1920	box 374	folder 2
Subway Fares, 1947	box 374	folder 3
Unemployed Ex-Service Men in New York, 1922	box 374	folder 4
Visitors/Guest Book		
1860-1930 (bound volume), 1860-1930	box 429	
1904-1940 (bound volume), 1904-1940	box 430	
1939-1965 (bound volume), 1939-1965	box 431	
1965-1968 (bound volume), 1965-1968	box 432	
1966-1976 (bound volume), 1966-1976	box 443	
Affiliations		
Citizens Committee for New York City, IncStarting a Merchants Association,, undated	box 328	folder 1
Citizens Committee of One HundredTeachers' Salaries, 1920	box 317	folder 1
Free Canal Union of New York, 1880-1884	box 317	folder 2

1940s	box 223	folder 1
1950s	box 223	folder 2
1960s	box 223	folder 3
1970s	box 223	folder 4
1972-1979	box 223	folder 5
1978	box 315	folder 1
Annual Dinner		
1954	box 315	folder 2-3
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1955	box 315	folder 4-5
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1956	box 315	folder 6
1957	box 316	folder 1-2
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1959	box 316	folder 3
1960	box 316	folder 4
1961	box 316	folder 5
1964-1979	box 223	folder 6
1966-1979	box 316	folder 6
Correspondence, 1974-1980	box 223	folder 7
Financial Statements, 1960s	box 223	folder 8
Meeting Minutes, 1967-1977	box 223	folder 9
Meeting Minutes, 1978-1980	box 224	folder 1
Membership, 1976-1979	box 224	folder 2
Membership Correspondence, 1956-1962	box 316	folder 7
Membership Correspondence, 1956-1962	box 317	folder 3
National Port Week, 1979	box 224	folder 3
Official Documents, 1928-1949	box 224	folder 4
Press Releases and Newsletters, 1964-1978	box 224	folder 5
Scholarships and Awards, 1971-1979	box 224	folder 6

Minutes and Administrative Documents		
1964-1965	box 224	folder 7
1966-1968	box 224	folder 8
1968-1969	box 224	folder 9
New York-New Jersey Committee for a Self-Supporting Seaway		
1957-1958	box 317	folder 4
1957-1960	box 317	folder 5
1957-1961	box 317	folder 6
New York Port Promotion Association		
General		
1965-1967	box 236	folder 1
1967-1968	box 236	folder 2
1967-1970	box 236	folder 3-5
Physical Description: (3 Folders)		
Art Contest, 1962	box 236	folder 6
Gwynne, John, 1967-1968	box 236	folder 7
Minutes, 1960-1963	box 236	folder 8
Minutes, 1964-1967	box 236	folder 9
"What the Port of New York Means to You" Leaflet, 1967	box 236	folder 10
Trustees of Sailors' Snug Harbor, 1944-1946	box 374	folder 5
Board of the Trustees of the Real Estate		
General, 1907-1924	box 327	folder 1
Building		
1897-1913	box 327	folder 2
1901-1903	box 327	folder 3
1905-1922	box 327	folder 4
Building Fund Bonds		
Court Case, 1917-1918	box 327	folder 5
Inquiries, 1915-1921	box 327	folder 6
Surrender of Ownership, 1903-1929	box 327	folder 7
	box 327	folder 8

1941-1943	box 328	folder 2
1952-1971	box 328	folder 3
1954-1967	box 328	folder 4
1958	box 328	folder 5
Minutes		
1900-1936 (bound volume), 1900-1936	box 440	
1921-1922	box 328	folder 6
1936-1958 (bound volume), 1936-1958	box 441	
Building (65 Liberty Street)		
Appraisal of Furnishings, 1926	box 318	folder 1
Contractor Contract, 1901	box 318	folder 2
Landmarks Preservation Commission, 1966-1973	box 318	folder 3
National Historic Landmark Designation, undated	box 372	folder 3
Relocation Surveys, 1955-1980	box 318	folder 4
Renovations, 1947-1959	box 318	folder 5
Title and Deed to Property, 1899-1901	box 318	folder 6
Department of Transportation		
Administrative		
1964-1973	box 320	folder 1
1975	box 320	folder 2
1976	box 320	folder 3
Correspondence, 1975-1977	box 320	folder 4
"The Impact of Containerization" Workshop, 1966	box 320	folder 5
New York Transportation Council		
Agendas and Supporting Materials		
1968-1969	box 321	folder 1
1971-1975	box 321	folder 2
Board Reports		
1958-1967	box 321	folder 3
1968-1974	box 321	folder 4
Briefs and Petitions, 1973-1977	box 321	folder 5
Public Relations, 1964-1976	box 321	folder 6

Shippers' Conference of Greater New York		
Bulletins		
1969-1971	box 322	folder 1
1973	box 322	folder 2
1975-1976	box 322	folder 3
Petitions		
1967-1968	box 322	folder 4
1969-1974	box 322	folder 5
Events		
200th Anniversary		
General, 1967-1968	box 237	folder 1
Commemorative Medal, 1966-1968	box 237	folder 2
Commemorative Stamp, 1967-1968	box 237	folder 3
Correspondence, 1966-1969	box 237	folder 4
Dramatization, 1967-1968	box 237	folder 5
Event Program, 1968	box 237	folder 6
Film, 1966	box 237	folder 7
Invitation to President Lydon B. Johnson, 1967-1968	box 237	folder 8
Logo, 1968	box 237	folder 9
Nation's Business, 1967-1968	box 237	folder 10
The New York Times Supplement, 1967	box 237	folder 11
Planning, 1965-1968	box 237	folder 12
Press Kit, 1968	box 237	folder 13
Public Opening of the Great Hall, 1967-1968	box 237	folder 14
Public Relations, 1968	box 237	folder 15
Requests and Inquiries, 1968-1969	box 238	folder 1
Royal Charter Presentation, 1967	box 238	folder 2
Speeches, 1966-1968	box 238	folder 3
"The First Two Centuries " Historical Brochure, 1968	box 238	folder 4
Annual BanquetSubscribers/Guest Books		
1924 (bound volume), 1924	box 380	
1925 (bound volume), 1925	box 381	

Applications to Bring Guests, 1925 (bound volume), 1925	box 382	
1926 (bound volume), 1926	box 384	
1927 (bound volume), 1927	box 383	
1928 (bound volume), 1928	box 385	
1929 (bound volume), 1929	box 386	
1930 (bound volume), 1930	box 387	
1931 (bound volume), 1931	box 388	
1932 (bound volume), 1932	box 389	
1933 (bound volume), 1933	box 428	
Conferences		
Civil Rights, Forum on, 1964	box 324	folder 1
Crime Situation, 1922	box 324	folder 2
Crime Situation, 1922	box 238	folder 5
Discrimination Against North Atlantic and the Railroads, 1920	box 238	folder 6
Diversion of Export Freight From New York to Other Ports, 1920	box 238	folder 7
Fifth International Congress of Chambers of Commerce, 1912	box 328	folder 7
The Economic Outlook Forum, 1971	box 328	folder 8
Increased Subway Fare, 1947	box 324	folder 3
International Joint Commission of the Proposed St. Lawrence Canal,, 1920	box 324	folder 4
New York State Commercial Organizations, 1921-1922	box 238	folder 8
New York State DelegationNational Rivers and Harbors Congress,, 1922	box 238	folder 9
Opportunities in Economic Development, undated	box 324	folder 5
Pensions for Employees, 1950	box 328	folder 9
Public Health Committee of New York Academy of Medicine, 1921	box 238	folder 10
Relief of Traffic Congestion, 1924	box 238	folder 11
Representatives of Commercial Organizations, 1922	box 324	folder 6
Tax Crisis Facing New York City and New York State, A Symposium on the,, 1964	box 324	folder 7

World Trade ForumCanada-United States Trade	box 324	folder 8
Relations, 1949	DOX 324	loider 8
Dinners		
Morgan, Postmaster Edward M., 1923	box 239	folder 1
Representatives in Congress from New York State, 1918	box 239	folder 2
Essay Contests		
General		
1920-1923	box 324	folder 9
1954-1958	box 324	folder 10
1963	box 324	folder 11
1964	box 324	folder 12
1966	box 324	folder 13
1967	box 324	folder 14
1968	box 324	folder 15
Correspondence		
1962-1963	box 324	folder 16
1963-1964	box 324	folder 17
Graduate ContestFruend, William C., 1952	box 324	folder 18
Winners, 1943	box 324	folder 19
Invitations and Programs		
1867-1889	box 215	folder 1
1890-1894	box 215	folder 2
1895-1899	box 215	folder 3
1900-1905	box 215	folder 4
1906-1910	box 215	folder 5
1911-1915	box 216	folder 1
1916-1922	box 216	folder 2
1923-1925	box 216	folder 3
1926-1929	box 216	folder 4
1930-1934	box 217	folder 1
1935-1940	box 217	folder 2
1941-1976	box 217	folder 3

Bush, Irving TThe European Situation, 1923	box 239	folder 3
Calles, Elias, 1924	box 328	folder 10
Chamber Activities, 1923	box 239	folder 4
Consider the Raising of Business Standards, 1922	box 239	folder 5
Culbertson, William S., 1945	box 328	folder 11
Delegates to the Second Pan-American Financial Conference,, 1920	box 239	folder 6
Dempsey, WallaceRivers and Harbors Committee, 1922-1923	box 239	folder 7
Edward, Prince of Wales, 1919-1920	box 239	folder 8
Fujiyama, Raita, President of the Tokio [sic] Chamber of Commerce,, 1923	box 239	folder 9
George, David Lloyd, 1923	box 239	folder 10
Luncheon and Special MeetingPorts of New York and New Jersey,, 1920	box 239	folder 11
Members' Council, 1979	box 328	folder 12
Membership Growth, 1921-1922	box 239	folder 12
New York Yankees, 1967-1971	box 239	folder 13
President and Vice President of the San Francisco Chamber of Commerce,, 1920	box 239	folder 14
Von Miller, OskarDeutshe Museum, 1925	box 239	folder 15
Safeguarding Small Investors, 1922-1923	box 239	folder 16
Receptions		
Cosmopolitan Club, 1923	box 239	folder 17
Harding, President Warren G., 1923	box 239	folder 18
Henry, Prince of Prussia, 1902	box 239	folder 19
Henry, Prince of PrussiaCommittee, 1901-1906	box 239	folder 20
Financial Matters		
Analysis of Investments, 1969-1970	box 328	folder 13
Bills Approved for Services Rendered, 1886 March-1905 April (bound volume), 1886 March-1905 April	box 445	
Bills Audited for Services Rendered, 1874 February-1886 March (bound volume), 1874 February-1886 March	box 446	
Building Fund Bonds, 1947-1948	box 318	folder 7
Directors' Trust Committee, 1966	box 328	folder 14

Equity Conservation CorporationFund Mortgage, 1939	box 318	folder 8
Fidelity Bond, 1941	box 318	folder 9
Financial Reports		
1910	box 218	folder 1
1927-1929	box 218	folder 2
1940-1950	box 218	folder 3
1951-1960	box 218	folder 4
1961-1963 1967-1968, 1961-1963, 1967-1968	box 218	folder 5
Funds		
1919-1937	box 218	folder 6
1952	box 218	folder 7
Hepburn Fund, 1945-1952	box 218	folder 8
Hepburn Fund, 1945-1955	box 318	folder 10
Income and Fund Balance, 1962-1974	box 318	folder 11
Special Funds, 1945-1977	box 318	folder 12
Legal Issues, 1930-1940	box 219	folder 1
MemorandumsB.C. Davis, 1952-1956	box 318	folder 13
Mortgages, 1939	box 219	folder 2-3
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
New Systems of Accounts, 1926-1927	box 219	folder 4
"Pay the Mortgage" Committee, 1945-1946	box 219	folder 5
Subscriber Books Subscriptions toward Christmas Fund for Luncheon Room Employees		
1923-1925 (bound volume), 1923-1925	box 390	
1926-1927 (bound volume), 1926-1927	box 391	
Tax Reduction/Exemption, 1945-1947	box 219	folder 6
Treasurer		
Treasurer  General Statements		
	box 334	folder 12
General Statements	box 334 box 334	folder 12 folder 13-14
General Statements 1874-1884		
General Statements 1874-1884 1910-1915		

General		
1964	box 312	folder 1-3
Physical Description: (3 Folders)		
1964-1974	box 312	folder 4
1972-1973	box 312	folder 5
An Examination of the Feasibility of the Proposed Merger,", 1964	box 312	folder 6
Annual Meeting, 1964	box 312	folder 7
Ballots		
Consolidation, 1964	box 313	folder 1
Meeting Adjournment, 1964	box 313	folder 2
Classification of Membership, 1947	box 313	folder 3
Correspondence		
1945-1947	box 313	folder 4
1964 <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 313	folder 5-6
Member Opposition, 1964	box 313	folder 7
Riegelman, Harold, 1947	box 313	folder 8
Memorandum, 1947	box 313	folder 9
Pinances, 1973	box 313	folder 10
Proposed Consolidation of the Corporation of the Chamber of Commerce of the State of New York and Commerce and Industry Association of New York, nc.,"1964  Physical Description: (3 Folders)	box 314	folder 1-3
Proposed Merger with the New York Board of Trade, 1953-1958	box 314	folder 4
Study, 1936-1948	box 314	folder 5
StudyHistorical, 1947	box 314	folder 6
Voting, 1964  Physical Description: (2 Folders)	box 314	folder 7-8

Ball, George W., 1967 May 5	box 277	folder 2
Baring, Lord George Rowland Stanley, 1971 December 2	box 277	folder 3
Bartlett, Dewey, Elliot, Don, and Stans, Maurice H., 1970 January 29	box 277	folder 4
Bentley, Helen Delich, 1971 November 4	box 277	folder 5
Booth, Arch N., 1969 December 4	box 277	folder 6
Buckley, James L., 1971 May 10	box 277	folder 7
Bush, George H., 1973 January 4	box 277	folder 8
Chapin, Roy D., 1972 October 5	box 277	folder 9
Cherne, Leo, 1971 February 4	box 277	folder 10
Connally, John, 1967 March 2	box 277	folder 11
Dean, Sir Patrick, 1968 November 7	box 277	folder 12
Doar, John, 1969 March 6	box 277	folder 13
Fitzhugh, Gilbert W., 1967 December 7	box 277	folder 14
Flanigan, Peter, 1973 February 1	box 277	folder 15
Goldberg, Arthur J., 1967 November 9	box 277	folder 16
Goldwater, Barry, 1972 May 4	box 277	folder 17
Haack, Robert W., 1969 April 3	box 277	folder 18
Hall, Floyd D., 1968 February 1	box 277	folder 19
Hamilton, Edward, 1971 April 1	box 277	folder 20
Hayes, Alfred, 1968 May 2	box 277	folder 21
Hester, James, 1969 May 1	box 277	folder 22
Iacocca, Lee, 1973 February 15	box 277	folder 23
Jordan, Vernon E., 1972 June 1	box 277	folder 24
Kolton, Paul, 1973 March 1	box 277	folder 25
Lindsay, John V., 1967 June 1	box 277	folder 26
Logue, Edward J., 1970 December 9	box 277	folder 27
Luce, Charles F., 1968 December 5	box 277	folder 28
McCracken, Paul W., 1969 October 2	box 277	folder 29
McGill, William J., 1972 April 6	box 278	folder 1
Mills, Wilbur D., 1971 October 8	box 278	folder 2
Murphy, Patrick V., 1970 December 3	box 278	folder 3
Noodham Jamas I 1072 March 2		

	box 278	folder 4
O'Brien, Sir Leslie, 1968 February 20	box 278	folder 5
Patrick, Thomas W., Jr., 1966 November 3	box 278	folder 6
Peterson, Rudolph A., 1967 April 6	box 278	folder 7
Rockefeller, Nelson A., 1966 May 25	box 278	folder 8
Ronan, William J., 1968 October 3	box 278	folder 9
Saul, Ralph S., 1970 April 2	box 278	folder 10
Scranton, William, 1966 February 3	box 278	folder 11
Seymour, Whitney North, 1970 January 7	box 278	folder 12
Stans, Maurice H., 1971 March 4	box 278	folder 13
Tobin, Austin, 1969 February 5	box 278	folder 14
Watson, Thomas, 1967 October 5	box 278	folder 15
Young, Whitney, Jr., 1968 March 7	box 278	folder 16
Public Relations		
Press Releases		
1961-1969	box 319	folder 1
1962-1965	box 319	folder 2
1963-1965	box 319	folder 3
1966-1970	box 319	folder 4
Program Development, 1963-1966	box 319	folder 5
Promotional Materials, 1920-1963	box 319	folder 6
Scrapbooks		
1895-1896 (bound volume), 1895-1896	box 442	
1902 April-1902 November (bound volume), 1902 April-1902 November	box 433	
1902 November-1903 January (bound volume), 1902 November-1903 January	box 444	
1956 October-1957 June	box 378	
1957 September-1958 September (3 scrapbooks), 1957 September-1958 September	box 378	
1958 January-April	box 378	
1958 October-1959 DecemberBooks I-III (3 scrapbooks), 1958	box 379	
1958 FebruaryHoover Dinner, 1958	box 379	

1960 January-December	box 393
Realia	box 376
Medals	box 376
Abram Stevens Hewitt, 1900	
The Berwind White Coal Mining Company50th Anniversary, 1936	box 376
Chamber of CommerceBrussels, 1969	box 376
Chamber of CommerceParis, undated	box 376
Charles A. Coffin Medal, 1923	box 376
Citizens Budget Commission, 1967	box 376
Defenders of Fort Pickens, 1861 (2 medals), 1861	box 376
Francesco, 1866	box 376
The Gary Memorial Medal, undated	box 376
New York Chamber of Commerce Building Dedication, 1902 (2 medals), 1902	box 376
New York Stock Exchange, undated	box 376
Rapid Transit Commission, 1904	box 376
The Vail Medal for Noteworthy Public Service, 1920	box 376
Pencil, undated	box 376

<sup>^</sup> Return to Table of Contents

## Series II: Annual Reports, 1858-1975

#### **Scope and Contents**

The annual reports of the Chamber of Commerce serve as a definitive record of business in the New York region, providing both national and local commercial statistics, yearly accounts of the industry, and special reports on New York trade, commerce, and finance. They also document the activities of the Chamber itself by highlighting noteworthy accomplishments and events of the past year through a compilation of speeches, reports, and narrative summaries. Series II offers a complete run of the Chamber's annual reports from 1858 to 1926; subsequently, only the years 1966-1975 are present.

Title/Description	Instances
Vol. 1, 1858	box 88 folder 1
Vol. 2, 1859-1860	box 88 folder 2
Vol. 3, 1860-1861	box 88 folder 3
Vol. 4, 1861-1862	box 89 folder 1

Vol. 5, 1862-1863

	box 89	folder 2
Vol. 6, 1863-1864	box 89	folder 3
Vol. 7, 1864-1865	box 90	folder 1
Vol. 8, 1865-1866	box 90	folder 2
Vol. 9, 1866-1867	box 90	folder 3
Vol. 10, 1867-1868	box 91	folder 1
Vol. 11, 1868-1869	box 91	folder 2
Vol. 12, 1869-1870	box 91	folder 3
Vol. 13, 1870-1871	box 92	folder 1
Vol. 14, 1871-1872	box 92	folder 2
Vol. 15, 1872-1873	box 92	folder 3
Vol. 16, 1873-1874	box 93	folder 1
Vol. 17, 1874-1875	box 93	folder 2
Vol. 18, 1875-1876	box 93	folder 3
Vol. 19, 1876-1877	box 94	folder 1
Vol. 20, 1877-1878	box 94	folder 2
Vol. 21, 1878-1879	box 94	folder 3
Vol. 22, 1879-1880	box 95	folder 1
Vol. 23, 1880-1881	box 95	folder 2
Vol. 24, 1881-1882	box 95	folder 3
Vol. 25, 1882-1883	box 96	folder 1
Vol. 26, 1883-1884	box 96	folder 2
Vol. 27, 1884-1885	box 96	folder 3
Vol. 28, 1885-1886	box 97	folder 1
Vol. 29, 1886-1887	box 97	folder 2
Vol. 30, 1887-1888	box 97	folder 3
Vol. 31, 1888-1889	box 98	folder 1
Vol. 32, 1889-1890	box 98	folder 2
Vol. 33, 1890-1891	box 98	folder 3
Vol. 34, 1891-1892	box 99	folder 1
Vol. 35, 1892-1893	box 99	folder 2
Vol. 36, 1893-1894	box 99	folder 3

Vol. 37, 1894-1895	box 100	folder 1
Vol. 38, 1895-1896	box 100	folder 2
Vol. 39, 1896-1897	box 100	folder 3
Vol. 40, 1897-1898	box 101	folder 1
Vol. 41, 1898-1899	box 101	folder 2
Vol. 42, 1899-1900	box 101	folder 3
Vol. 43, 1900-1901	box 102	folder 1
Vol. 44, 1901-1902	box 102	folder 2
Vol. 45, 1902-1903	box 102	folder 3
Vol. 46, 1903-1904	box 103	folder 1
Vol. 47, 1904-1905	box 103	folder 2
Vol. 48, 1905-1906	box 103	folder 3
Vol. 49, 1906-1907	box 104	folder 1
Vol. 50, 1907-1908	box 104	folder 2
Vol. 51, 1908-1909	box 104	folder 3
Vol. 52, 1909-1910	box 105	folder 1
Vol. 53, 1910-1911	box 105	folder 2
Vol. 54, 1911-1912	box 105	folder 3
Vol. 55, 1912-1913	box 106	folder 1
Vol. 56, 1913-1914	box 106	folder 2
Vol. 57, 1914-1915	box 107	folder 1
Vol. 58, 1915-1916	box 107	folder 2
Vol. 59, 1916-1917	box 108	folder 1
Vol. 60, 1917-1918	box 108	folder 2
Vol. 61, 1918-1919	box 109	folder 1
Vol. 62, 1919-1920	box 109	folder 2
Vol. 63, 1920-1921	box 110	folder 1
Vol. 64, 1921-1922	box 110	folder 2
Vol. 65, 1922-1923	box 111	folder 1
Vol. 66, 1923-1924	box 111	folder 2
Vol. 67, 1924-1925	box 112	folder 1
Vol. 68, 1925-1926	box 112	folder 2

1966-1975 box 337 folder 1

#### ^ Return to Table of Contents

# Series III: Bulletins, 1909-1970

#### **Scope and Contents**

The monthly bulletins of the Chamber of Commerce, which make up the third series of the collection, capture a distinctive picture of the Chamber's purpose and actions. This series contains a comprehensive set of bulletins from 1909 to 1963, as well as a few supplemental materials from the 1950s to 1970s. Each bulletin contains information on news and activities of the Chamber, meeting minutes, reports, and library additions. Their initial audience was the organization's members, though they were later printed by the thousands and distributed monthly to libraries, business organizations, public officials and students of economics both domestically and abroad. Eventually, the Chamber began binding bulletins in yearly editions, and members received a personalized copy. While each individual monthly bulletin contains a table of contents, the bound volumes are also indexed for ease of use.

Title/Description	Instances	
Supplements, 1958-1970s	box 374	folder 7
Vol. 1, 1909 April-1910 April	box 165	folder 1
Vol. 2, 1910 May-1911 April	box 165	folder 2
Vol. 3, 1911 May-1912 April	box 165	folder 3
Vol. 4, 1912 May-1913 April	box 165	folder 4
Vol. 5, 1913 May-1914 April	box 166	folder 1
Vol. 6, 1914 May-1915 April	box 166	folder 2
Vol. 7, 1915 May-1916 April	box 166	folder 3
Vol. 8, 1916 May-1917 April	box 166	folder 4
Vol. 9, 1917 May-1918 April	box 167	folder 1
Vol. 10, 1918 May-1919 April	box 167	folder 2
Vol. 11, 1919 May-1920 April	box 167	folder 3
Vol. 12, 1920 May-1921 April	box 168	folder 1
Vol. 13, 1921 May-1922 April	box 168	folder 2
Vol. 14, 1922 May-1923 April	box 168	folder 3
Vol. 15, 1923 May-1924 April	box 168	folder 4
Vol. 16, 1924 May-1925 April	box 168	folder 5
Vol. 17, 1925 May-1926 April	box 169	folder 1
Vol. 18, 1926 May-1927 April	box 169	folder 2
Vol. 19, 1927 May-1928 April	box 169	folder 3

Vol. 20, 1928 May-1929 April	box 169	folder 4
Vol. 21, 1929 May-1930 April	box 169	folder 5
Vol. 22, 1930 May-1931 April	box 170	folder 1
Vol. 23, 1931 May-1932 April	box 170	folder 2
Vol. 24, 1932 May-1933 April	box 170	folder 3
Vol. 25, 1933 May-1934 April	box 170	folder 4
Vol. 26, 1934 May-1935 April	box 170	folder 5
Vol. 27, 1935 May-1936 April	box 170	folder 6
Vol. 28, 1936 May-1937 April	box 171	folder 1
Vol. 29, 1937 May-1938 April	box 171	folder 2
Vol. 30, 1938 May-1939 April	box 171	folder 3
Vol. 31, 1939 May-1940 April	box 171	folder 4
Vol. 32, 1940 May-1941 April	box 171	folder 5
Vol. 33, 1941 May-1942 April	box 172	folder 1
Vol. 34, 1942 May-1943 April	box 172	folder 2
Vol. 35, 1943 May-1944 April	box 172	folder 3
Vol. 36, 1944 May-1945 April	box 172	folder 4
Vol. 37, 1945 May-1946 April	box 173	folder 1
Vol. 38, 1946 May-1947 April	box 173	folder 2
Vol. 39, 1947 May-1948 April	box 173	folder 3
Vol. 40, 1948 May-1949 April	box 174	folder 1
Vol. 41, 1949 May-1950 April	box 174	folder 2
Vol. 42, 1950 May-1951 April	box 175	folder 1
Vol. 43, 1951 May-1952 April	box 175	folder 2
Vol. 44, 1952 May-1953 April	box 175	folder 3
Vol. 45, 1953 May-1954 April	box 176	folder 1
Vol. 46, 1954 May-1955 April	box 176	folder 2
Vol. 47, 1955 May-1956 April	box 176	folder 3
Vol. 48, 1956 May-1957 April	box 176	folder 4
Vol. 49, 1957 May-1958 April	box 177	folder 1
Vol. 50, 1958 May-1959 April	box 177	folder 2
Vol. 51, 1959 May-1960 April	box 177	folder 3

Vol. 52, 1960 May-1961 April	box 178 folder 1
Vol. 53, 1961 May-1962 April	box 178 folder 2
Vol. 54, 1962 May-1963 April	box 178 folder 3
Vol. 55, 1963 May-1963 December	box 392 folder 3

<sup>^</sup> Return to Table of Contents

## Series IV: Commerce and Industry Association, 1873-1978

## **Scope and Contents**

The fourth series in the collection is arguably the most complex. It is comprised of the records of the Commerce and Industry Association, an organization similar to the Chamber of Commerce in purpose, which eventually merged with the Chamber in 1973 following a decline in both organizations' membership and corresponding influence. Researchers should note that these records date back to 1873; therefore documents from the Merchants' Association, an earlier incarnation of the Commerce and Industry Association, are included. This series is divided into six subseries according to format or purpose; because of this, each individual subseries closely mirrors the series in the New York Chamber of Commerce and Industry collection as a whole.

#### Subseries IV.1: Administration, 1935-1973

#### **Scope and Contents**

The first subseries contains records related to the administrative tasks of the Commerce and Industry Association. Though relatively small, the subject matter is broad in scope, including a small selection of annual reports, public relations materials, and information on the merger with the New York Chamber of Commerce. Of particular interest in this series are the printed transcripts from the Association's Business Forum Radio broadcasts which ran for several years in the 1940s and billed itself as a "public service program." Additionally, materials related to the Association's merger with the Chamber of Commerce can be found here. Items are arranged alphabetically by subject.

Title/Description	Instances	
Affiliations		
Business and Education Council of New York, 1958-1960	box 331	folder 1
Five Counties Taxpayers Defense, 1948-1967	box 331	folder 2
Annual Report		
1940-1947	box 339	folder 9
1948-1960	box 339	folder 10
Annual Report to Members, 1950-1951	box 339	folder 11
Business Forum Radio Broadcasts		
1942 November-1943 March	box 220	folder 1
1943 March-October	box 220	folder 2

1943 October-December	box 220	folder 3
1944 January-March	box 220	folder 4
1944 April-September	box 220	folder 5
1944 October	box 220	folder 6
1944 November-1945 January	box 221	folder 1
1945 February-April	box 221	folder 2
1945 May	box 221	folder 3
1945 September-December	box 221	folder 4
1946 January-March	box 221	folder 5
1946 March-September	box 222	folder 1
1946 October-December	box 222	folder 2
1947 January-April	box 222	folder 3
Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws, 1941	box 331	folder 3
Creation of the Commerce and Industry Association Institute, 1960-1973	box 331	folder 4
History		
Facts, and Organization, 1947	box 331	folder 5
"Facts Concerning the Historical Background, Organization, Physical Facilities and Finances of the Commerce and Industry Association,", 1947	box 331	folder 6
Merger with Chamber of Commerce of the State of New York		
Preparation, 1947	box 331	folder 7-8
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Membership, 1947	box 332	folder 1
Report, 1947	box 332	folder 2
Promotional Material, 1938-1965	box 332	folder 3
Public Relations, 1935-1941	box 332	folder 4
Reorganization of the City Government, 1933-1954 <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 332	folder 5-6
TransportationInterstate Commerce Commission Briefs and Petitions,, 1958-1972	box 332	folder 7

## **Scope and Contents**

This series holds a complete set of the Commerce and Industry Association's monthly bulletins from 1901 to 1973, as well as a variety of bulletins which address particular subjects such as trade and transportation. Each bulletin contains information on the Association's activities and highlights major national and local news impacting commerce. Bulletins are both bound and loose and arranged chronologically.

Title/Description	Instances	
Monthly Bulletins		
1901 October-1903 May	box 133	folder 1
1904 November-1907 December	box 133	folder 2
1908 February-December	box 133	folder 3
1909 January-October	box 133	folder 4
1912 March-December	box 133	folder 5
1913 January-December	box 134	folder 1
1914 January-December	box 134	folder 2
1915 January-December	box 135	folder 1
1916 January-December	box 135	folder 2
1917 January-December	box 136	folder 1
1918 January-December	box 136	folder 2
1919 January-December	box 137	folder 1
1920 January-December	box 137	folder 2
1921 January-December	box 138	folder 1
1922 January-December	box 138	folder 2
1923 January-December	box 139	folder 1
1924 January-December	box 139	folder 2
1925 January-December	box 140	folder 1
1928 January-1931 December	box 140	folder 2
1932 January-1934 December	box 141	folder 1
1935 January-1936 December	box 141	folder 2
1937 January-1938 December	box 141	folder 3
1939 January-1941 February	box 141	folder 4
1941 April-December	box 141	folder 5
1942 January-December	box 141	folder 6
1943 January-December	box 142	folder 1

1944 January-December	box 142	folder 2
1945 January-December	box 142	folder 3
1946 January-December	box 142	folder 4
1947 January-December	box 142	folder 5
1948 January-December	box 143	folder 1
1949 January-December	box 143	folder 2
1950 January-December	box 143	folder 3
1951 January-December	box 143	folder 4
1952 January-December	box 143	folder 5
1953 January-December	box 143	folder 6
1954 January-December	box 144	folder 1
1955 January-December	box 144	folder 2
1956 January-December	box 144	folder 3
1957 January-December	box 144	folder 4
1958 January-December	box 144	folder 5
1959 January-December	box 144	folder 6
1960 January-December	box 145	folder 1
1961 January-December	box 145	folder 2
1962 January-December	box 145	folder 3
1963 January-December	box 145	folder 4
1964 January-December	box 145	folder 5
1965 January-December	box 145	folder 6
1966 January-December	box 146	folder 1
1967 January-December	box 146	folder 2
New York State Constitutional Convention, 1967	box 146	folder 3
1968 January-December	box 146	folder 4
1969 January-December	box 146	folder 5
1970 January-December	box 146	folder 6
1971 January-December	box 146	folder 7
1972 January-December	box 146	folder 8
1973 January-December	box 146	folder 9
Albany News Bulletin, 1947-1950	box 207	folder 1

"Industrial Relations" Bulletin		
1969-1971	box 207	folder 2
1972-1976	box 207	folder 3
"Personal Management" Bulletin, 1967-1970	box 207	folder 4
Service Bulletins, 1927-1928	box 332	folder 8
"Transportation" Bulletin		
1957-1959	box 207	folder 5
1960-1961	box 208	folder 1
1962-1964	box 208	folder 2
1965-1967	box 208	folder 3
1968-1969	box 208	folder 4
1969-1970	box 208	folder 5
1971-1973	box 208	folder 6
Contents, 1958-1962	box 208	folder 7
World Trade Bulletin		
Foreign Trade BulletinVol. 2, 1948	box 209	folder 1-2
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Vol. 3, 1949	box 209	folder 3-4
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Vol. 4, 1950	box 209	folder 5-6
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Vol. 5, 1951	box 210	folder 1-2
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Vol. 6, 1952	box 210	folder 3-4
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Vol. 7, 1953	box 210	folder 5-6
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Vol. 8, 1954	box 211	folder 1-2
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Vol. 9, 1955	box 211	folder 3-4
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Vol. 10, 1956	box 211	folder 5-6
•		

**Physical Description:** (2 Folders)

Vol. 11, 1957	box 212	folder 1-2
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Vol. 12, 1958	box 212	folder 3-4
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Vol. 13, 1959	box 212	folder 5
Vol. 13, 1959	box 213	folder 1
Vol. 15, 1961	box 213	folder 2-3
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Vol. 16, 1962	box 213	folder 4-5
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		

## Subseries IV.3: Committees, 1906-1978

#### **Scope and Contents**

Much like the Chamber of Commerce, the Association often formed ad hoc committees to examine current issues relevant to local and national business and industry. This subseries contains the records of several of these committees in existence throughout the 20th century. Committee records are mostly made up of meeting minutes and correspondence; subjects addressed include city laws and regulations, finance, foreign trade, immigration, taxes, and transportation.

Title/Description	Instances	
General		
Reports, 1914-1915	box 377	folder 6
Reports, 1916-1939	box 377	folder 7
Adequate Wiring, Special Committee on, 1953	box 240	folder 1
Adjutant General, Special Committee Advisory to the, 1917	box 240	folder 2
Aeronautics, Committee on		
1922-1944	box 240	folder 3
1922-1945	box 240	folder 4
Americanization, Special Committee on, 1917	box 240	folder 5
Anti-Trust Legislation, Special Committee on, 1914	box 240	folder 6
Aqueduct CommitteeChanges, undated (bound volume), undated	box 456	
Authorities, Special Committee on, 1946-1951	box 240	folder 7
Aviation Taxation, Special Committee on, 1945	box 240	folder 8

Banking and Currency, Committee on

1908-1943	box 240	folder 9
1913-1943	box 240	folder 10
Broadway-Park Place Company, Special Committee on, 1918	box 240	folder 11
Building Laws and Regulations Committee		
1913-1931	box 241	folder 1
1914-1936	box 241	folder 2
1928-1948	box 241	folder 3
1937-1949	box 241	folder 4
1940-1952	box 241	folder 5
1950-1952	box 241	folder 6
1950-1953	box 241	folder 7
Charities, Committee on, 1923-1930	box 242	folder 1
City Conditions and Ordinances, Committee on		
1906-1917	box 242	folder 2
1918-1942	box 242	folder 3
1918-1948	box 242	folder 4
City Finance, Committee on, 1923	box 242	folder 5
City Government, Committee on, 1917-1921	box 242	folder 6
City Traffic, Committee on		
1912-1923	box 242	folder 7
1913-1923	box 242	folder 8
1924-1931	box 243	folder 1
City Transit, Committee on		
1928-1930	box 243	folder 2
1931-1935	box 243	folder 3
1932-1954	box 243	folder 4
1936-1947	box 243	folder 5
Coal Situation, Special Committee on, 1917	box 243	folder 6
Coal Shortage, Joint Committee on, 1918-1921	box 243	folder 7
Commercial Law, Committee on		
1907-1911	box 244	folder 1
1912-1917	box 244	folder 2

1913-1930	box 244	folder 3
1919-1942	box 244	folder 4
1931-1943	box 244	folder 5
Control of Street Traffic, Committee on		
1923-1955	box 244	folder 6
1925-1955	box 244	folder 7
Convention Committee		
1913-1938	box 245	folder 1
Executive Committee, 1938-1945	box 245	folder 2
Executive Committee, 1941-1942	box 245	folder 3
Cooperatives, Special Committee on, 1945-1947	box 245	folder 4
Customs Service and Administration, Committee on		
1909-1925	box 245	folder 5
1915-1920	box 245	folder 6
1921-1927	box 246	folder 1
1925-1927	box 246	folder 2
1928-1931	box 246	folder 3
1928-1941	box 246	folder 4
1932-1941	box 246	folder 5
Daylight Saving, Special Committee on, 1915-1923	box 246	folder 6
Education, Committee on, 1922-1945	box 246	folder 7
Elevators, Advisory Committee on, 1951	box 272	folder 1
Factory Laws and Regulations, Committee on, 1916-1918	box 272	folder 2
Federal Trade Commission, Committee on		
1915-1949	box 272	folder 3
1916-1949	box 272	folder 4
Fire Prevention and Insurance, Committee on		
1912-1937	box 272	folder 5
1913-1951	box 272	folder 6
1937-1951	box 272	folder 7
Food Problem Committee, 1917	box 272	folder 8
Foreign Trade Committee		

Foreign Trade Committee

1907-1926	box 247	folder 1
1913-1918	box 247	folder 2
1919-1920	box 247	folder 3
1922-1929	box 247	folder 4
1927-1950	box 247	folder 5
1930-1939	box 247	folder 6
1940-1958	box 248	folder 1
Harbor, Docks, and Terminals, Committee on		
1912-1922	box 248	folder 2
1915-1940	box 248	folder 3
1923-1948	box 248	folder 4
Highway Development, Special Committee on, 1920-1923	box 248	folder 5
Housing, Committee on, 1919-1920	box 248	folder 6
Immigration and Naturalization, Committee on		
1920	box 248	folder 7
1921-1930	box 248	folder 8
Industrial Committee		
1913-1936	box 254	folder 1
1916-1935	box 254	folder 2
1933-1943	box 254	folder 3
1936-1943	box 254	folder 4
1937-1943	box 254	folder 5
Industrial Relations, Committee on		
1921-1931	box 254	folder 6
1921-1936	box 254	folder 7
1932-1936	box 273	folder 1
Inland Waterways and Water Storage, Committee on		
1914-1942	box 273	folder 2
1915-1942	box 273	folder 3
1923-1931	box 273	folder 4
Judicial Administration, Committee on, 1919-1950	box 273	folder 5
"Keep Business Going" Propaganda, Special Committee on, 1917	box 249	folder 1

Loading Platform Committee, 1914	box 249	folder 2
Marine Insurance, Committee on, 1921-1939	box 249	folder 3
Motion Picture Option Bill, Special Committee on, 1918	box 249	folder 4
New York State Franchise Tax, Special Committee on, 1945-1946	box 249	folder 5
Pensions, Profit Sharing, Bonuses, Benefit Funds, Special Committee on,, 1918-1920	box 249	folder 6
Pile Foundations, Committee on		
1947	box 249	folder 7
1948	box 249	folder 8
Plan for Enlargement of the Influence of the Merchants Association of New York, Executive Committee of the Special Committee on a,, 1921-1948	box 249	folder 9
Pollution, Committee onPollution of New York Harbor as a Menace to Health by the Dissemination of Intestinal Diseases Through the Agency of the Common House Fly, 1908 (bound volume), 1908	box 457	
Port Congestion, Special Committee on, 1917	box 249	folder 10
Public Planning, Committee on, 1916-1943	box 249	folder 11
Reduction of Crime, Committee on		
1923-1927	box 249	folder 12
1923-1939	box 250	folder 1
1928-1936	box 250	folder 2
Rental Allocation Factor, Special Committee on the, 1949	box 250	folder 3
Revision of the Customs Laws, Committee onReport, 1900	box 476	
Revision of State Constitution, Committee on, 1915	box 250	folder 4
Revision of the Theatre Codes, Committee on, 1949-1953	box 250	folder 5
Tax Exempt Property, Special Committee on, 1945	box 250	folder 6
Taxation and Public Revenue, Committee on		
1914-1918	box 250	folder 7
1915-1930	box 250	folder 8
1010 1000	box 251	folder 1
1919-1927		
1919-1927 1920-1942	box 251	folder 2

	box 251	folder 4
1931-1934	box 251	folder 5
1933-1935	box 251	folder 6
1934-1941	box 251	folder 7
1934-1941	box 274	folder 1
1935-1937	box 274	folder 2
1936-1938	box 274	folder 3
1939-1941	box 274	folder 4
1942-1945	box 274	folder 5
1942-1945	box 252	folder 1
1946-1948	box 252	folder 2
1946-1950	box 252	folder 3
1949	box 252	folder 4
1949-1950	box 252	folder 5
1950	box 252	folder 6
1951-1952	box 252	folder 7
1953-1954	box 253	folder 1
1955-1956	box 253	folder 2
Telegraph and Cable Codes, Committee on		
1915-1926	box 253	folder 3
1919-1945	box 253	folder 4
1945	box 253	folder 5
Telephone Committee, Special Committee ofInquiry into Telephone Service and Rates in New York City by the Merchants Association of New York, 1905 (bound volume), 1905	box 458	
Transportation Committee		
1912-1922	box 253	folder 6
1914-1924	box 275	folder 1
1923-1931	box 275	folder 2
1923-1927	box 275	folder 3
1928-1932	box 275	folder 4
1932-1935	box 276	folder 1
1933-1948		

	box 276	folder 2
1936-1950	box 276	folder 3
Vocational Education, Committee on, 1914-1918	box 276	folder 4
War Shipping, Advisory Committee, 1917-1918	box 276	folder 5
Water Supply, Committee on, 1916-1924	box 276	folder 6
Waterfront Loading, Special Committee on, 1954	box 276	folder 7
World Trade Committee, 1975-1978	box 374	folder 8

# Subseries IV.4: Correspondence, 1923-1974

## **Scope and Contents**

This subseries contains the Commerce and Industry Association's correspondence files deriving mostly from the early to mid-20th century. The bulk of materials originates from or is addressed to the Association's administrative branch, particularly the Secretary and Executive Vice President, as well as committee and department heads. Discussion on a wide range of topics can be found here, with an emphasis on New York City and State development and administration. Correspondence is arranged alphabetically according to subject and retains its original order.

Title/Description	Instances	
GeneralA-F [sic], 1942-1962	box 298	folder 1
GeneralG-Z [sic], 1940-1962	box 298	folder 2
Air Pollution Control, 1952-1953	box 298	folder 3
Circulars Related to Bills and Laws, 1945-1957	box 298	folder 4
Citizens Committee for the Hoover Report, 1946-1956	box 298	folder 5
City Management and Administration, 1954-1956	box 298	folder 6
City Pension Systems, Special Committee on, 1939	box 298	folder 7
Civil Rights Bureau, 1957	box 298	folder 8
Commission on Foreign Economic Policy, 1953-1954	box 298	folder 9
Congressional Tour of New York City		
1948	box 299	folder 1-2
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1949	box 299	folder 3
1950	box 299	folder 4
County Reform Petition, 1941	box 299	folder 5
Delegations, Tours, and Visitors, 1949-1954	box 299	folder 6
Department of City Planning, 1955-1956	box 299	folder 7
Department of LaborNew York City, 1954-1957	box 299	folder 8

Department of New York TrafficCommissioner, 1955-1957	box 299	folder 9
Department of Transportation, 1971-1974	box 299	folder 10
Employees of New York State and New York City		
General, 1940-1957	box 299	folder 11
General, 1940-1957	box 300	folder 1
Annual Reports of Organizations, 1951	box 300	folder 2
Career and Salary Plan, 1952-1957	box 300	folder 3
Lyons Residence Law, 1954-1955	box 300	folder 4
Retirement, 1940-1957	box 300	folder 5
Salary Bonuses, 1943-1946	box 300	folder 6
Veterans, 1944	box 300	folder 7
Federal Bureau of Investigation, 1942-1957	box 300	folder 8
Federal Trade Commission, 1944-1953	box 300	folder 9
Federal Trade Commission and Anti-trust Laws		
1942-1957 <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 301	folder 1-2
1950-1956	box 301	folder 3
Foreign Trade		
1940-1951	box 301	folder 4
1940-1954	box 330	folder 1-2
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1940-1957 <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 330	folder 3-4
1941-1953	box 330	folder 5
1941-1957	box 330	folder 6
1942-1957	box 301	folder 5
1943-1953	box 330	folder 7
Foreign Trade Bureau, 1940-1943	box 301	folder 6
Foreign Trade Zone, 1940-1957	box 301	folder 7
Funding for Scientific Research and Development, 1945	box 302	folder 1
Funding for Scientific Research and Development, 1945 Government Office Space, 1946	box 302	folder 1 folder 2

Physical Description: (2 Folders)

Legal Issues, 1948-1949	box 302	folder 5
Mayor's Advisory Committee on the Foreign Trade Zone, 1941-1942	box 302	folder 6
Members' CouncilProgram Committee, 1923-1937	box 302	folder 7
New York City Charter Revision, 1958-1963	box 302	folder 8
New York City Charter Revision, 1958-1963	box 303	folder 1
New York City Council on Port Development and Promotion, 1954-1956	box 303	folder 2
New York City Department of Commerce and Public Events, 1947-1962	box 303	folder 3
New York City Department of Welfare, 1950-1962	box 303	folder 4
New York City Government		
1942-1963	box 303	folder 5-6
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Departments, 1945-1962	box 303	folder 7
Departments, 1945-1962	box 304	folder 1
New York City Rules and Regulations		
1946-1952	box 304	folder 2
1961-1963	box 304	folder 3
New York City Transit Authority, 1944-1960	box 304	folder 4
New York State Administrative Procedure Laws, 1958-1963	box 304	folder 5
New York State Constitution Convention, 1938-1957	box 304	folder 6
New York State Department of Commerce		
1941-1955	box 304	folder 7
1943-1963	box 305	folder 1
New York State Department of Employment Security, 1948-1958	box 305	folder 2
New York State Department of LaborDivision of Unemployment, 1943-1963	box 305	folder 3
New York State Legislators, 1957-1963	box 305	folder 4
New York State Real Estate Tax, 1952-1953	box 305	folder 5
New York State Tax Commission, 1960-1963	box 305	folder 6

	, and the second	
Labor Relations, 1951-1957	box 305	folder 7
Labor Relations, 1952-1957	box 306	folder 1
Office of Price Administration, 1946	box 306	folder 2
Office Space and BuildingsNew York City, 1940-1956	box 306	folder 3
Pre-merger Notification Legislation, 1956-1957	box 306	folder 4
Port of New York Authority, 1944-1951	box 306	folder 5
Port of New York Authority Handbook, 1956-1957	box 306	folder 6
Post-emergency Economic Advisory, 1941	box 306	folder 7
Post-war Planning, 1943	box 306	folder 8
Post-war PlanningFred I. Kent Fund, 1943	box 306	folder 9
Publicity for New York City, 1941-1957	box 306	folder 10
Reorganization of Government Agencies		
Committees, 1923-1953	box 307	folder 1
Plan No. 1, 1945-1957	box 307	folder 2
Plan No. 1 and No. 2, 1947-1949	box 307	folder 3
Plan No. 2, 1947	box 307	folder 4
Plan No. 5, 1950	box 307	folder 5
Plan No. 12, 1950	box 307	folder 6
United States Employment Service, 1948	box 307	folder 7
Special Committee on the New York Waterfront, 1952	box 307	folder 8
Statistics and Information on New York City, 1942-1953	box 307	folder 9
Survey of Rail Commuting by New York Advertising Executives, 1952	box 307	folder 10
Taxation DivisionInternal Revenue Service, 1954-1956	box 308	folder 1
TaxesNew York State		
1944-1953	box 308	folder 2
1949-1954	box 308	folder 3
1950-1954	box 308	folder 4
Transfer of Government Offices to New York City		
1940-1942	box 308	folder 5-6
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1940-1954	box 309	folder 1
1940-1956	box 309	folder 2

1941-1942	box 309	folder 3
1942	box 309	folder 4
Transportation Bureau, 1948-1952	box 309	folder 5
United States Bureau of the BudgetAdvisory Council on Federal Reports,, 1954-1957	box 309	folder 6
United States Civil Service CommissionWar Time Recruitment, 1942-1943	box 309	folder 7
United States Customs, 1947-1957	box 309	folder 8
United States Department of Commerce, 1953-1956	box 309	folder 9
United States Bureau of Foreign Commerce, 1954-1957	box 310	folder 1
United States Legislative Bills, 1940-1956	box 310	folder 2
United States Munitions Board, 1949	box 310	folder 3
United States Postal Service, 19550-1951	box 310	folder 4
Workmen's Compensation Board, 1955-1963	box 310	folder 5

## Subseries IV.5: Meeting Minutes, 1897-1973

## **Scope and Contents**

Materials found in Subseries 5 record the minutes of regularly occurring meetings at various levels in the organization, with an almost complete run of minutes from the meetings of the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee. Minutes generally include committee reports, information on member elections, and discussion of Association activities. Similar in function to those of the Chamber of Commerce, these member and administrative meetings were a vehicle to address matters affecting local and national commerce, and reach consensus among members. Minutes are both bound and loose, and organized chronologically.

Title/Description	Description Instances	
Board of Directors		
Vol. 1, 1897 June-1900 December	box 61	folder 1
Vol. 2, 1901 February-1904 April	box 61	folder 2
Vol. 3, 1904 April-1905 December	box 62	folder 1
Vol. 4, 1906 January-1907 November	box 62	folder 2
Vol. 5, 1908 January-1909 November	box 63	folder 1
Vol. 6, 1909 December-1912 February	box 63	folder 2
Vol. 7, 1912 February-1913 December	box 64	folder 1
Vol. 8, 1914 January-1916 February	box 64	folder 2
Vol. 9, 1916 March-1918 March	box 65	folder 1
Vol. 10, 1918 April-1919 December	box 65	folder 2

Vol. 11, 1920 January-1921 May	box 66	folder 1
Vol. 12, 1921 May-1922 December	box 66	folder 2
Vol. 13, 1923 January-1924 October	box 67	folder 1
Vol. 14, 1924 November-1926 February	box 67	folder 2
Vol. 15, 1926 May-1928 February	box 68	folder 1
Vol. 16, 1928 May-1929 November	box 68	folder 2
Vol. 17, 1929 December-1930 June	box 69	folder 1
Vol. 18, 1930 October-1931 December	box 69	folder 2
Vol. 19, 1932 January-1932 December	box 70	folder 1
Vol. 20, 1933 January-1934 January	box 70	folder 2
Vol. 21, 1934 February-1935 February	box 71	folder 1
Vol. 22, 1935 February-1936 March	box 71	folder 2
Vol. 23, 1936 April-1937 March	box 72	folder 1
Vol. 24, 1937 March-1938 March	box 72	folder 2
Vol. 25, 1938 April-1939 March	box 73	folder 1
Vol. 26, 1939 April-1940 March	box 73	folder 2
Vol. 27, 1940 April-1941 June	box 74	folder 1
Vol. 29, 1942 June-1943 December	box 75	folder 1
Vol. 30, 1944 January-1945 February	box 75	folder 2
Vol. 31, 1945 March-1946 January	box 76	folder 1
Vol. 32, 1946 February-1946 November	box 76	folder 2
Vol. 33, 1946 December1948 January, 1946	box 119	folder 1
Vol. 34, 1948 February1949 February, 1948	box 119	folder 2
Vol. 35, 1949 March-1950 January	box 120	folder 1
Vol. 36, 1950 February1951 June, 1950	box 120	folder 2
Vol. 37, 1951 September-1952 February	box 77	folder 1
Vol. 38, 1952 March-1953 June	box 77	folder 2
Vol. 39, 1953 September-1954 December	box 78	folder 1
Vol. 40, 1955 January-1956 January	box 78	folder 2
Vol. 41, 1956 February-1957 February	box 79	folder 1
Vol. 42, 1957 March-1958 April	box 79	folder 2
Vol. 43, 1958 May-1959 April	box 80	folder 1

Vol. 44, 1959 May-1960 February	box 80	folder 2
Vol. 45, 1960 March-1961 April	box 81	folder 1
Vol. 46, 1961 May-1962 February	box 81	folder 2
Vol. 47, 1962 March-1963 February	box 82	folder 1
Vol. 48, 1963 March-1964 January	box 82	folder 2
Vol. 49, 1964 February-1964 November	box 83	folder 1
Vol. 50, 1964 December-1965 November	box 83	folder 2
Vol. 51, 1965 December-1966 November	box 84	folder 1
Vol. 52, 1966 December-1967 October	box 84	folder 2
Vol. 53, 1967 November-1968 September	box 85	folder 1
Vol. 54, 1968 October-1969 September	box 85	folder 2
Vol. 55, 1969 October-1970 September	box 86	folder 1
Vol. 56, 1970 October-1971 December	box 86	folder 2
Vol. 57, 1972 January-1973 January	box 87	folder 1
Vol. 58, 1973 February	box 87	folder 2
Board of Directors of the Merchants' Association, 1941-1972	box 194	folder 6
Executive Committee		
1904 July-December	box 121	folder 1
1905 January-April	box 121	folder 2
1905 April-October	box 121	folder 3
1905 November-December	box 121	folder 4
1905 Index, 1905	box 121	folder 5
1906 January-June	box 122	folder 1
1906 July-December	box 122	folder 2
1906 Index, 1906	box 122	folder 3
1907 January-June	box 122	folder 4
1907 July-December	box 122	folder 5
1907 Index, 1907	box 122	folder 6
1908 January-December	box 122	folder 7
1908 Index, 1908	box 123	folder 1
1909 January-May	box 123	folder 2
1909 June-December		

	box 123	folder 3
1909 Index, 1909	box 123	folder 4
1910 January-June	box 123	folder 5
1910 July-December	box 123	folder 6
1910 Index, 1910	box 123	folder 7
1911 January-May	box 123	folder 8
1911 June-November	box 123	folder 9
1911 Index, 1911	box 123	folder 10
1912 January-April	box 123	folder 11
1912 May-December	box 123	folder 12
1912 Index, 1912	box 124	folder 1
1913 January-June	box 124	folder 2
1913 July-December	box 124	folder 3
1913 Index, 1913	box 124	folder 4
1914 January-May	box 124	folder 5
1914 June-December	box 124	folder 6
1914 Index, 1914	box 124	folder 7
1915 March-October	box 124	folder 8
1915 November-December	box 124	folder 9
1915 Index, 1915	box 124	folder 10
1916 January-May	box 124	folder 11
1916 June-December	box 125	folder 1
1916 Index, 1916	box 125	folder 2
1917 January-June	box 125	folder 3
1917 July-December	box 125	folder 4
1917 Index, 1917	box 125	folder 5
1918 January-April	box 125	folder 6
1918 July-December	box 125	folder 7
1918 Index, 1918	box 125	folder 8
1919 January-May	box 126	folder 1
1919 June-December	box 126	folder 2
1920 February-June	box 126	folder 3

1920 July-December	box 126	folder 4
1921 January-May	box 126	folder 5
1921 June-December	box 126	folder 6
1922 January-June	box 126	folder 7
1922 July-August	box 127	folder 1
1922 October-December	box 127	folder 2
1923 January-May	box 127	folder 3
1923 June-October	box 127	folder 4
1923 November-December	box 127	folder 5
1924 January-May	box 127	folder 6
1924 September-December	box 127	folder 7
1925 January-April	box 127	folder 8
1925 May-November	box 127	folder 9
1926 January-February	box 127	folder 10
1926 March-December	box 128	folder 1
1927 January-November	box 128	folder 2
1928 January	box 128	folder 3
1928 November-December	box 128	folder 4
1929 January-June	box 128	folder 5
1929 September	box 128	folder 6
1929 Index, 1929	box 128	folder 7
1930 January-December	box 128	folder 8
1931 February-December	box 129	folder 1
1932 February-October	box 129	folder 2
1933 March-July	box 129	folder 3
1933 September-October	box 129	folder 4
1933 Index, 1933	box 129	folder 5
1933-1938 Index, 1933-1938	box 129	folder 6
1934 January-September	box 129	folder 7
1935 February-May	box 129	folder 8
1936 February-August	box 129	folder 9
1937 March-November	box 129	folder 10

1938 January-February	box 129	folder 11
1938 April-December	box 129	folder 12
1938-1942 Index, 1938-1942	box 129	folder 13
1939 April-November	box 129	folder 14
1940 February-October	box 129	folder 15
1941 February-December	box 130	folder 1
1942 January-April	box 130	folder 2
1942 June-December	box 130	folder 3
1942-1946 Index, 1942-1946	box 130	folder 4
1943 January-November	box 130	folder 5
1944 March-December	box 130	folder 6
1945 March-December	box 130	folder 7
1946 February-November	box 130	folder 8
1947 January-December	box 130	folder 9
1947-1951 Index, 1947-1951	box 130	folder 10
1948 January-October	box 130	folder 11
1949 January-December	box 130	folder 12
1950 February-November	box 130	folder 13
1951 January-February	box 131	folder 1
1951 April-December	box 131	folder 2
1951-1953 Index, 1951-1953	box 131	folder 3
1952 January-December	box 131	folder 4
1953 January-July	box 131	folder 5
1953 August-December	box 131	folder 6
1953-1956 Index, 1953-1956	box 131	folder 7
1954 January-December	box 131	folder 8
1955 January-October	box 131	folder 9
1956 January-March	box 131	folder 10
1956 April-December	box 131	folder 11
1956-1959 Index, 1956-1959	box 131	folder 12
1957 January-September	box 131	folder 13
1958 January-December	box 131	folder 14

1959 January-December	box 131	folder 15
1959-1962 Index, 1959-1962	box 132	folder 1
1960 January-December	box 132	folder 2
1961 February-December	box 132	folder 3
1962 February-September	box 132	folder 4
1963 January-October	box 132	folder 5
1964 February-November	box 132	folder 6
1965 February-December	box 132	folder 7
1966 January-November	box 132	folder 8
1967 February	box 132	folder 9
1968 March-December	box 132	folder 10
1969 January-December	box 132	folder 11
1970 March-December	box 132	folder 12
1971 January-December	box 132	folder 13
1972 February-November	box 132	folder 14
1973 January-February	box 132	folder 15
Executive Sessions of the Executive Committee and Board of Directors of the Merchants Association of New York/Commerce and Industry Association of New York,, 1963-1971	box 132	folder 16
Member Meetings		
1897 June-1907 March	box 191	folder 1
1907 November-1915 March	box 191	folder 2
1916 May-1929 May	box 192	folder 1
1930 May-1940 June	box 192	folder 2
1941 May-1958 May	box 192	folder 3
1942-1972 Annual Members Meetings, 1942-1972	box 194	folder 5
1959 April-1968 March	box 193	folder 1
1969 January-1973 January (Special Meetings and Annual Meetings), 1969 January-1973 January	box 193	folder 2
Member's Council		
1913 October-1926 December	box 193	folder 3
1927 February-1928 May	box 193	folder 4
1928 December-1930 September	box 193	folder 5

1930 October-1933 July	box 194	folder 1	
1933 November-1935 December	box 194	folder 2	
1936 March-1940 February	box 194	folder 3	
1940 October-1942 February	box 194	folder 4	
Luncheon MeetingRadio, 1925	box 374	folder 9	

# Subseries IV.6: Printed Materials, 1873-1973

## **Scope and Contents**

This small subseries contains an assortment of pamphlets, booklets, and compilations of reports, mostly originating from the first half of the 20th century. Materials focus on topics of both local and national concern, such as transportation, communication, and city development. Items are organized according to their subject matter or title. For the Commerce and Industry Association's more formal publications that were intended for wider distribution, researchers should consult the New York Chamber of Commerce and Industry Publications collection.

Title/Description	Instances	
By-laws, 1943-1949	box 339	folder 12
Civil Defense, 1951	box 339	folder 13
Commercial Interests		
International, 1916-1957	box 340	folder 1
New York City		
1912-1915	box 340	folder 2
1919-1939	box 340	folder 3
1942-1955	box 340	folder 4
United States		
1878-1916	box 340	folder 5
1941-1948	box 340	folder 6
Cost of Condemnation Proceedings and Analysis of References, 1903 (bound volume), 1903	box 460	
Interstate Commerce Commission in the Matter of Differential Inland Freight Rates to and from North Atlantic Ports, 1905 (bound volume), 1905	box 461	
Legislation, 1873-1949	box 340	folder 7
The Merchants' Association of New York Transactions		
1897-1900	box 368	
1901-1902	box 370	
1903-1904	box 360	

1905-1906	box 362	
1907	box 359	
National Defense, 1914-1941	box 341	folder 1
New York CityDevelopment and Improvement		
1901-1906	box 341	folder 2
1901-1939	box 341	folder 3
City ExpensesReports, 1898-1903 (bound volume), 1898-1903	box 459	
New York CityPromotional Material, 1906-1973	box 341	folder 4
New York State		
1931-1940	box 341	folder 5
1945-1966	box 341	folder 6
Organization, 1899-1905	box 341	folder 7
Pamphlet of Economic Questions, 1897-1901	box 358	
Port of New York, 1913-1941	box 377	folder 1
Post-War Planning Committee, 1943-1945	box 377	folder 2
Public Notices, 1898-1909 (2 Folders), 1898-1909	box 377	folder 3-4
Tariffs and Customs, 1906-1941	box 377	folder 5
Trade Pamphlets, 1897-1898	box 364	
TransactionsExpress Cases, 1897-1901	box 366	

<sup>^</sup> Return to Table of Contents

## Series V: Committee on Arbitration, 1820s-1973

#### **Scope and Contents**

The Committee on Arbitration was a significant body of the Chamber of Commerce, although its importance varied greatly throughout the Chamber's existence. Because the Committee retained such a large portion of its records, it was designated as its own series, Series V, apart from the Subseries VI.2: General Committees. Established during the formative years of the Chamber, the Committee on Arbitration was appointed to hear and rule on disputes on mercantile and marine matters. The Committee on Arbitration was instrumental in securing legislation to create a Court of Arbitration, and was widely recognized for its role in developing arbitration systems in commercial and civic associations nationwide. Series V is divided into three subseries according to the original order of the material.

## Subseries V.1: Arbitration Cases, 1820s-1973

#### **Scope and Contents**

The bulk of the series is found in Subseries 1 which consists of arbitration case records submitted to the Chamber's Committee on Arbitration. The Committee on Arbitration did not keep original documents for early arbitration cases; instead they recorded the name of the disputants, a brief description of the case, and the names and decision of the arbitrators' in their Committee minute books. Although this collection does not contain the original copies of the Committee minute books from that time period, the cases were compiled into a publication entitled, *Earliest Arbitration Records of the Chamber of Commerce of the State of New York, Committee Minutes, 1779-1792*, which can be found in the holdings of Columbia University Libraries. The Committee on Arbitration began keeping original materials in the 1820s and while case records are inconsistent, most files found here contain correspondence and/or official arbitration documents. Following the renewal of the Committee on Arbitration in 1912, case records are more comprehensive and standardized; they often include the stenographer's minutes of the proceedings and, in some instances, evidence.

Title/Description	Instances	
Cases and Correspondence, 1820s	box 1	folder 6
Cases and Correspondence, 1820s-1850s	box 1	folder 1-3
<u>Physical Description</u> : (3 Folders)		
Cases and Correspondence, 1830s	box 1	folder 7
Cases and Correspondence, 1840	box 1	folder 8
Cases and Correspondence, 1850s	box 1	folder 9
1824Phelps, Thadeus and Verdine Elsworth v. Andrew Kerr	box 371	folder 2
1845Steamship Massachusetts v. Theodore Maurice	box 1	folder 10
1848Schuchardt and Gebbard v. Benjamin Blossom	box 1	folder 11
1860Maitland, Phelps and Co. v. Bank Whistling Wind	box 23	folder 1
1862		
Cokino and Co. v. E. Cunard	box 23	folder 2
Reeve, Case and Banks v. Market Bank	box 23	folder 3
1863		
Boonen, Graves and Co. v. Sturges, Bennet and Co.	box 23	folder 4
H. Sautter and Wierum v. P. Seymour Henway	box 23	folder 5
J. Patrick and Co. v. W. Scott and Son	box 23	folder 6
W. Roper and Co. v. Place and Wilson	box 23	folder 7
1864		
Application of Whitlock	box 23	folder 8
Cunard, E. v. Bruce and Cook	box 23	folder 9
Dabuey, C.W. v. Ship Carolus Magnus and Captain Ashley	box 23	folder 10

Everett and Co. v. Rowland and Aspinwall	box 23	folder 11
Storm Smith and Co. v. Burger, Hurlbut and Livingston	box 23	folder 12
Wylie and Wade v. Pavenstedt and Co.	box 23	folder 13
1865		
Hayden, Heywood v. Zimmerman Faris and Co.	box 23	folder 14
J. Hess and Co. v. Edward Cunard	box 23	folder 15
Pardo Seixas and Co. v. Wright, Gillies and Brother	box 23	folder 16
1866Breithaupt and Wilson v. Hoadley, Eno and Co.	box 1	folder 12
1867		
Beards and Cummings v. Maitland, Phelps and Co.	box 1	folder 13
W. Hunter and Co. v. Law, Young and Co.	box 1	folder 14
1868Application of L. Marx	box 1	folder 15
1874		
Gardener, George A. v. Laffin and Rand Powder Co.	box 24	folder 1
H. Becker and Co. v. General Insurance Company of Dresden	box 24	folder 2
V.W. McFarlane and Co. v. Randolph and Charles Degenes	box 24	folder 3
Thebaud v. Albert Cobb	box 1	folder 16
Wood, Payson and Colgate v. C. Menelas	box 24	folder 4
1875		
Archer and Bull v. George W. Dow and Sons	box 58	folder 1
Brown, Ephraim D. v. Thomas Patten	box 24	folder 5
Bryant, William C. v. George Hawthorne	box 24	folder 6
Bryant, William C. v. George Hawthorne	box 2	folder 1
Busk, Joseph, Et Al. v. Edmund Pavenstedt, Et Al.	box 24	folder 7
Couisinery and Co. v. Wilkins and Co	box 24	folder 8
Holtz v. Renauld, Francois and Co.	box 24	folder 9
Hooker and Co. v. Isaac Jenks	box 24	folder 10
Lake, Mary E. and Eliza C. Doyle v. Francis Holbrook	box 58	folder 2
Lichtenberg, Charles v. Kunhardt and Co.	box 24	folder 11
Roosevelt, Mary and James v. Sullivan	box 24	folder 12
Sinclair and Milne v. Eli Charlier	box 24	folder 13

1876		
Boyd, James v. William Knoepfel	box 2	folder 2
Crowell, Gorham v. Franklin Woodruff, Et Al.	box 58	folder 3
Delemater, Cornelius and George Robinson v. George C. Martin	box 58	folder 4
Fickett, E.C. v. Royal Phelps, Et Al.	box 58	folder 5
Huntington, E.H.M. v. Warren Beebe and Co.	box 58	folder 6
Inhorst, Henrich v. Joseph Bensusan	box 58	folder 7
Inhorst, Henrich v. Joseph Bensusan <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 22	folder 1-2
Jewell, Harrison, and Co. v. Dentz, Mestre and Co.	box 58	folder 8
Lewisohn Brothers v. Stewart Brothers	box 58	folder 9
Marcus Hunter and Co. v. A.H. Solomon	box 58	folder 10
R.G. Mitchell and Co. v. Henry Marquardt	box 58	folder 11
1877		
A.H. Solomon and Co. v. George Palen and Co.	box 60	folder 1
Bauendahl and Co. v. Ferdinand Mayer and Co.	box 60	folder 2
Giles, William O. v. Edward Simon and Others <u>Physical Description</u> : (4 Folders)	box 25	folder 1-4
J.H. Winchester and Co. v. Galway and Casado	box 60	folder 3
Jones, B.H., Et Al. v. Edward Matthews <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 22	folder 3-4
Kirkland, John v. Sarah Barney Sturges	box 58	folder 12
Mayer and Co. v. Pastor, Walkinshaw and Co. <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 58	folder 13-14
Oakes, Edward v. John L. Howard	box 60	folder 4
Phelps, Dodge and Co. v. Great Western Steamship Line	box 60	folder 5
Schooner Willow Harp v. The Steamer Leopard <u>Physical Description</u> : (3 Folders)	box 325	folder 1-3
Schooner Willow Harp v. The Steamer Leopard Evidence	box 375	
Warner, DeForest and Co. v. Titus Sheard and Edward Burns	box 60	folder 6
White, J.J. v. Lane and Son	box 60	folder 7

878		
Balen, Peter, Et Al. v. Carl Ricknagel, Et Al.	box 24	folder 14
C.H. Mallory and Co. v. Murray, Ferris and Co.	box 60	folder 8
Havemeyer, Et Al. v. Alexandre, Et Al.	box 60	folder 9
James B. Grosvenor and Co. v. Henry Newman	box 2	folder 3
Lanman and Kemp v. Kraus and Stetten	box 24	folder 15
Ralli and Brothers v. Thomas E. Proctor	box 24	folder 16
Ward and Co. v. Clarke and Co.	box 24	folder 17
Wright and Co. v. Hartford Wool Co.	box 24	folder 18
Wright and Co. (Steamship Geddo) v. Munzinger and Pitzipio	box 60	folder 10
879		
Buckley, G.P. v. S. and W. Welsh	box 3	folder 3
Erie Railway Company v. Inman Steamship Co.	box 3	folder 2
Gallup, Albert S. v. John P. Kennedy and Cornelius K. Garrison	box 24	folder 19
Gallup, Albert S. v. John P. Kennedy and Cornelius K. Garrison	box 2	folder 4-5
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Lewis, Stark W. v. Emelio Puig	box 3	folder 5
Porter, Elihu v. Lyons and Bunns	box 2	folder 6
Porter, Elihu v. Lyons and Bunns	box 3	folder 1
Potts and Son v. Wheeler and Co.	box 3	folder 4
Wilson and Co. v. M.C. de Markoe	box 3	folder 6
880		
Archer, George E. v. The Receiver of the Central Rail Roads of New Jersey	box 3	folder 8
H.H. Swift and Co. v. Wilkinson Brothers and Co.	box 3	folder 10
Phelps, Dodge, and Co. v. S.S. Bristol	box 3	folder 11
Torrey, William A. v. Thom McFarlane	box 3	folder 13
Wakefield, Cyrus v. Wood, Payson and Colgate	box 3	folder 7
Watson, George S. v. Thomas Henderson	box 3	folder 9
Welsh, S. and W. v. Havemeyer and Elder	box 3	folder 12

Cohn, Lazarus and Co. v. The Bark Nordkyn and Owners	box 4	folder 1
Darrell and Co. v. Nix and Co.	box 4	folder 2
Evans, George v. E.S. Wheeler	box 4	folder 3
Rose, McAlpine and Co. v. National Steamship Co.	box 4	folder 4
1882		
George A. Alden and Co. v. H.K. and F.B. Thurber and Co.	box 4	folder 6
Gualterio de Vera Carril v. Enrique Crespo	box 4	folder 7
Leaycraft, Charles R. v. Robert A. Robertson	box 4	folder 5
Purcell, James	box 4	folder 8
1883		
The China and Japan Trading Company v. George G. Moore and Others	box 5	folder 1
Halsey, James v. Julia Tallmadge and Laura F. Field	box 5	folder 2
Mott, Samuel D. v. J.P. Billups and Co.	box 5	folder 3
1884 Gardner, Oliver L. v. Henry W. Knight	box 5	folder 4
1885		
Cutter, John D. v. Edward P. Cutter	box 5	folder 5
Semon Bache and Co. v. The British and Foreign Marine Insurance Company	box 5	folder 6
1888		
Cort, Nicholas L. v. Excelsior Manufacturing Co.	box 5	folder 8
Hydrogen Company of the United States v. Charles W. Whitney	box 5	folder 7
1889		
Arnoux, William H. v. E. Harrison Sanford	box 6	folder 3
Keen and Coates v. British and Foreign Insurance Company	box 6	folder 1
N.M. Lake Erie and Water Rail Road v. Central Rail Road Co. of New Jersey	box 6	folder 2
1890C.V. Pustau and Co. v. McKesson and Robbins	box 6	folder 4
1894 Talcott, James v. The Canton Mills Company	box 6	folder 5
1895		
Anrich, Emmanuel L. v. The Mercantile Credit Guarantee Company of New York	box 6	folder 6

Lisbon Falls Fibre Co. v. John Monroe and Wallace Muller	box 6	folder 7
1896McKesson and Robbins v. G. Gulbenkian and Co.	box 6	folder 8
1912		
F.S. Ellenberg and Co. v. Theo. Tiedemann and Sons	box 19	folder 1
Guggenheimer, Samuel H. v. Herman Heidelberg	box 19	folder 2
H and R Johnson v. Traitel Marble Co.	box 19	folder 3
W. E. Byles and Co., Ltd. v. William H. Stiles	box 19	folder 4
Wills and Marvin Co. v. Federal Terra Cotta Co.	box 19	folder 5
1913		
Blanchard, Isaac H. v. George M. Jacques	box 214	folder 1
Foundation Co. v. Heddon Construction Co.	box 6	folder 9
Fried, Mendelson and Co. v. Herman Wolfert	box 19	folder 6
Henry Kupfer and Co. v. M. Brukenfeld	box 19	folder 7
The Raw Products Co. v. L. Littlejohn and Co.	box 214	folder 2
Rosenfeld, Francis M. v. Max Tahl	box 214	folder 3
White Weld and Co. v. James Ottley	box 6	folder 10
W.R. Grace and Co. v. L. Littlejohn and Co.	box 19	folder 8
1914		
Alexander and Baldwin, Ltd. v. The Males Co.	box 19	folder 9
Everett, Heaney and Co. v. Clarence Whitman and Co., Inc.	box 36	folder 1
Greer, Benjamin W. v. W.H. Duval and Co.	box 36	folder 2
Henry Kruper and Co. v. Joseph Mistal	box 6	folder 11
Mill, Ernest H. v. United Dressed Beef Co.	box 36	folder 3
Philipp Bauer Co. v. Proctor Ellison Co.	box 37	folder 1
Union Novelty Braid Works and Aaron Grabelsky v. Boris Grabelsky	folder 2	
Union Novelty Braid Works and Aaron Grabelsky v. Boris Grabelsky	box 7	folder 1-2
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Wolf, George H. and Edward K. Kern v. Sol Friedman and Co.	box 36	folder 4
1015		

Champlain Silk Mills v. The Williamsburg Power Company	box 7	folder 3
Eastern Tanners Egg Yolk Company v. F.E. Atteux and Co.	box 37	folder 3
Eastern Tanners Egg Yolk Company v. F.E. Atteux and Co.	box 7	folder 4-5
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Halifax Paper Corp. v. D.S. Walton and Co.	box 37	folder 4
Pattison and Company v. Joseph Anderson and Company	box 185	folder 1
Salvatori and Terrami v. William R. Grace and Co.	box 37	folder 5
Schiff, Jacob H. v. William Baumgarten and Co.	box 37	folder 6
Scopes and Feustmann v. Julius C. Bernheim	box 185	folder 2
Suffern and Suffern v. Compagnie Marseillaise de Madagascar	box 37	folder 7
1916		
A.G. Hyde and Sons v. William Iselin and Co.	box 163	folder 3
Bradford Dyeing Association v. J. Sachs and Co.	box 163	folder 4
Edward Corning Co. v. The Trustees of Sailors' Snug Harbor	box 163	folder 5
Fried, Mendelson and Co. v. Adolph Deutsch	box 163	folder 6
Perkins-Goodwin Co. v. The Near Eastern Corp.	box 163	folder 7
1917		
American Molasses Co., New York City v. W.J. and J.G. Van Dusseldorp, Holland	box 7	folder 6
Andrew J. Robinson Company v. Trustees of the Sailors' Snug Harbor	box 21	folder 1
Annin and Co. v. Eddystone Manufacturing Co.	box 21	folder 2
Doull Miller Co. v. Gontard and Co.	box 21	folder 3
Esterson and Esterson v. Ostrander and Co., Inc.	box 21	folder 4
Giannakitsas, Johannis v. Brainard Commission Company	box 21	folder 5
H. Mann and Company v. Eagle Hosiery and Glove Company v. I.X.L. Hosiery Company	box 185	folder 3
Pattison and Company, Ltd. v. Berg Brothers	box 21	folder 6
Pattison and Company, Ltd. v. Berg Brothers	box 185	folder 4

Procter and Gamble Co. v. E.I. Dupont Denemours and Company	box 21	folder 7
Simon, G. v. Mart Waterman Co.	box 7	folder 7
Standard Transportation Co. v. Atlantic Mutual Insurance Co.	box 21	folder 8
Weinstein, Samuel v. Atlantic Cabinet Company	box 21	folder 9
William C. Atwater and Co., Inc. v. The Smokeless Fuel Company	box 7	folder 8
1918		
Albert Heymann and Co. v. Hatters Fur Exchange, Inc.	box 20	folder 1
Coleman and Company v. Steinfeld Brothers	box 20	folder 2
Goldsmith and Co., Inc. v. Georges Aubert	box 20	folder 3
Hudson, Joseph v. T. Richard Denzer and Joseph Nathan	box 20	folder 4
Masuda Trading Co., Ltd. v. Charles Seligman	box 20	folder 5
Wood and Selick, Inc. v. C. Caitucoli and Co., Inc.	box 20	folder 6
1919		
Constantinis, Minos v. Minot, Hooper and Company	box 34	folder 1
Fried, Mendelson and Company v. Harding, Tilton and Company	box 34	folder 2
J.H. Rossbach and Bros., Inc. v. The American Metal Transport Company, Inc.	box 34	folder 3
Marcus H. Harris and Lewis, Inc. v. Banden Colton Company	box 34	folder 4
Mexico Hide Company v. Lee and Company	box 34	folder 5
The Old Strand Chemical and Trading Company, Ltd. v. Magnus, Mabee and Reynard	box 34	folder 6
Schwarz, Max v. Warren Manufacturing Company	box 34	folder 7
Utica Gas and Electric Company v. U.S. Structural Company	box 34	folder 8
Walworth Bros., Inc. v. W. Filene's Sons Company	box 35	folder 1
W.F. Burns Export Corp. v. Edward Le Bas and Company, Inc.	box 35	folder 2
W. and S. Embroidery Company v. Ohta and Rubio	box 35	folder 3
1920	box 35	folder 4
Citizens Transportation Committee v. Enterprise Forwarding System, Inc.	box 35	folder 5

Frank Pinera Company, Inc. v. Janovici and Company, Inc.	box 35	folder 6
Innis, Speiden and Company, Inc. v. Ralph L. Fuller and Company, Inc.	box 35	folder 7
New York Paper Handlers Union v. Publishers Association of New York City	box 7	folder 9
Nielson Company v. Lamah Realty Corporation <u>Physical Description</u> : (3 Folders)	box 185	folder 5-7
Robin, Jones and Whitman, Ltd. v. The United States and Brazil Steamship Line	box 35	folder 7
Rogers-Pyatt Shellac Company v. E.D. Sassoon and Company	box 17	folder 10
S. Caplan and Company v. Alkan, Franz and Company	box 35	folder 8
Wood and Selick v. The Asiatic Commercial Company	box 35	folder 9
1921		
A. Rigg and Co. v. Louis Roessel and Co.	box 17	folder 1
Berkowitz, Herman v. Arbib and Houlberg, Inc.	box 184	folder 1
Celluloid Company v. Eastment and Kilbourn	box 17	folder 2
Commercial Union of America v. F. Souvignier	box 18	folder 1
Continental Can Company, Inc. v. Vulcan Detinning Co.	box 20	folder 7
E. Heller and Brother, Inc. v. S. Malsman	box 17	folder 3
Essenfeld and Lerner v. G. Colinet, 1921	box 7	folder 10
Hansen Produce Co. Inc. of New York City v. Republic of France	box 17	folder 4
Lai Ting Laing v. Caravel Company, Inc.	box 184	folder 2
L. Buchman Co., Inc. v. F.A. Cundill and Co.	box 17	folder 5
London and Brazilian Bank, Ltd. v. Seaboard National Bank of the City of New York	box 17	folder 6
Lorraine Manufacturing Co. v. Fried, Mendelson and Co.	box 17	folder 7
Remonda, Monserrat and Co. v. G.R. Crossley	box 17	folder 8
Seaboard National Bank v. Royal Bank of Canada	box 17	folder 9
Siff Brothers Co. v. Robert Baer Hat Company	box 18	folder 2
1922		
Buchanan, Jones and Company, Edward Nash and Louis Watjen, Ltd., Nash, Watjen and Bangs, Ltd. v. Carleton and Moffat	box 36	folder 5

Essenfeld and Lerner v. G. Colinet	box 163	folder 1
Fairfax Textile Mills, Inc. v. Samuel Sternberger Co., Inc.	box 18	folder 3
Francis A. Cundill and Company v. Schnabel, Gaumer and Company	box 36	folder 6
Jones Brothers, Ltd. v. Bardwil Brothers	box 163	folder 2
Karp Brothers, Inc. v. S.W. Bridges and Co., Inc.	box 214	folder 4
Kaufmann Brothers v. Chartered Export and Import Corp.	box 36	folder 7
Kaufmann Brothers v. Wah Chang Trading Corp.	box 36	folder 8
Levy, Robert and Herman Sviridow (Mascotte Dress Company) v. Anna Spencer, Inc.	box 36	folder 9
M. Wulfsohn and Company v. Morris Amdur and Son	box 36	folder 10
N. Sumergrade and Son v. S. Caplan and Co.	box 214	folder 5
National Surety Company v. Henry Kelly Brent	box 18	folder 4
Shawmut Corporation of Boston v. Habicht and Co. of New York	box 18	folder 5
923		
Brooklyn Finishing Company v. Malmut Brothers and Frank	box 7	folder 11
Cullom, Neil P. v. Arthur B. Raymond	box 37	folder 8
Flannery, L.V. v. Charles Schultze	box 8	folder 1
Garza Hermanos y Cia v. Lees Manufacturing Co.	box 7	folder 12
Golding, Barnett C. v. Safety Steamship Company	box 8	folder 2
Greek Government v. Bethlehem Steel Co.	box 8	folder 3
G.W.S. Patterson and Company v. Brinkmann and Company	box 37	folder 9
Hadjigrigorakis, M.G. v. Mutual Life Insurance Company	box 8	folder 4
Hosiery Manufacturers Corporation v. West Branch Knitting Co.	box 8	folder 5
James C. Lawton and Co. v. Burns, Elson Corporation	box 8	folder 6
Kimball, Virginia v. Herman Asendorf	box 37	folder 10
Morden Manufacturing Co. v. S. Hecht	box 8	folder 7
Rockefeller, John D., Jr. v. Frederick Putnam Platt and Charles Carsten Platt	box 37	folder 11

Boyd, Thomas v. Columbia Smelting and Refining Works	box 8	folder 8
B. Axel Company v. G. Colinet	box 26	folder 1
Busk and Daniels v. E. Lissberger Company	box 26	folder 2
Crompton-Richmond Company v. La Blanche Kiddy Clothes Company	box 26	folder 3
David L. Moss and Company, Inc. v. Jacob Benjamin	box 26	folder 4
Dias, L. Silva v. Barnet Leather Co.	box 8	folder 9
Furness Withy and Co. Ltd. v. Emerson-Brantingham Implement Co.	box 8	folder 10
Gary, Theo H. v. Mrs. Jennie Cohen	box 27	folder 1
Geo Wills and Sons, Ltd. v. I. Weingarten and Company, Inc./Geo Wills and Sons, Ltd. v. Mikado Importing Company	box 26	folder 5
Hesslein and Company, Inc. (as agents for Williamson Mills) v. A.E. Rothstein and Company, Inc.	box 26	folder 6-7
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
I.S. Sherman and Co. v. American Range and Foundry Co.	box 184	folder 3
John Barran and Sons, Ltd. v. Burdine and Sons	box 8	folder 11
Kenilworth Manufacturing Company, Inc. v. Peerless Cloth Exeming, Shrinking and Refinishing Works, Inc.	box 27	folder 2-3
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
N. Sumergrade and Sons v. Frank A. Hall and Sons	box 27	folder 4-5
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Palmer and Pierce v. Bush Terminal Company	box 27	folder 6
Rosenberg and Adler v. G. Colinet, Newchang through Phil Segalier, as agent	box 27	folder 7
Sota and Aznar v. The Cranberry Furnace Company	box 27	folder 8
Vanderhoef, Mrs. Fannie L. v. Deutscher Verein (The German Club)	box 26	folder 8
Wagner, Abraham v. Rene Arbib Company	box 26	folder 9
Wah Chang Trading Corporation v. A. Klipstein Company	box 28	folder 1
Wah Chang Trading Corporation v. Metal Alloys, Inc. <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 28	folder 2-3
William N. Matsner and Company v. Mendel Lazow	box 28	folder 4

Wonham, Bates and Goode Trading Corporation on behalf of Shewan, Tomes and Company v. Far East Importing Company, Inc.	box 28	folder 5
1925		
American Trading Company v. Crawford, Hammond and Company	box 28	folder 6-7
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
American Trading Company v. Crawford, Hammond and Company	box 38	folder 1
Benjamin, Jacob v. William N. Matsner and Co.	box 184	folder 4
Colinet, G. v. Joseph Buchsbaum	box 185	folder 8
Colinet, G. v. Joseph Schild, Inc.	box 184	folder 5
Colinet, G. v. Pottasch Bros., Inc and Sol Eichner	box 184	folder 6
Congregation Beth Israel v. Friestadt Underpinning Company	box 185	folder 9
Congregation Beth Israel v. Friestadt Underpinning Company	box 186	folder 1
David Kramer Inc. v. United States Plywood Company Inc.	box 38	folder 2
Edward Heymanson, Inc. v. China Hide and Produce Company Inc.	box 38	folder 3
F.W. Frost and Company, Inc. v. Knickerbocker Feather Company	box 38	folder 4
Greenstein, William v. William N. Matsner and Company	box 39	folder 1
Harry Levy Fur Co., Inc. v. Rene Arbib Co.	box 184	folder 7
Horwitz and Arbib, Inc. v. Schaffer Bros. and Samuels and Benjamin Miller	box 184	folder 8
Iwai and Company v. M. Gottesman and Company Inc.	box 38	folder 5
Landes, Herman v. J.C. Siegelman	box 186	folder 2
Max Schwarz Textile Corp. v. Manchester Textile Print Works, Inc.	box 184	folder 9
Novo Trading Corp. v. S. Rosenfelder and Son, Inc.	box 184	folder 10
Oneita Knitting Mills v. Robert Reis and Company	box 371	folder 3
Oneita Knitting Mills v. Robert Reis and Company	box 38	folder 6
Oneita Knitting Mills v. Robert Reis and Company <u>Physical Description</u> : (4 Folders)	box 39	folder 2-5
Oneita Waitting Mills v. Dahaut Dais and Company		

Physical Description: (3 Folders)	box 186	folder 3-5
Rosenberg, Abraham v. Meyer Vessell	box 8	folder 12
Schecter and Bro. v. Rene Arbib Co.	box 184	folder 11
Tappenbeck, William v. Wah Chang Trading Corporation	box 186	folder 6
Theodossiades, George D. v. M.B. Atheneos	box 8	folder 13
1926		
Cadwallader Gibson Company v. International Hardwood Company, Inc.	box 186	folder 7
Caldbeck, MacGregor Exports, Inc. v. Wah Chang Trading Corp.	box 39	folder 6
Colinet, G. v. Joseph Buchsbaum	box 186	folder 8
Consolidated Fur Corp. v. M.S. and K.A. Workman, Inc.	box 39	folder 7
Crockett, David B. v. Wm. Baumgarten and Company, Inc.	box 187	folder 1
Crompton-Richmond Company Inc. v. Princess Shirtwaist Mfg. Company	box 40	folder 1-2
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
The Duomares Corporation v. Habicht, Braun and Company	box 187	folder 2
E.J. Wile and Company v. Rentner, Lustig Company	box 187	folder 3
Fidelity Knitting Mills v. Mohawk Glove Corporation	box 187	folder 4
The First National Corporation v. North American Copper Company	box 187	folder 5-6
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Francis A. Cundill and Company v. Federated Metals Corp.	box 40	folder 3
Hearn, John J. v. Pease and Elliman, Inc.	folder 4	
Pacific Fur Corporation v. S. Rosenfelder and Son, Inc.	box 40	folder 5
Scheid, Theodore Mittelsten v. Compania Textilera Mexicana	box 187	folder 7
Serota, David v. Leon A. Serota and Alexander M. Serota <a href="https://penchanter.ncb//&gt; Physical Description">Physical Description</a> : (3 Folders)	box 188	folder 1-3
S. Rosenfelder and Son, Inc. v. William Grossman	box 40	folder 6
Tappenbeck, William v. Caldbeck, Macgregor Exports, Ltd.	box 188	folder 4

Thomas Moss and Sons, Ltd. v. Alfred L. Helwits and Company Inc.	box 40	folder 7
Tipton, Edna Sibley v. The Columbia Manicure Mfg. Company, Inc.	box 188	folder 5
1927		
Charles Jacobs and Company v. W.R. Loxley and Company	box 41	folder 1
Glueck, Emil aka Alexander Glueck v. The Mojo-Schey Company, Inc.	box 41	folder 2
Hanish, Love and Company as agents for China Trading Corporation v. Borchmann and Stoffregen	box 41	folder 3
Hatzel and Buehler, Inc. v. L.A. Dreyfus Company <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 41	folder 4-5
L.A. Dreyfus Company v. Thomas E. O'Brien	box 41	folder 6
Rothman, Philip v. Meyer Prince	box 41	folder 7
S. Rosenfelder and Son, Inc. v. M.S. and J.A. Workman, Inc.	box 41	folder 8
Tappenbeck, William v. Schnabel, Gaumer and Company	box 42	folder 1
Thomas Moss and Sons, Ltd. v. Charles Kurlan	box 8	folder 14
Thomas Moss and Sons, Ltd. v. Charles Kurland <u>Physical Description</u> : (3 Folders)	box 42	folder 2-4
Wah Chang Trading Corporation v. Dodwell and Company, Ltd.  Physical Description (2 Folders)	box 42	folder 5-6
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Benjamin Griffen Glass Corp. v. Menger, Ring and Weinstein, Inc.	box 42	folder 7
Cuba Distilling Company v. Penick and Ford, Ltd. Inc.	box 42	folder 8
Cuba Distilling Company v. Penick and Ford Ltd., Inc. <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 8	folder 15-16
Cuba Distilling Company v. Penick and Ford, Ltd. Inc.	box 29	folder 1
Erwin Feldspar Company Inc. v. Richmond Mica Company	box 29	folder 2
Graves-Quinn Corp. v. Alfred C. Kihn	box 149	folder 1-3
Physical Description: (3 Folders)		
H.H. Butler Stores, Inc. v. Grinnell Lithographic Company Inc.	box 29	folder 3
5		

John Auerbach and Company v. Lamport Textile Company	box 29	folder 4
Ridley Watts and Company v. Bayer Brothers Corporation	box 29	folder 5
1929		
Carrier Engineering Corporation v. Duplex Motion Picture Industries	box 29	folder 6-7
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
The Duz Company, Inc. v. Armour and Company <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 9	folder 1-2
Graves-Quinn Corporation v. Alfred c. Kihn	box 9	folder 3-4
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Graves-Quinn Corporation v. Alfred C. Kihn	box 29	folder 8
Punta Alegre Sugar Company v. Ralli Bros.	box 30	folder 1
Reiss, Massey and Co., Ltd. v. William J. Hauser	box 10	folder 1
Security Mills, Inc. v. Warwick Knitting Mills, Inc.	box 30	folder 2
1930		
Binger, Walter D. v. Cameron Clark	box 30	folder 3
Bingham and Co., Inc. v. William H. Waters, Inc.	box 10	folder 3
Blythebourne Rainbow Laundry, Inc. v. James Beggs and Company, Inc.  Physical Description: (2 Folders)	box 30	folder 4-5
Burns Brothers v. Sir Lea Corp., Et Al. <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 10	folder 4-5
Cheetham and Co. v. Edward M. Poons Co. of Kobe, Inc.	box 10	folder 6
Glen Eagle Corporation v. American Piece Dye Works, Inc.	box 11	folder 1
Grover, Albert v. Morris A. Podvesoker	box 10	folder 2
Marinello Company v. National Display Card Company	box 30	folder 6
Newburger, Henderson and Loeb v. Samuel Goldberg	box 11	folder 2
Newburger, Henderson and Loeb v. William S. Jacobs	box 11	folder 3
Peterson, George H. v. S.P. Stein	box 10	folder 7
Robert H. Foederer, Inc. v. Societe Française Du Haut Yang Tze	box 11	folder 4
S.S. Millinery Company, Inc. v. Bingham and Company as agents for Carlowitz and Company	box 30	folder 7

W.W. Farrier Company v. Armour and Company	box 11	folder 5
1931		
Bingham and Company, Inc. v. Arthur P. Morel	box 188	folder 6
Castle, Benjamin F. v. Atlantic Exhibition Company Inc.	box 30	folder 8
Foley Brothers v. Port of New York Authority <a href="Physical Description">Physical Description</a> : (2 Folders)	box 11	folder 6-7
Foley Brothers v. Port of New York Authority <a href="Physical Description">Physical Description</a> : (5 Folders)	box 12	folder 1-5
Foley Brothers v. Port of New York Authority	box 13	folder 1
The National Electric Heating Company, Inc. v. Acme Shellac Products Corporation	box 188	folder 7
Sacks and Spiegelman v. Guide System and Supply Company	box 13	folder 2
Van Iderstine Company v. American Agricultural Chemical Company	box 13	folder 3
Van Iderstine Company v. American Agricultural Chemical Company	box 31	folder 1-3
<u>Physical Description</u> : (3 Folders)		
Van Perlstein and Roeper Bosch v. Favorite Panama Hat Co., Inc.	box 13	folder 4
1932		
Doherr, Grimm and Company, Inc. v. Felix Ries	box 189	folder 1
Foley Brothers, Inc. v. The Port of New York Authority <a href="Physical Description">Physical Description</a> : (4 Folders)	box 31	folder 4-7
Foley Brothers, Inc. v. The Port of New York Authority <a href="Physical Description">Physical Description</a> : (7 Folders)	box 32	folder 1-7
Foley Brothers, Inc. v. The Port of New York Authority	box 33	folder 1
Ross, Minerva v. Newburger, Loeb and Company	box 189	folder 2
1933		
Edmond Weil, Inc. v. Alfred Popper <u>Physical Description</u> : (3 Folders)	box 33	folder 2-4
Eubank, Gerald A. v. Hardcastle Pennock	box 189	folder 3
J.H. Erstein and Bro. Inc. v. Frank and Dugan, Inc.	box 33	folder 5-6

A.S. Gold and Bro. Inc. v. Carlowitz-Bingham Fur Corp.	box 43	folder 1
Bingham and Company, Inc. as agents of Victorian Exports and Agencies Pty. Ltd. v. Nathan Berlin	box 43	folder 2
Chomsky, Nathan v. Morris Bushel	box 43	folder 3
Hartstein, Benjamin A. v. Samuel C. Lamport <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 43	folder 4-5
James Beggs and Company Inc. v. Industrial Dyeing Corp. of America	box 43	folder 6-7
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
M.S. and J.A. Workman, Inc. v. Carlowitz-Bingham Fur Corp.	box 43	folder 8
Reuter Brockelman and Company v. Mongolia Importing Company Inc.	box 44	folder 1
1935		
Silver, Abe J. v. Seligsberg and Company <a href="Physical Description">Physical Description</a> : (3 Folders)	box 44	folder 2-4
Silver, Abe J. v. Seligsberg and Company <a href="Physical Description">Physical Description</a> : (3 Folders)	box 14	folder 1-3
Silver, Abe J. v. Seligsberg and Company	box 184	folder 12
1936		
G. Sack Inc. v. Olivier Produce Corp.	box 44	folder 5
Leibowitz, Jacob v. Weingarten and Company	box 44	folder 6
Meon, Howard C. v. Meon Engineering Corp., Meon Manufacturing Corp., Edward A. Joyce and William E. Steinback	box 44	folder 7
Perkins Hosiery Mills v. National Spinning Co., Inc. <a href="Physical Description">Physical Description</a> : (2 Folders)	box 149	folder 4-5
Stein, Hall and Co., Inc v. Bingham and Company	box 14	folder 4
Zinke, Louis P. v. Meon Manufacturing Company	box 14	folder 5
1937		
Grantville Mills v. Beck Yarn Company	box 45	folder 1
J. Nadler and Son, Inc. v. Bingham and Company, Inc. as Agents for Colyer, Watson and Company	box 45	folder 2
S. Hirshenhorn and Sons v. Carl Wolter and Company	box 45	folder 3
S. Hirshenhorn and Sons v. J. Gully and Company	box 45	folder 4
Turberg, Philip v. Orvis Bros. and Company	box 45	folder 5-6

# **Physical Description:** (2 Folders)

1938		
Cox, Samuel Houghton v. David B. Crockett	box 46	folder 1-2
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Jordan Mills, Inc. v. Pearl Yarn Company	box 45	folder 7
Luckmer, Dacie H. v. Weingarten and Company	box 45	folder 8
Murray Oil Products Co., Inc. v. Carlowitz and Co.	box 16	folder 1
Shapiro, Louis J. v. Auto-Lift Corporation of America	box 14	folder 6
Shapiro, Louis J. v. Auto-Lift Corporation of America	box 15	folder 1-4
<u>Physical Description</u> : (4 Folders)		
S. Hirshenhorn and Sons v. G. Colinet	box 46	folder 3
1939		
Maliniac, Dr. Jacques W. v. Jackson Bros. Boesel and Company	box 46	folder 4-5
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Thomas, V.A. v. Skinner, Cook and Babcock, Inc.	box 46	folder 6
Wolf, Alfred M. v. Trans-Lux Corporation	box 47	folder 1-2
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1940		
Hanish, Love and Company v. Carl Wolter and Company	box 47	folder 3
W.R. Grace and Company v. Southern Rice Sales Company Inc.	box 47	folder 4
1941Edmund Weil, Inc. v. Sociedade Industrial E. Mercantil	box 16	folder 2
1942 Silverman, Sol v. Louis Fruchter	box 16	folder 3
1943A.A.Krejtman, Inc. v. Eugenio Lang, S.R.L.	box 16	folder 4
1946International Technic, Inc. v. Harold D. Regar  Physical Description: (3 Folders)	box 47	folder 5-7
1948 Poole, Sam and Nathan R. Kolansky v. T.O.D. Manufacturing Company	box 48	folder 1-2
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1949		
Carl M. Loeb Rhoades and Company v. Tecco Systems Company	box 48	folder 3
Orvis Brothers and Company v. Harry Copen	box 48	folder 4-5

## Physical Description: (2 Folders)

1951		
Burney, Mark v. Jacob Louis and Dorota Louis	box 48	folder 6
Orvis Brothers and Company v. Morton P. Allen and Agnes H. Allen	box 48	folder 7
1961H. Hentz and Company v. Rene D. Lyon	box 189	folder 4
1962Orvis Brothers and Company v. Irwin Keller	box 189	folder 5
1966		
Cyprus Mines Corporation v. Compania Espanola de Minas de Rio Tinto	box 189	folder 6
Jordan Mills Inc. v. Textile Jobbers Company	box 189	folder 7
Jordan Mills Inc. v. Textile Jobbers Company	box 190	folder 1
1969		
Orvis Brothers and Company v. Bobby McGuire	box 190	folder 2
Orvis Brothers and Company v. Donald F. Kern	box 190	folder 3
Orvis Brothers and Company v. Quentin Still	box 190	folder 4
1970Orvis Brothers and Company v. Victor J. Miller	box 190	folder 5
1971Orvis Brothers and Company v. James J. White	box 190	folder 6
1972Winslow, Cohu and Stetson, Inc. v. Charles M. Greenspan	box 190	folder 7
1973Hayden, Stone Inc. v. William L. Canfield	box 190	folder 8

# Subseries V.2: Case Correspondence, 1914-1930

## **Scope and Contents**

Correspondence prior and subsequent to the resolution of an arbitration case was retained by the Committee on Arbitration and can be found in Subseries 2. These files consist of parties seeking information concerning their case, as well as advice on arbitration processes. Some disputes were resolved without the need for formal arbitration. Materials found in this subseries date largely between 1922 and 1927, and are arranged by case number in accordance with the filing system used during the tenure of Committee Chairman Charles Bernheimer.

Title/Description	Instances	
Case1296, 1922	box 180	folder 1-2
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Case 1297, 1922	box 180	folder 3
Case 1298, 1922	box 180	folder 4
Case 1299, 1922	box 180	folder 5

Case 1300, 1922	box 180	folder 6
Case 1301, 1922	box 180	folder 7
Case 1302, 1922-1924	box 180	folder 8
Case 1305, 1922	box 180	folder 9
Case 1306, 1922	box 180	folder 10
Case 1307, 1922	box 180	folder 11
Case 1308, 1922	box 180	folder 12
Case 1310, 1922	box 180	folder 13
Case 1312, 1922	box 180	folder 14
Case 1313, 1922	box 180	folder 15
Case 1317, 1922	box 180	folder 16
Case 1319, 1922	box 180	folder 17
Case 1320, 1922-1923	box 180	folder 18
Case 1323, 1922	box 180	folder 19
Case 1327, 1922	box 180	folder 20
Case 1328, 1922-1927	box 180	folder 21
Case 1329, 1922	box 180	folder 22
Case 1330, 1922	box 180	folder 23
Case 1332, 1922-1923	box 180	folder 24
Case 1334, 1922	box 180	folder 25
Case 1335, 1922	box 180	folder 26
Case 1336, 1922	box 180	folder 27
Case 1337, 1922	box 180	folder 28
Case 1338, 1922	box 180	folder 29
Case 1339, 1922	box 180	folder 30
Case 1341, 1922-1923	box 180	folder 31
Case 1342, 1922-1923	box 180	folder 32
Case 1345, 1922-1923	box 180	folder 33
Case 1347, 1922	box 180	folder 34
Case 1349, 1922	box 180	folder 35
Case 1351, 1922-1924	box 180	folder 36
Cases 1352, 1362, 1364, 1930	box 180	folder 37

Case 1359, 1922	box 180	folder 38
Case 1360, 1922	box 180	folder 39
Case 1361, 1922-1924	box 180	folder 40
Case 1363, 1922	box 180	folder 41
Case 1364, 1930	box 181	folder 1
Case 1365, 1922	box 181	folder 2
Case 1366, 1922-1923	box 181	folder 3
Case 1367, 1922-1923	box 181	folder 4
Case 1368, 1922	box 181	folder 5
Case 1369, 1922	box 181	folder 6
Case 1370, 1922	box 181	folder 7
Case 1371, 1922-1924	box 181	folder 8
Case 1376, 1922	box 181	folder 9
Case 1377, 1922	box 181	folder 10
Case 1378, 1922	box 181	folder 11
Case 1379, 1922-1923	box 59	folder 1
Case 1380, 1922	box 59	folder 2
Case 1382, 1922	box 59	folder 3
Case 1384, 1922	box 59	folder 4
Case 1386, 1922-1923	box 59	folder 5
Case 1387, 1922	box 59	folder 6
Case 1388, 1922	box 59	folder 7
Case 1389, 1922-1923	box 59	folder 8
Case 1391, 1922-1923	box 59	folder 9
Case 1392, 1922	box 59	folder 10
Case 1393, 1922	box 59	folder 11
Case 1395, 1922-1923	box 59	folder 12
Case 1396, 1922-1923	box 59	folder 13
Case 1397, 1922	box 59	folder 14
Case 1400, 1922	box 59	folder 15
Case 1401, 1922-1923	box 59	folder 16
Case 1402, 1922	box 59	folder 17

Case 1403, 1922	box 59	folder 18
Case 1404, 1922-1923	box 59	folder 19
Case 1405, 1922-1925	box 59	folder 20
Case 1406, 1922	box 59	folder 21
Case 1407, 1919-1924	box 59	folder 22-23
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Case 1409, undated	box 181	folder 12
Case 1411, 1922	box 181	folder 13
Case 1412, 1922	box 181	folder 14
Case 1413, 1922	box 181	folder 15
Case 1414, 1922-1923	box 181	folder 16
Case 1416, 1922-1923	box 181	folder 17
Case 1419, 1922-1923	box 181	folder 18
Case 1420, 1922-1923	box 181	folder 19
Case 1424, 1922	box 181	folder 20
Case 1425, 1922-1927	box 181	folder 21
Case 1426, 1922-1923	box 181	folder 22
Case 1428, 1922-1923	box 181	folder 23
Case 1429, 1923	box 181	folder 24
Case 1430, 1922-1923	box 181	folder 25
Case 1436, 1923	box 181	folder 26
Case 1437, 1923	box 59	folder 24
Case 1438, 1922-1923	box 181	folder 27
Case 1439, 1923	box 181	folder 28
Case 1440, 1923	box 59	folder 25
Case 1442, 1922-1926	box 59	folder 26
Case 1443, 1923-1924	box 181	folder 29
Case 1444, 1923	box 181	folder 30
Case 1445, 1923	box 181	folder 31
Case 1446, 1923	box 59	folder 27
Case 1449, 1923	box 59	folder 28
Case 1450, 1923	box 181	folder 32

Case 1451, 1923	box 181	folder 33
Case 1453, 1923	box 181	folder 34
Case 1454, 1923	box 59	folder 29
Case 1455, 1923	box 181	folder 35
Case 1456, 1922-1923	box 181	folder 36
Case 1457, 1923	box 181	folder 37
Case 1458, 1922-1923	box 181	folder 38
Case 1459, 1923	box 181	folder 39
Case 1460, 1923	box 181	folder 40
Case 1461, 1923	box 181	folder 41
Case 1462, 1923	box 181	folder 42
Case 1464, 1923	box 181	folder 43
Case 1465, 1922-1923	box 181	folder 44
Case 1466, 1923	box 59	folder 30
Case 1467, 1923	box 59	folder 31
Case 1469, 1923-1924	box 59	folder 32
Case 1470, 1923-1924	box 181	folder 45
Case 1471, 1923	box 181	folder 46
Case 1472, 1923	box 181	folder 47
Case 1473, 1923	box 181	folder 48
Case 1474, 1923	box 181	folder 49
Case 1475, 1923	box 59	folder 33
Case 1476, 1923	box 181	folder 50
Case 1477, 1923	box 181	folder 51
Case 1478, 1923	box 181	folder 52
Case 1479, 1923	box 59	folder 34
Case 1480, 1923	box 181	folder 53
Case 1481, 1923	box 181	folder 54
Case 1482, 1923-1925	box 182	folder 1
Case 1483, 1923	box 182	folder 2
Case 1484, 1922-1923	box 182	folder 3
Case 1485, 1923	box 59	folder 35

Case 1486, 1923	box 182	folder 4
Case 1487, 1923	box 59	folder 36
Case 1488, 1923-1924	box 182	folder 5
Case 1489, 1923-1925	box 59	folder 37
Case 1490, 1923	box 59	folder 38
Case 1491, 1923	box 59	folder 39
Case 1493, 1923	box 182	folder 6
Case 1494, 1923	box 182	folder 7
Case 1495, 1923	box 59	folder 40
Case 1496, 1923	box 59	folder 41
Case 1498, 1923	box 59	folder 42
Case 1499, 1923	box 182	folder 8
Case 1500, 1923	box 59	folder 43
Case 1501, 1923	box 59	folder 44
Case 1502, 1923	box 182	folder 9
Case 1503, 1923	box 59	folder 45
Case 1504, 1923	box 59	folder 46
Case 1505, 1923	box 182	folder 10
Case 1512, 1923	box 59	folder 47
Case 1532, 1923	box 23	folder 17
Case 1536, 1929-1930	box 23	folder 18
Case 1537, 1923	box 182	folder 11
Case 1538, 1923	box 182	folder 12
Case 1539, 1923	box 182	folder 13
Case 1542, 1923	box 182	folder 14
Case 1547, 1923	box 182	folder 15
Case 1549, 1923	box 182	folder 16
Case 1550, 1922	box 182	folder 17
Case 1552, undated	box 182	folder 18
Case 1556, 1923	box 182	folder 19
Case 1557, 1923	box 182	folder 20
Case 1558, 1923	box 182	folder 21

Case 1560, 1923	box 182	folder 22
Case 1561, 1923	box 182	folder 23
Case 1563, 1922-1923	box 182	folder 24
Case 1567, 1923	box 182	folder 25
Case 1568, 1923	box 182	folder 26
Case 1570, 1923	box 182	folder 27
Case 1572, 1923	box 182	folder 28
Case 1574, 1923	box 182	folder 29
Case 1575, 1923-1924	box 182	folder 30
Case 1576, 1923	box 182	folder 31
Case 1579, 1923-1924	box 182	folder 32
Case 1580, 1923	box 182	folder 33
Case 1582, 1922-1925	box 182	folder 34
Case 1584, 1924	box 182	folder 35
Case 1585, 1923	box 182	folder 36
Case 1586, 1923-1924	box 182	folder 37
Case 1588, 1923	box 182	folder 38
Case 1589, 1923	box 182	folder 39
Case 1590, 1923?	box 182	folder 40
Case 1591, 1923	box 182	folder 41
Case 1593, 1923-1924	box 182	folder 42
Case 1594, 1923	box 182	folder 43
Case 1595, 1923-1924	box 182	folder 44
Case 1597, 1923	box 182	folder 45
Case 1601, 1923-1924	box 182	folder 46
Case 1607, 1923	box 183	folder 1
Case 1611, 1923-1924	box 183	folder 2
Case 1612, 1923-1924	box 183	folder 3
Case 1615, 1923-1924	box 183	folder 4
Case 1618, 1923	box 183	folder 5
Case 1623, 1924	box 183	folder 6
Case 1624, 1924	box 183	folder 7

Case 1625, 1924	box 183	folder 8
Case 1627, 1924	box 183	folder 9
Case 1629, 1924	box 183	folder 10
Case 1630, 1923-1924	box 183	folder 11
Case 1631, 1924	box 183	folder 12
Case 1632, 1924	box 183	folder 13
Case 1633, 1924-1925	box 183	folder 14
Cases 1633, 1334, 1635, 1924-1925	box 183	folder 15
Case 1636, 1924	box 183	folder 16
Case 1637, 1924	box 183	folder 17
Case 1639, 1924	box 183	folder 18
Case 1640, 1924	box 183	folder 19
Case 1641, 1924	box 183	folder 20
Case 1642, 1924	box 183	folder 21
Case 1643, 1924	box 183	folder 22
Case 1644, 1924	box 183	folder 23
Case 1646, 1924	box 183	folder 24
Case 1647, 1924	box 183	folder 25
Case 1648, 1924	box 183	folder 26
Case 1649, 1924	box 183	folder 27
Case 1650, 1924-1926	box 183	folder 28
Case 1651, 1924	box 183	folder 29
Case 1652, 1924	box 183	folder 30
Case 1653, 1924	box 183	folder 31
Case 1654, 1924	box 183	folder 32
Case 1655, 1924	box 49	folder 1
Case 1657, 1924	box 49	folder 2
Case 1658, 1924	box 49	folder 3
Case 1659, 1924	box 49	folder 4
Case 1660, 1924	box 49	folder 5
Case 1661, 1924	box 49	folder 6
Case 1662, 1924	box 49	folder 7

Case 1664, 1924	box 49	folder 8
Case 1665, 1924	box 49	folder 9
Case 1669, 1924	box 49	folder 10
Case 1670, 1924	box 49	folder 11
Case 1675, 1924	box 49	folder 12
Case 1678, 1924	box 49	folder 13
Case 1679, 1924	box 49	folder 14
Case 1680, 1924	box 49	folder 15
Case 1682, 1924	box 49	folder 16
Case 1683, 1924	box 49	folder 17
Case 1684, 1924	box 325	folder 4
Case 1685, 1924	box 49	folder 18
Case 1687, 1924	box 49	folder 19
Case 1688, 1924	box 49	folder 20
Case 1689, 1924	box 49	folder 21
Case 1690, 1924	box 49	folder 22
Case 1691, 1924	box 49	folder 23
Case 1692, 1924	box 49	folder 24
Case 1694, 1924	box 49	folder 25
Case 1696, 1924	box 49	folder 26
Case 1698, 1924	box 49	folder 27
Case 1699, 1924	box 49	folder 28
Case 1701, 1924	box 49	folder 29
Case 1703, 1924	box 49	folder 30
Case 1704, 1924-1925	box 49	folder 31
Case 1706, 1924	box 49	folder 32
Case 1708, 1924	box 49	folder 33
Case 1709, 1924	box 49	folder 34
Case 1710, 1925	box 49	folder 35
Case 1711, 1924	box 49	folder 36
Case 1714, 1924	box 49	folder 37
Case 1716, 1924-1925	box 49	folder 38

Case 1717, 1924       box 49       folder 39         Case 1718, 1924       box 49       folder 40         Case 1719, 1924       box 49       folder 41         Case 1721, 1925       box 49       folder 42         Case 1723, 1924       box 183       folder 33         Case 1724, 1924       box 183       folder 34         Case 1725, 1924       box 49       folder 43         Case 1729, 1924       box 50       folder 1         Case 1731, 1924       box 50       folder 2         Case 1732, 1925       box 50       folder 3         Case 1733, 1925       box 50       folder 4         Case 1734, 1924       box 50       folder 5         Case 1735, 1924       box 50       folder 6         Case 1736, 1924       box 50       folder 8         Case 1738, 1924       box 50       folder 8         Case 1739, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 9         Case 1742, 1924       box 50       folder 11         Case 1743, 1924       box 50       folder 11         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 12         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 13         Case 1747, 1924       box 183       folder 35 <th></th> <th></th> <th></th>			
Case 1719, 1924       box 49       folder 41         Case 1721, 1925       box 49       folder 42         Case 1723, 1924       box 183       folder 33         Case 1724, 1924       box 183       folder 34         Case 1725, 1924       box 49       folder 43         Case 1729, 1924       box 50       folder 1         Case 1731, 1924       box 50       folder 2         Case 1732, 1925       box 50       folder 3         Case 1733, 1925       box 50       folder 4         Case 1734, 1924       box 50       folder 5         Case 1735, 1924       box 50       folder 6         Case 1736, 1924       box 50       folder 7         Case 1738, 1924       box 50       folder 8         Case 1739, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 8         Case 1742, 1924       box 50       folder 10         Case 1743, 1924       box 50       folder 11         Case 1744, 1924       box 50       folder 12         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 13         Case 1747, 1924       box 183       folder 35         Case 1748, 1924       box 183       folder 35	Case 1717, 1924	box 49	folder 39
Case 1721, 1925       box 49       folder 42         Case 1723, 1924       box 183       folder 33         Case 1724, 1924       box 183       folder 34         Case 1725, 1924       box 49       folder 43         Case 1729, 1924       box 50       folder 1         Case 1731, 1924       box 50       folder 2         Case 1732, 1925       box 50       folder 3         Case 1733, 1925       box 50       folder 4         Case 1734, 1924       box 50       folder 5         Case 1735, 1924       box 50       folder 6         Case 1736, 1924       box 50       folder 7         Case 1738, 1924       box 50       folder 8         Case 1739, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 9         Case 1742, 1924       box 50       folder 10         Case 1743, 1924       box 50       folder 11         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 12         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 13         Case 1748, 1924       box 183       folder 35         Case 1748, 1924       box 183       folder 36	Case 1718, 1924	box 49	folder 40
Case 1723, 1924       box 183       folder 33         Case 1724, 1924       box 183       folder 34         Case 1725, 1924       box 49       folder 43         Case 1729, 1924       box 50       folder 1         Case 1731, 1924       box 50       folder 2         Case 1732, 1925       box 50       folder 3         Case 1733, 1925       box 50       folder 4         Case 1734, 1924       box 50       folder 5         Case 1735, 1924       box 50       folder 6         Case 1736, 1924       box 50       folder 7         Case 1738, 1924       box 50       folder 8         Case 1739, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 9         Case 1742, 1924       box 50       folder 10         Case 1743, 1924       box 50       folder 11         Case 1744, 1924       box 50       folder 12         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 13         Case 1747, 1924       box 183       folder 35         Case 1748, 1924       box 183       folder 36	Case 1719, 1924	box 49	folder 41
Case 1724, 1924       box 183       folder 34         Case 1725, 1924       box 49       folder 43         Case 1729, 1924       box 50       folder 1         Case 1731, 1924       box 50       folder 2         Case 1732, 1925       box 50       folder 3         Case 1733, 1925       box 50       folder 4         Case 1734, 1924       box 50       folder 5         Case 1735, 1924       box 50       folder 6         Case 1736, 1924       box 50       folder 7         Case 1738, 1924       box 50       folder 8         Case 1739, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 9         Case 1742, 1924       box 50       folder 10         Case 1743, 1924       box 50       folder 11         Case 1744, 1924       box 50       folder 12         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 13         Case 1747, 1924       box 183       folder 35         Case 1748, 1924       box 183       folder 36	Case 1721, 1925	box 49	folder 42
Case 1725, 1924       box 49       folder 43         Case 1729, 1924       box 50       folder 1         Case 1731, 1924       box 50       folder 2         Case 1732, 1925       box 50       folder 3         Case 1733, 1925       box 50       folder 4         Case 1734, 1924       box 50       folder 5         Case 1735, 1924       box 50       folder 6         Case 1736, 1924       box 50       folder 7         Case 1738, 1924       box 50       folder 8         Case 1739, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 9         Case 1742, 1924       box 50       folder 10         Case 1743, 1924       box 50       folder 11         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 12         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 13         Case 1747, 1924       box 183       folder 35         Case 1748, 1924       box 183       folder 36	Case 1723, 1924	box 183	folder 33
Case 1729, 1924       box 50       folder 1         Case 1731, 1924       box 50       folder 2         Case 1732, 1925       box 50       folder 3         Case 1733, 1925       box 50       folder 4         Case 1734, 1924       box 50       folder 5         Case 1735, 1924       box 50       folder 6         Case 1736, 1924       box 50       folder 7         Case 1738, 1924       box 50       folder 8         Case 1739, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 9         Case 1742, 1924       box 50       folder 10         Case 1743, 1924       box 50       folder 11         Case 1744, 1924       box 50       folder 12         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 13         Case 1747, 1924       box 183       folder 35         Case 1748, 1924       box 183       folder 36	Case 1724, 1924	box 183	folder 34
Case 1731, 1924       box 50       folder 2         Case 1732, 1925       box 50       folder 3         Case 1733, 1925       box 50       folder 4         Case 1734, 1924       box 50       folder 5         Case 1735, 1924       box 50       folder 6         Case 1736, 1924       box 50       folder 7         Case 1738, 1924       box 50       folder 8         Case 1739, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 9         Case 1742, 1924       box 50       folder 10         Case 1743, 1924       box 50       folder 11         Case 1744, 1924       box 50       folder 12         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 13         Case 1747, 1924       box 183       folder 35         Case 1748, 1924       box 183       folder 36	Case 1725, 1924	box 49	folder 43
Case 1732, 1925       box 50       folder 3         Case 1733, 1925       box 50       folder 4         Case 1734, 1924       box 50       folder 5         Case 1735, 1924       box 50       folder 6         Case 1736, 1924       box 50       folder 7         Case 1738, 1924       box 50       folder 8         Case 1739, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 9         Case 1742, 1924       box 50       folder 10         Case 1744, 1924       box 50       folder 12         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 13         Case 1747, 1924       box 183       folder 35         Case 1748, 1924       box 183       folder 36	Case 1729, 1924	box 50	folder 1
Case 1733, 1925       box 50       folder 4         Case 1734, 1924       box 50       folder 5         Case 1735, 1924       box 50       folder 6         Case 1736, 1924       box 50       folder 7         Case 1738, 1924       box 50       folder 8         Case 1739, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 9         Case 1742, 1924       box 50       folder 10         Case 1743, 1924       box 50       folder 11         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 12         Case 1747, 1924       box 183       folder 35         Case 1748, 1924       box 183       folder 36	Case 1731, 1924	box 50	folder 2
Case 1734, 1924       box 50       folder 5         Case 1735, 1924       box 50       folder 6         Case 1736, 1924       box 50       folder 7         Case 1738, 1924       box 50       folder 8         Case 1739, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 9         Case 1742, 1924       box 50       folder 10         Case 1743, 1924       box 50       folder 11         Case 1744, 1924       box 50       folder 12         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 13         Case 1747, 1924       box 183       folder 35         Case 1748, 1924       box 183       folder 36	Case 1732, 1925	box 50	folder 3
Case 1735, 1924       box 50       folder 6         Case 1736, 1924       box 50       folder 7         Case 1738, 1924       box 50       folder 8         Case 1739, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 9         Case 1742, 1924       box 50       folder 10         Case 1743, 1924       box 50       folder 11         Case 1744, 1924       box 50       folder 12         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 13         Case 1747, 1924       box 183       folder 35         Case 1748, 1924       box 183       folder 36	Case 1733, 1925	box 50	folder 4
Case 1736, 1924       box 50       folder 7         Case 1738, 1924       box 50       folder 8         Case 1739, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 9         Case 1742, 1924       box 50       folder 10         Case 1743, 1924       box 50       folder 11         Case 1744, 1924       box 50       folder 12         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 13         Case 1747, 1924       box 183       folder 35         Case 1748, 1924       box 183       folder 36	Case 1734, 1924	box 50	folder 5
Case 1738, 1924 box 50 folder 8  Case 1739, 1924-1925 box 50 folder 9  Case 1742, 1924 box 50 folder 10  Case 1743, 1924 box 50 folder 11  Case 1744, 1924 box 50 folder 12  Case 1746, 1924-1925 box 50 folder 13  Case 1747, 1924 box 183 folder 35  Case 1748, 1924 box 183 folder 36	Case 1735, 1924	box 50	folder 6
Case 1739, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 9         Case 1742, 1924       box 50       folder 10         Case 1743, 1924       box 50       folder 11         Case 1744, 1924       box 50       folder 12         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 13         Case 1747, 1924       box 183       folder 35         Case 1748, 1924       box 183       folder 36	Case 1736, 1924	box 50	folder 7
Case 1742, 1924       box 50       folder 10         Case 1743, 1924       box 50       folder 11         Case 1744, 1924       box 50       folder 12         Case 1746, 1924-1925       box 50       folder 13         Case 1747, 1924       box 183       folder 35         Case 1748, 1924       box 183       folder 36	Case 1738, 1924	box 50	folder 8
Case 1743, 1924 box 50 folder 11  Case 1744, 1924 box 50 folder 12  Case 1746, 1924-1925 box 50 folder 13  Case 1747, 1924 box 183 folder 35  Case 1748, 1924 box 183 folder 36	Case 1739, 1924-1925	box 50	folder 9
Case 1744, 1924 box 50 folder 12  Case 1746, 1924-1925 box 50 folder 13  Case 1747, 1924 box 183 folder 35  Case 1748, 1924 box 183 folder 36	Case 1742, 1924	box 50	folder 10
Case 1746, 1924-1925 box 50 folder 13 Case 1747, 1924 box 183 folder 35 Case 1748, 1924 box 183 folder 36	Case 1743, 1924	box 50	folder 11
Case 1747, 1924 box 183 folder 35 Case 1748, 1924 box 183 folder 36	Case 1744, 1924	box 50	folder 12
Case 1748, 1924 box 183 folder 36	Case 1746, 1924-1925	box 50	folder 13
,	Case 1747, 1924	box 183	folder 35
	Case 1748, 1924	box 183	folder 36
Case 1752, 1924-1925 box 183 folder 37	Case 1752, 1924-1925	box 183	folder 37
Case 1754, 1924 box 183 folder 38	Case 1754, 1924	box 183	folder 38
Case 1756, 1924 box 183 folder 39	Case 1756, 1924	box 183	folder 39
Case 1758, 1924 box 183 folder 40	Case 1758, 1924	box 183	folder 40
Case 1759, 1924 box 183 folder 41	Case 1759, 1924	box 183	folder 41
Case 1762, 1925 box 183 folder 42	Case 1762, 1925	box 183	folder 42
Case 1763, 1924 box 183 folder 43	Case 1763, 1924	box 183	folder 43
	Case 1764, 1924	box 183	folder 44
Case 1764, 1924 box 183 folder 44	Case 1766, 1924	box 183	folder 45
,		box 50	folder 14

Case 1768, 1924	box 50	folder 15
Case 1770, 1924	box 50	folder 16
Case 1771, 1924-1925	box 50	folder 17
Case 1772, 1924	box 50	folder 18
Case 1773, 1924	box 50	folder 19
Case 1775, 1924	box 50	folder 20
Case 1779, 1924	box 50	folder 21
Case 1781, 1924	box 50	folder 22
Case 1782, 1924	box 50	folder 23
Case 1784, 1924	box 50	folder 24
Case 1788, 1924	box 50	folder 25
Case 1789, 1924	box 50	folder 26
Case 1792, 1924	box 50	folder 27
Case 1793, 1924-1925	box 50	folder 28
Case 1795, 1924-1925	box 50	folder 29
Case 1797, 1924-1925	box 50	folder 30
Case 1798, 1924	box 50	folder 31
Case 1799, 1924	box 50	folder 32
Case 1800, 1924	box 50	folder 33
Case 1802, 1924-1927	box 50	folder 34
Case 1803, 1924	box 50	folder 35
Case 1805, 1924-1925	box 50	folder 36
Case 1806, 1924-1925	box 50	folder 37
Case 1807, 1924-1925	box 50	folder 38
Case 1810, 1924	box 50	folder 39
Case 1811, 1924-1925	box 50	folder 40
Case 1812, 1925	box 50	folder 41
Case 1813, 1925	box 50	folder 42
Case 1814, 1925	box 50	folder 43
Case 1815, 1925	box 50	folder 44
Case 1819, 1925	box 50	folder 45
Case 1820, 1925	box 51	folder 1

Case 1821, 1925         box 51         folder 2           Case 1822, 1925         box 51         folder 3           Case 1824, 1925         box 51         folder 4           Case 1826, 1926-1927         box 51         folder 5           Case 1828, 1925         box 51         folder 6           Case 1829, 1925         box 51         folder 7           Case 1830, 1925         box 51         folder 8           Case 1831, 1925         box 51         folder 9           Case 1832, 1925         box 51         folder 10           Case 1833, 1925         box 51         folder 10           Case 1833, 1925         box 51         folder 11           Case 1835, 1925         box 51         folder 12           Case 1839, 1925         box 51         folder 13           Case 1840, 1925         box 51         folder 13           Case 1840, 1925         box 51         folder 14           Case 1841, 1925         box 51         folder 15           Case 1842, 1926         box 51         folder 17           Case 1843, 1925         box 51         folder 17           Case 1846, 1925         box 51         folder 19           Case 1846, 1925         box 51         folder 20 <th></th> <th></th> <th></th>			
Case 1824, 1925       box 51       folder 4         Case 1826, 1926-1927       box 51       folder 5         Case 1828, 1925       box 51       folder 6         Case 1839, 1925       box 51       folder 7         Case 1830, 1925       box 51       folder 8         Case 1831, 1925       box 51       folder 9         Case 1832, 1925       box 51       folder 10         Case 1833, 1925       box 51       folder 11         Case 1835, 1925       box 51       folder 12         Case 1836, 1925       box 51       folder 12         Case 1839, 1925       box 51       folder 13         Case 1840, 1925       box 51       folder 14         Case 1841, 1925       box 51       folder 16         Case 1842, 1926       box 51       folder 16         Case 1843, 1925       box 51       folder 17         Case 1845, 1925       box 51       folder 18         Case 1846, 1925       box 51       folder 19         Case 1846, 1925       box 51       folder 20         Case 1846, 1925       box 51       folder 21         Case 1856, 1925       box 51       folder 22         Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 22 <td>Case 1821, 1925</td> <td>box 51</td> <td>folder 2</td>	Case 1821, 1925	box 51	folder 2
Case 1826, 1926-1927         box 51         folder 5           Case 1828, 1925         box 51         folder 6           Case 1830, 1925         box 51         folder 7           Case 1830, 1925         box 51         folder 8           Case 1831, 1925         box 51         folder 9           Case 1832, 1925         box 51         folder 10           Case 1833, 1925         box 51         folder 11           Case 1835, 1925         box 51         folder 12           Case 1836, 1925         box 51         folder 12           Case 1839, 1925         box 51         folder 13           Case 1840, 1925         box 51         folder 14           Case 1841, 1925         box 51         folder 15           Case 1842, 1926         box 51         folder 16           Case 1843, 1925         box 51         folder 17           Case 1845, 1925         box 51         folder 18           Case 1846, 1925         box 51         folder 18           Case 1846, 1925         box 51         folder 20           Case 1849, 1925         box 51         folder 20           Case 1858, 1926         box 51         folder 22           Case 1860, 1925         box 51         folder 23	Case 1822, 1925	box 51	folder 3
Case 1828, 1925         box 51         folder 6           Case 1830, 1925         box 51         folder 7           Case 1830, 1925         box 51         folder 8           Case 1831, 1925         box 51         folder 9           Case 1832, 1925         box 51         folder 10           Case 1833, 1925         box 51         folder 11           Case 1835, 1925         box 51         folder 12           Case 1839, 1925         box 51         folder 13           Case 1839, 1925         box 51         folder 14           Case 1840, 1925         box 51         folder 14           Case 1841, 1925         box 51         folder 16           Case 1842, 1926         box 51         folder 16           Case 1843, 1925         box 51         folder 18           Case 1845, 1925         box 51         folder 19           Case 1846, 1925         box 51         folder 20           Case 1849, 1925         box 51         folder 20           Case 1849, 1925         box 51         folder 21           Case 1858, 1926         box 51         folder 22           Case 1860, 1925         box 51         folder 23           Case 1861, 1925         box 51         folder 24 <td>Case 1824, 1925</td> <td>box 51</td> <td>folder 4</td>	Case 1824, 1925	box 51	folder 4
Case 1829, 1925       box 51       folder 7         Case 1830, 1925       box 51       folder 8         Case 1831, 1925       box 51       folder 9         Case 1832, 1925       box 51       folder 10         Case 1833, 1925       box 51       folder 11         Case 1835, 1925       box 51       folder 12         Case 1836, 1925       box 51       folder 13         Case 1839, 1925       box 51       folder 14         Case 1840, 1925       box 51       folder 15         Case 1841, 1925       box 51       folder 16         Case 1842, 1926       box 51       folder 17         Case 1843, 1925       box 51       folder 18         Case 1845, 1925       box 51       folder 19         Case 1846, 1925       box 51       folder 20         Case 1849, 1925       box 51       folder 21         Case 1856, 1925       box 51       folder 22         Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 22         Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 23         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1867, 1925       box 51       folder 28	Case 1826, 1926-1927	box 51	folder 5
Case 1830, 1925       box 51       folder 8         Case 1831, 1925       box 51       folder 9         Case 1832, 1925       box 51       folder 10         Case 1833, 1925       box 51       folder 11         Case 1835, 1925       box 51       folder 12         Case 1836, 1925       box 51       folder 13         Case 1839, 1925       box 51       folder 14         Case 1840, 1925       box 51       folder 15         Case 1841, 1925       box 51       folder 16         Case 1842, 1926       box 51       folder 17         Case 1843, 1925       box 51       folder 18         Case 1845, 1925       box 51       folder 19         Case 1846, 1925       box 51       folder 20         Case 1849, 1925       box 51       folder 21         Case 1856, 1925       box 51       folder 22         Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 22         Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 23         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1868, 1925       box 51       folder 29	Case 1828, 1925	box 51	folder 6
Case 1831, 1925 box 51 folder 9  Case 1832, 1925 box 51 folder 10  Case 1833, 1925 box 51 folder 11  Case 1835, 1925 box 51 folder 12  Case 1836, 1925 box 51 folder 13  Case 1839, 1925 box 51 folder 14  Case 1840, 1925 box 51 folder 15  Case 1841, 1925 box 51 folder 16  Case 1842, 1926 box 51 folder 17  Case 1843, 1925 box 51 folder 17  Case 1844, 1925 box 51 folder 19  Case 1846, 1925 box 51 folder 19  Case 1846, 1925 box 51 folder 20  Case 1846, 1925 box 51 folder 21  Case 1856, 1925 box 51 folder 21  Case 1858, 1926 box 51 folder 22  Case 1860, 1925 box 51 folder 22  Case 1860, 1925 box 51 folder 23  Case 1860, 1925 box 51 folder 24  Case 1861, 1925 box 51 folder 25  Case 1866, 1925 box 51 folder 26  Case 1866, 1925 box 51 folder 27  Case 1867, 1925 box 51 folder 29  Case 1868, 1925 box 51 folder 29  Case 1867, 1925 box 51 folder 30  Case 1871, 1925 box 51 folder 30  Case 1871, 1925 box 51 folder 30  Case 1871, 1925 box 51 folder 30	Case 1829, 1925	box 51	folder 7
Case 1832, 1925 box 51 folder 10  Case 1833, 1925 box 51 folder 11  Case 1835, 1925 box 51 folder 12  Case 1836, 1925 box 51 folder 13  Case 1839, 1925 box 51 folder 14  Case 1840, 1925 box 51 folder 15  Case 1841, 1925 box 51 folder 16  Case 1842, 1926 box 51 folder 17  Case 1843, 1925 box 51 folder 18  Case 18443, 1925 box 51 folder 19  Case 1846, 1925 box 51 folder 20  Case 1846, 1925 box 51 folder 20  Case 1846, 1925 box 51 folder 21  Case 1858, 1926 box 51 folder 21  Case 1858, 1926 box 51 folder 22  Case 1860, 1925 box 51 folder 22  Case 1860, 1925 box 51 folder 23  Case 1861, 1925 box 51 folder 23  Case 1866, 1925 box 51 folder 25  Case 1866, 1925 box 51 folder 25  Case 1868, 1925 box 51 folder 25  Case 1868, 1925 box 51 folder 26  Case 1868, 1925 box 51 folder 27  Case 1868, 1925 box 51 folder 29  Case 1868, 1925 box 51 folder 29  Case 1871, 1925 box 51 folder 30	Case 1830, 1925	box 51	folder 8
Case 1833, 1925       box 51       folder 12         Case 1836, 1925       box 51       folder 12         Case 1839, 1925       box 51       folder 13         Case 1840, 1925       box 51       folder 14         Case 1840, 1925       box 51       folder 15         Case 1841, 1925       box 51       folder 16         Case 1842, 1926       box 51       folder 17         Case 1843, 1925       box 51       folder 18         Case 1845, 1925       box 51       folder 19         Case 1846, 1925       box 51       folder 20         Case 1849, 1925       box 51       folder 21         Case 1856, 1925       box 183       folder 46         Case 1858, 1926       box 51       folder 22         Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 23         Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1862, 1925       box 51       folder 25         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1867, 1925       box 51       folder 28         Case 1868, 1925       box 51       folder 29         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 31 </td <td>Case 1831, 1925</td> <td>box 51</td> <td>folder 9</td>	Case 1831, 1925	box 51	folder 9
Case 1835, 1925       box 51       folder 12         Case 1836, 1925       box 51       folder 13         Case 1839, 1925       box 51       folder 14         Case 1840, 1925       box 51       folder 15         Case 1841, 1925       box 51       folder 16         Case 1842, 1926       box 51       folder 17         Case 1843, 1925       box 51       folder 18         Case 1845, 1925       box 51       folder 19         Case 1846, 1925       box 51       folder 20         Case 1849, 1925       box 51       folder 21         Case 1856, 1925       box 183       folder 46         Case 1858, 1926       box 51       folder 22         Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 23         Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1862, 1925       box 51       folder 25         Case 1863, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 28         Case 1867, 1925       box 51       folder 29         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 31	Case 1832, 1925	box 51	folder 10
Case 1836, 1925       box 51       folder 13         Case 1839, 1925       box 51       folder 14         Case 1840, 1925       box 51       folder 15         Case 1841, 1925       box 51       folder 16         Case 1842, 1926       box 51       folder 17         Case 1843, 1925       box 51       folder 18         Case 1845, 1925       box 51       folder 19         Case 1846, 1925       box 51       folder 20         Case 1849, 1925       box 51       folder 21         Case 1856, 1925       box 183       folder 46         Case 1858, 1926       box 51       folder 22         Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 23         Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1862, 1925       box 51       folder 25         Case 1863, 1925       box 51       folder 26         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 28         Case 1867, 1925       box 51       folder 29         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 31	Case 1833, 1925	box 51	folder 11
Case 1839, 1925       box 51       folder 14         Case 1840, 1925       box 51       folder 15         Case 1841, 1925       box 51       folder 16         Case 1842, 1926       box 51       folder 17         Case 1843, 1925       box 51       folder 18         Case 1845, 1925       box 51       folder 19         Case 1846, 1925       box 51       folder 20         Case 1849, 1925       box 51       folder 21         Case 1856, 1925       box 183       folder 46         Case 1858, 1926       box 51       folder 22         Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 23         Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1862, 1925       box 51       folder 25         Case 1863, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 28         Case 1868, 1925       box 51       folder 29         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 31	Case 1835, 1925	box 51	folder 12
Case 1840, 1925       box 51       folder 15         Case 1841, 1925       box 51       folder 16         Case 1842, 1926       box 51       folder 17         Case 1843, 1925       box 51       folder 18         Case 1845, 1925       box 51       folder 19         Case 1846, 1925       box 51       folder 20         Case 1849, 1925       box 51       folder 21         Case 1856, 1925       box 183       folder 46         Case 1858, 1926       box 51       folder 22         Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 23         Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1862, 1925       box 51       folder 25         Case 1863, 1925       box 51       folder 26         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 28         Case 1868, 1925       box 51       folder 29         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 31	Case 1836, 1925	box 51	folder 13
Case 1841, 1925       box 51       folder 16         Case 1842, 1926       box 51       folder 17         Case 1843, 1925       box 51       folder 18         Case 1845, 1925       box 51       folder 19         Case 1846, 1925       box 51       folder 20         Case 1849, 1925       box 51       folder 21         Case 1856, 1925       box 183       folder 46         Case 1858, 1926       box 51       folder 22         Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 23         Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1862, 1925       box 51       folder 25         Case 1863, 1925       box 51       folder 26         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1867, 1925       box 51       folder 28         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 31	Case 1839, 1925	box 51	folder 14
Case 1842, 1926       box 51       folder 17         Case 1843, 1925       box 51       folder 18         Case 1845, 1925       box 51       folder 19         Case 1846, 1925       box 51       folder 20         Case 1849, 1925       box 51       folder 21         Case 1856, 1925       box 183       folder 46         Case 1858, 1926       box 51       folder 22         Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 23         Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1862, 1925       box 51       folder 25         Case 1863, 1925       box 51       folder 26         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1867, 1925       box 51       folder 28         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 29         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 31	Case 1840, 1925	box 51	folder 15
Case 1843, 1925       box 51       folder 18         Case 1845, 1925       box 51       folder 19         Case 1846, 1925       box 51       folder 20         Case 1849, 1925       box 51       folder 21         Case 1856, 1925       box 183       folder 46         Case 1858, 1926       box 51       folder 22         Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 23         Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1862, 1925       box 51       folder 25         Case 1863, 1925       box 51       folder 26         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1867, 1925       box 51       folder 28         Case 1868, 1925       box 51       folder 29         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 31	Case 1841, 1925	box 51	folder 16
Case 1845, 1925       box 51       folder 19         Case 1846, 1925       box 51       folder 20         Case 1849, 1925       box 51       folder 21         Case 1856, 1925       box 183       folder 46         Case 1858, 1926       box 51       folder 22         Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 23         Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1862, 1925       box 51       folder 25         Case 1863, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1867, 1925       box 51       folder 28         Case 1868, 1925       box 51       folder 29         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 31	Case 1842, 1926	box 51	folder 17
Case 1846, 1925       box 51       folder 20         Case 1849, 1925       box 51       folder 21         Case 1856, 1925       box 183       folder 46         Case 1858, 1926       box 51       folder 22         Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 23         Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1862, 1925       box 51       folder 25         Case 1863, 1925       box 51       folder 26         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1867, 1925       box 51       folder 28         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 31	Case 1843, 1925	box 51	folder 18
Case 1849, 1925       box 51       folder 21         Case 1856, 1925       box 183       folder 46         Case 1858, 1926       box 51       folder 22         Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 23         Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1862, 1925       box 51       folder 25         Case 1863, 1925       box 51       folder 26         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1867, 1925       box 51       folder 28         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 31	Case 1845, 1925	box 51	folder 19
Case 1856, 1925       box 183       folder 46         Case 1858, 1926       box 51       folder 22         Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 23         Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1862, 1925       box 51       folder 25         Case 1863, 1925       box 51       folder 26         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1867, 1925       box 51       folder 28         Case 1868, 1925       box 51       folder 29         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 31	Case 1846, 1925	box 51	folder 20
Case 1858, 1926       box 51       folder 22         Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 23         Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1862, 1925       box 51       folder 25         Case 1863, 1925       box 51       folder 26         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1867, 1925       box 51       folder 28         Case 1868, 1925       box 51       folder 29         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 31	Case 1849, 1925	box 51	folder 21
Case 1860, 1925       box 51       folder 23         Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1862, 1925       box 51       folder 25         Case 1863, 1925       box 51       folder 26         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1867, 1925       box 51       folder 28         Case 1868, 1925       box 51       folder 29         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 31	Case 1856, 1925	box 183	folder 46
Case 1861, 1925       box 51       folder 24         Case 1862, 1925       box 51       folder 25         Case 1863, 1925       box 51       folder 26         Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1867, 1925       box 51       folder 28         Case 1868, 1925       box 51       folder 29         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 31	Case 1858, 1926	box 51	folder 22
Case 1862, 1925  Case 1863, 1925  Case 1866, 1925  Case 1867, 1925  Case 1868, 1925  Case 1870, 1925  Case 1871, 1925  box 51  folder 25  box 51  folder 26  box 51  folder 27  folder 28  box 51  folder 29  Case 1870, 1925  box 51  folder 30  Case 1871, 1925	Case 1860, 1925	box 51	folder 23
Case 1863, 1925 box 51 folder 26  Case 1866, 1925 box 51 folder 27  Case 1867, 1925 box 51 folder 28  Case 1868, 1925 box 51 folder 29  Case 1870, 1925 box 51 folder 30  Case 1871, 1925 box 51 folder 31	Case 1861, 1925	box 51	folder 24
Case 1866, 1925       box 51       folder 27         Case 1867, 1925       box 51       folder 28         Case 1868, 1925       box 51       folder 29         Case 1870, 1925       box 51       folder 30         Case 1871, 1925       box 51       folder 31	Case 1862, 1925	box 51	folder 25
Case 1867, 1925 box 51 folder 28  Case 1868, 1925 box 51 folder 29  Case 1870, 1925 box 51 folder 30  Case 1871, 1925 box 51 folder 31	Case 1863, 1925	box 51	folder 26
Case 1868, 1925 box 51 folder 29  Case 1870, 1925 box 51 folder 30  Case 1871, 1925 box 51 folder 31	Case 1866, 1925	box 51	folder 27
Case 1870, 1925 box 51 folder 30 Case 1871, 1925 box 51 folder 31	Case 1867, 1925	box 51	folder 28
Case 1871, 1925 box 51 folder 31	Case 1868, 1925	box 51	folder 29
,	Case 1870, 1925	box 51	folder 30
Case 1872, 1925 box 51 folder 32	Case 1871, 1925	box 51	folder 31
	Case 1872, 1925	box 51	folder 32

Case 1874, 1925  Case 1875, 1925  Case 1876, 1925  Case 1877, 1925  Case 1878, 1925  Case 1878, 1925  Case 1878, 1925  Case 1880, 1925  Case 1882, 1925-1926  Case 1883, 1925  Case 1884, 1925  Case 1885, 1925  Case 1888, 1925  Case 1889, 1925  Case 1889, 1925  Case 1889, 1925  Case 1889, 1925  Case 1890, 1925  Case 1902, 1925  Case 1903, 1925  Case 1903, 1925  Case 1904, 1925  Case 1905, 1925  Case 1905, 1925  Case 1906, 1925  Case 1908, 1925  Case 1915, 1925  Case 1911, 1925  Case 1915, 1925  Dox 52  Folder 3			
Case 1876, 1925 box 51 folder 35  Case 1877, 1925 box 51 folder 36  Case 1878, 1925 box 51 folder 37  Case 1880, 1925 box 51 folder 38  Case 1882, 1925-1926 box 51 folder 40  Case 1883, 1925 box 51 folder 41  Case 1884, 1925 box 51 folder 41  Case 1888, 1925 box 51 folder 42  Case 1888, 1925 box 51 folder 43  Case 1889, 1925 box 51 folder 44  Case 1890, 1925 box 183 folder 47  Case 1891, 1925-1926 box 183 folder 48  Case 1892, 1925 box 183 folder 49  Case 1894, 1925 box 183 folder 50  Case 1895, 1925 box 51 folder 51  Case 1896, 1925 box 51 folder 45  Case 1899, 1925 box 183 folder 50  Case 1899, 1925 box 183 folder 51  Case 1899, 1925 box 51 folder 45  Case 1899, 1925 box 51 folder 45  Case 1899, 1925 box 51 folder 45  Case 1899, 1925 box 51 folder 47  Case 1899, 1925 box 51 folder 47  Case 1899, 1925 box 51 folder 47  Case 1902, 1925 box 51 folder 49  Case 1903, 1925 box 190 folder 9  Case 1904, 1925 box 190 folder 10  Case 1906, 1925 box 51 folder 12  Case 1908, 1925-1926 box 51 folder 50  Case 1901, 1925 box 51 folder 50  Case 1910, 1925 box 51 folder 50  Case 1911, 1925 box 51 folder 50  Case 1911, 1925 box 51 folder 51  Case 1912, 1925 box 51 folder 51  Case 1913, 1925 box 52 folder 1	Case 1874, 1925	box 51	folder 33
Case 1877, 1925  box 51  folder 36  Case 1878, 1925  box 51  folder 37  Case 1880, 1925  box 51  folder 38  Case 1882, 1925-1926  box 51  folder 39  Case 1883, 1925  box 51  folder 40  Case 1884, 1925  box 51  folder 41  Case 1885, 1925  box 51  folder 42  Case 1888, 1925  box 51  folder 43  Case 1889, 1925  box 51  folder 44  Case 1890, 1925  box 183  folder 47  Case 1891, 1925-1926  box 183  folder 49  Case 1894, 1925  box 183  folder 50  Case 1895, 1925  box 183  folder 50  Case 1896, 1925  box 183  folder 49  Case 1897, 1925  box 183  folder 49  Case 1898, 1925  box 183  folder 49  Case 1899, 1925  box 183  folder 46  Case 1899, 1925  box 51  folder 46  Case 1899, 1925  box 51  folder 48  Case 1902, 1925  box 51  folder 49  Case 1903, 1925  box 51  folder 49  Case 1904, 1925  box 190  folder 10  Case 1904, 1925  box 190  folder 11  Case 1906, 1925  box 51  folder 50  Case 1910, 1925  box 51  folder 50  Case 1911, 1925  box 51  folder 50  Case 1911, 1925  box 51  folder 50  Case 1911, 1925  box 51  folder 51  Case 1911, 1925  box 51  folder 51  Case 1911, 1925  box 51  folder 51  Case 1911, 1925  box 52  folder 1	Case 1875, 1925	box 51	folder 34
Case 1878, 1925 box 51 folder 37  Case 1880, 1925 box 51 folder 38  Case 1882, 1925-1926 box 51 folder 39  Case 1883, 1925 box 51 folder 40  Case 1884, 1925 box 51 folder 41  Case 1885, 1925 box 51 folder 42  Case 1888, 1925 box 51 folder 43  Case 1889, 1925 box 51 folder 44  Case 1890, 1925 box 183 folder 47  Case 1891, 1925-1926 box 183 folder 49  Case 1894, 1925 box 183 folder 50  Case 1895, 1925 box 183 folder 51  Case 1896, 1925 box 183 folder 51  Case 1897, 1925 box 51 folder 44  Case 1899, 1925 box 183 folder 51  Case 1896, 1925 box 183 folder 51  Case 1896, 1925 box 51 folder 45  Case 1897, 1925 box 51 folder 46  Case 1898, 1925 box 51 folder 47  Case 1899, 1925 box 51 folder 47  Case 1899, 1925 box 51 folder 48  Case 1902, 1925 box 51 folder 49  Case 1903, 1925 box 51 folder 49  Case 1904, 1925 box 190 folder 10  Case 1906, 1925 box 190 folder 12  Case 1908, 1925-1926 box 51 folder 13  Case 1910, 1925 box 51 folder 50  Case 1911, 1925 box 51 folder 51  Case 1911, 1925 box 51 folder 51  Case 1911, 1925 box 51 folder 51  Case 1912, 1925 box 51 folder 51  Case 1913, 1925 box 51 folder 51  Case 1913, 1925 box 51 folder 51  Case 1913, 1925 box 52 folder 1	Case 1876, 1925	box 51	folder 35
Case 1880, 1925 box 51 folder 38  Case 1882, 1925-1926 box 51 folder 39  Case 1883, 1925 box 51 folder 40  Case 1884, 1925 box 51 folder 41  Case 1885, 1925 box 51 folder 42  Case 1888, 1925 box 51 folder 42  Case 1888, 1925 box 51 folder 43  Case 1889, 1925 box 183 folder 47  Case 1890, 1925 box 183 folder 47  Case 1891, 1925-1926 box 183 folder 49  Case 1894, 1925 box 183 folder 50  Case 1895, 1925 box 183 folder 51  Case 1896, 1925 box 183 folder 51  Case 1897, 1925 box 51 folder 45  Case 1899, 1925 box 18 folder 45  Case 1899, 1925 box 51 folder 45  Case 1899, 1925 box 51 folder 46  Case 1899, 1925 box 51 folder 47  Case 1902, 1925 box 51 folder 48  Case 1902, 1925 box 190 folder 10  Case 1904, 1925 box 190 folder 12  Case 1906, 1925 box 190 folder 12  Case 1906, 1925 box 190 folder 13  Case 1910, 1925 box 51 folder 50  Case 1911, 1925 box 51 folder 51  Case 1911, 1925 box 51 folder 51  Case 1911, 1925 box 51 folder 51  Case 1911, 1925 box 52 folder 1	Case 1877, 1925	box 51	folder 36
Case 1882, 1925-1926 box 51 folder 39 Case 1883, 1925 box 51 folder 40 Case 1884, 1925 box 51 folder 41 Case 1885, 1925 box 51 folder 42 Case 1888, 1925 box 51 folder 43 Case 1889, 1925 box 51 folder 44 Case 1890, 1925 box 183 folder 47 Case 1891, 1925-1926 box 183 folder 49 Case 1894, 1925 box 183 folder 49 Case 1895, 1925 box 183 folder 50 Case 1896, 1925 box 183 folder 51 Case 1897, 1925 box 183 folder 51 Case 1898, 1925 box 183 folder 45 Case 1899, 1925 box 18 folder 45 Case 1899, 1925 box 51 folder 45 Case 1899, 1925 box 51 folder 47 Case 1902, 1925 box 51 folder 49 Case 1904, 1925 box 190 folder 10 Case 1905, 1925 box 190 folder 11 Case 1906, 1925 box 190 folder 12 Case 1906, 1925 box 190 folder 12 Case 1906, 1925 box 51 folder 50 Case 1910, 1925 box 51 folder 50 Case 1911, 1925 box 51 folder 51 Case 1911, 1925 box 51 folder 51 Case 1912, 1925 box 51 folder 51 Case 1913, 1925 box 52 folder 1	Case 1878, 1925	box 51	folder 37
Case 1883, 1925       box 51       folder 40         Case 1884, 1925       box 51       folder 41         Case 1885, 1925       box 51       folder 42         Case 1888, 1925       box 51       folder 43         Case 1889, 1925       box 51       folder 44         Case 1890, 1925       box 183       folder 47         Case 1891, 1925-1926       box 183       folder 48         Case 1892, 1925       box 183       folder 49         Case 1894, 1925       box 183       folder 50         Case 1895, 1925       box 183       folder 51         Case 1896, 1925       box 51       folder 45         Case 1897, 1925       box 51       folder 46         Case 1898, 1925       box 51       folder 47         Case 1899, 1925       box 51       folder 48         Case 1902, 1925       box 51       folder 49         Case 1903, 1925       box 51       folder 9         Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1906, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1910, 1925       box 51       folder 50<	Case 1880, 1925	box 51	folder 38
Case 1884, 1925       box 51       folder 42         Case 1888, 1925       box 51       folder 42         Case 1888, 1925       box 51       folder 43         Case 1889, 1925       box 51       folder 44         Case 1890, 1925       box 183       folder 47         Case 1891, 1925-1926       box 183       folder 48         Case 1892, 1925       box 183       folder 49         Case 1894, 1925       box 183       folder 50         Case 1895, 1925       box 183       folder 51         Case 1896, 1925       box 51       folder 45         Case 1897, 1925       box 51       folder 46         Case 1898, 1925       box 51       folder 47         Case 1899, 1925       box 51       folder 48         Case 1902, 1925       box 51       folder 49         Case 1903, 1925       box 190       folder 9         Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1905, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       fold	Case 1882, 1925-1926	box 51	folder 39
Case 1885, 1925       box 51       folder 42         Case 1888, 1925       box 51       folder 43         Case 1889, 1925       box 51       folder 44         Case 1890, 1925       box 183       folder 47         Case 1891, 1925-1926       box 183       folder 48         Case 1892, 1925       box 183       folder 49         Case 1894, 1925       box 183       folder 50         Case 1895, 1925       box 183       folder 51         Case 1896, 1925       box 51       folder 45         Case 1897, 1925       box 51       folder 46         Case 1898, 1925       box 51       folder 47         Case 1899, 1925       box 51       folder 48         Case 1902, 1925       box 51       folder 49         Case 1903, 1925       box 190       folder 9         Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1905, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 13         Case 1910, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       fol	Case 1883, 1925	box 51	folder 40
Case 1888, 1925       box 51       folder 43         Case 1889, 1925       box 51       folder 44         Case 1890, 1925       box 183       folder 47         Case 1891, 1925-1926       box 183       folder 48         Case 1892, 1925       box 183       folder 49         Case 1894, 1925       box 183       folder 50         Case 1895, 1925       box 183       folder 51         Case 1896, 1925       box 51       folder 45         Case 1897, 1925       box 51       folder 46         Case 1898, 1925       box 51       folder 47         Case 1899, 1925       box 51       folder 48         Case 1902, 1925       box 51       folder 49         Case 1903, 1925       box 190       folder 9         Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1905, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 1         Case 1913, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1884, 1925	box 51	folder 41
Case 1889, 1925       box 51       folder 44         Case 1890, 1925       box 183       folder 47         Case 1891, 1925-1926       box 183       folder 48         Case 1892, 1925       box 183       folder 49         Case 1894, 1925       box 183       folder 50         Case 1895, 1925       box 183       folder 51         Case 1896, 1925       box 51       folder 45         Case 1897, 1925       box 51       folder 46         Case 1898, 1925       box 51       folder 47         Case 1899, 1925       box 51       folder 48         Case 1902, 1925       box 51       folder 49         Case 1903, 1925       box 190       folder 9         Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 1         Case 1913, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1885, 1925	box 51	folder 42
Case 1890, 1925       box 183       folder 47         Case 1891, 1925-1926       box 183       folder 48         Case 1892, 1925       box 183       folder 49         Case 1894, 1925       box 183       folder 50         Case 1895, 1925       box 183       folder 51         Case 1896, 1925       box 51       folder 45         Case 1897, 1925       box 51       folder 46         Case 1898, 1925       box 51       folder 47         Case 1899, 1925       box 51       folder 48         Case 1902, 1925       box 51       folder 49         Case 1903, 1925       box 190       folder 9         Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1905, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 13         Case 1910, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 1         Case 1913, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1888, 1925	box 51	folder 43
Case 1891, 1925-1926       box 183       folder 48         Case 1892, 1925       box 183       folder 49         Case 1894, 1925       box 183       folder 50         Case 1895, 1925       box 183       folder 51         Case 1896, 1925       box 51       folder 45         Case 1897, 1925       box 51       folder 46         Case 1898, 1925       box 51       folder 47         Case 1899, 1925       box 51       folder 48         Case 1902, 1925       box 51       folder 49         Case 1903, 1925       box 190       folder 9         Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 12         Case 1910, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1889, 1925	box 51	folder 44
Case 1892, 1925       box 183       folder 49         Case 1894, 1925       box 183       folder 50         Case 1895, 1925       box 183       folder 51         Case 1896, 1925       box 51       folder 45         Case 1897, 1925       box 51       folder 46         Case 1898, 1925       box 51       folder 47         Case 1899, 1925       box 51       folder 48         Case 1902, 1925       box 51       folder 49         Case 1903, 1925       box 190       folder 9         Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 1         Case 1913, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1890, 1925	box 183	folder 47
Case 1894, 1925       box 183       folder 50         Case 1895, 1925       box 183       folder 51         Case 1896, 1925       box 51       folder 45         Case 1897, 1925       box 51       folder 46         Case 1898, 1925       box 51       folder 47         Case 1899, 1925       box 51       folder 48         Case 1902, 1925       box 51       folder 49         Case 1903, 1925       box 190       folder 9         Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1905, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 13         Case 1910, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 1         Case 1913, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1891, 1925-1926	box 183	folder 48
Case 1895, 1925       box 183       folder 51         Case 1896, 1925       box 51       folder 45         Case 1897, 1925       box 51       folder 46         Case 1898, 1925       box 51       folder 47         Case 1899, 1925       box 51       folder 48         Case 1902, 1925       box 51       folder 49         Case 1903, 1925       box 190       folder 9         Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1905, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 13         Case 1910, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 1         Case 1913, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1892, 1925	box 183	folder 49
Case 1896, 1925       box 51       folder 45         Case 1897, 1925       box 51       folder 46         Case 1898, 1925       box 51       folder 47         Case 1899, 1925       box 51       folder 48         Case 1902, 1925       box 51       folder 49         Case 1903, 1925       box 190       folder 9         Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1905, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 13         Case 1910, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 1         Case 1913, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1894, 1925	box 183	folder 50
Case 1897, 1925       box 51       folder 46         Case 1898, 1925       box 51       folder 47         Case 1899, 1925       box 51       folder 48         Case 1902, 1925       box 51       folder 49         Case 1903, 1925       box 190       folder 9         Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1905, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 13         Case 1910, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 1         Case 1913, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1895, 1925	box 183	folder 51
Case 1898, 1925       box 51       folder 47         Case 1899, 1925       box 51       folder 48         Case 1902, 1925       box 51       folder 49         Case 1903, 1925       box 190       folder 9         Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1905, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 13         Case 1910, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 1         Case 1913, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1896, 1925	box 51	folder 45
Case 1899, 1925       box 51       folder 48         Case 1902, 1925       box 51       folder 49         Case 1903, 1925       box 190       folder 9         Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1905, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 13         Case 1910, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1897, 1925	box 51	folder 46
Case 1902, 1925       box 51       folder 49         Case 1903, 1925       box 190       folder 9         Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1905, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 13         Case 1910, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 1         Case 1913, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1898, 1925	box 51	folder 47
Case 1903, 1925       box 190       folder 9         Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1905, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 13         Case 1910, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 1         Case 1913, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1899, 1925	box 51	folder 48
Case 1904, 1925       box 190       folder 10         Case 1905, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 13         Case 1910, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 1         Case 1913, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1902, 1925	box 51	folder 49
Case 1905, 1925       box 190       folder 11         Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 13         Case 1910, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 1         Case 1913, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1903, 1925	box 190	folder 9
Case 1906, 1925       box 190       folder 12         Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 13         Case 1910, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 1         Case 1913, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1904, 1925	box 190	folder 10
Case 1908, 1925-1926       box 190       folder 13         Case 1910, 1925       box 51       folder 50         Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 1         Case 1913, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1905, 1925	box 190	folder 11
Case 1910, 1925 box 51 folder 50  Case 1911, 1925 box 51 folder 51  Case 1912, 1925 box 52 folder 1  Case 1913, 1925 box 52 folder 2	Case 1906, 1925	box 190	folder 12
Case 1911, 1925       box 51       folder 51         Case 1912, 1925       box 52       folder 1         Case 1913, 1925       box 52       folder 2	Case 1908, 1925-1926	box 190	folder 13
Case 1912, 1925 box 52 folder 1 Case 1913, 1925 box 52 folder 2	Case 1910, 1925	box 51	folder 50
Case 1913, 1925 box 52 folder 2	Case 1911, 1925	box 51	folder 51
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	Case 1912, 1925	box 52	folder 1
Case 1915, 1925 box 52 folder 3	Case 1913, 1925	box 52	folder 2
200 2720, 2720	Case 1915, 1925	box 52	folder 3

Case 1916, 1925	box 52	folder 4
Case 1917, 1925	box 52	folder 5
Case 1918, 1925	box 52	folder 6
Case 1919, 1925	box 52	folder 7
Case 1920, 1925	box 52	folder 8
Case 1921, 1925	box 52	folder 9
Case 1922, 1925	box 52	folder 10
Case 1923, 1925	box 52	folder 11
Case 1926, 1925	box 52	folder 12
Case 1927, 1925	box 52	folder 13
Case 1928, 1925	box 52	folder 14
Case 1929, 1925	box 52	folder 15
Case 1930, 1925	box 52	folder 16
Case 1931, 1925	box 52	folder 17
Case 1932, 1925	box 52	folder 18
Case 1933, 1925	box 52	folder 19
Case 1936, 1925	box 52	folder 20
Case 1937, 1925	box 52	folder 21
Case 1940, 1925	box 52	folder 22
Case 1941, 1925	box 52	folder 23
Case 1942, 1925	box 52	folder 24
Case 1943, 1925	box 52	folder 25
Case 1944, 1925	box 52	folder 26
Case 1958, 1925	box 52	folder 27
Case 1961, 1925	box 52	folder 28
Case 1962, 1925	box 52	folder 29
Case 1963, 1925	box 52	folder 30
Case 1965, 1926	box 52	folder 31
Case 1966, 1926	box 52	folder 32
Case 1967, 1925	box 52	folder 33
Case 1968, 1926	box 52	folder 34
Case 1969, 1925	box 52	folder 35

Case 1970, 1925	box 52	folder 36
Case 1972, 1925	box 52	folder 37
Case 1973, 1925	box 52	folder 38
Case 1974, 1926	box 52	folder 39
Case 1975, 1925	box 52	folder 40
Case 1976, 1926	box 52	folder 41
Case 1977, 1926	box 53	folder 1
Case 1978, 1925	box 53	folder 2
Case 1980, 1925	box 53	folder 3
Case 1981, 1925	box 53	folder 4
Case 1983, 1926	box 53	folder 5
Case 1984, 1925	box 53	folder 6
Case 1986, 1926	box 53	folder 7
Case 1987, 1926	box 53	folder 8
Case 1988, 1925	box 53	folder 9
Case 1990, 1925	box 53	folder 10
Case 1991, 1925	box 53	folder 11
Case 1992, 1925	box 53	folder 12
Case 1993, 1925	box 53	folder 13
Case 1994, 1925	box 53	folder 14
Case 1995, 1926	box 53	folder 15
Case 1996, 1925	box 53	folder 16
Case 1997, 1925	box 53	folder 17
Case 1998, 1926	box 53	folder 18
Case 1999, 1926	box 53	folder 19
Case 2001, 1925	box 53	folder 20
Case 2002, 1926	box 53	folder 21
Case 2003, 1925	box 53	folder 22
Case 2004, 1926	box 53	folder 23
Case 2006, 1925	box 53	folder 24
Case 2007, 1926	box 53	folder 25
Case 2008, 1926	box 53	folder 26

Case 2011, 1926	box 53	folder 27
Case 2012, 1926	box 53	folder 28
Case 2014, 1925	box 53	folder 29
Case 2015, 1926	box 53	folder 30
Case 2016, 1925	box 53	folder 31
Case 2017, 1925	box 53	folder 32
Case 2018, 1926	box 53	folder 33
Case 2020, 1926	box 53	folder 34
Case 2022, 1926	box 53	folder 35
Case 2023, 1926	box 53	folder 36
Case 2024, 1926	box 53	folder 37
Case 2028, 1926	box 53	folder 38
Case 2031, 1926	box 53	folder 39
Case 2032, 1926	box 53	folder 40
Case 2033, 1925	box 53	folder 41
Case 2034, 1926	box 53	folder 42
Case 2036, 1926	box 53	folder 43
Case 2037, 1925	box 53	folder 44
Case 2038, 1926	box 53	folder 45
Case 2039, 1926	box 53	folder 46
Case 2040, 1926	box 53	folder 47
Case 2041, 1926	box 53	folder 48
Case 2042, 1926	box 54	folder 1
Case 2044, 1926	box 54	folder 2
Case 2045, 1926	box 54	folder 3
Case 2049, 1926	box 54	folder 4
Case 2050, 1926	box 54	folder 5
Case 2053, 1926	box 54	folder 6
Case 2055, 1926	box 54	folder 7
Case 2057, 1926	box 54	folder 8
Case 2058, 1926	box 54	folder 9
Case 2061, 1926	box 54	folder 10

Case 2062, 1926	box 54	folder 11
Case 2063, 1926	box 54	folder 12
Case 2064, 1926	box 54	folder 13
Case 2065, 1926	box 54	folder 14
Case 2067, 1926	box 54	folder 15
Case 2069, 1926	box 54	folder 16
Case 2070, 1926	box 54	folder 17
Case 2071, 1926	box 54	folder 18
Case 2072, 1926	box 54	folder 19
Case 2074, 1926	box 54	folder 20
Case 2075, 1926	box 54	folder 21
Case 2078, 1926	box 54	folder 22
Case 2079, 1926	box 54	folder 23
Case 2080, 1926	box 54	folder 24
Case 2081, 1926	box 54	folder 25
Case 2082, 1926	box 54	folder 26
Case 2083, 1926	box 54	folder 27
Case 2084, 1926	box 54	folder 28
Case 2085, 1926	box 54	folder 29
Case 2086, 1926	box 54	folder 30
Case 2087, 1926	box 54	folder 31
Case 2088, 1926	box 54	folder 32
Case 2089, 1926	box 54	folder 33
Case 2090, 1926	box 54	folder 34
Case 2091, 1926	box 54	folder 35
Case 2092, 1926	box 54	folder 36
Case 2095, 1926	box 54	folder 37
Case 2096, 1926	box 54	folder 38
Case 2097, 1926	box 54	folder 39
Case 2098, 1926	box 54	folder 40
Case 2100, 1926-1927	box 54	folder 41-42

# Physical Description: (2 Folders)

Case 2101, 1926-1927	box 54	folder 43
Case 2102, 1926	box 54	folder 44
Case 2104, 1926	box 54	folder 45
Case 2105, 1927	box 54	folder 46
Case 2105, 1927	box 55	folder 1
Case 2106, 1926	box 55	folder 2
Case 2109, 1926	box 55	folder 3
Case 2111, 1926	box 55	folder 4
Case 2112, 1926	box 55	folder 5
Case 2114, 1926	box 55	folder 6
Case 2116, 1926	box 55	folder 7
Case 2120, 1926	box 55	folder 8
Case 2121, 1926	box 55	folder 9
Case 2123, 1926	box 55	folder 10
Case 2125, 1926	box 55	folder 11
Case 2126, 1926	box 55	folder 12
Case 2128, 1926	box 55	folder 13
Case 2129, 1926	box 55	folder 14
Case 2131, 1927	box 55	folder 15
Case 2132, 1926	box 55	folder 16
Case 2150, 1926	box 55	folder 17
Case 2151, 1926	box 55	folder 18
Case 2152, 1926	box 55	folder 19
Case 2153, 1926	box 55	folder 20
Case 2155, 1926	box 55	folder 21
Case 2156, 1926	box 55	folder 22
Case 2157, 1926	box 55	folder 23
Case 2158, 1926	box 55	folder 24
Case 2160, 1926	box 55	folder 25
Case 2161, 1926	box 55	folder 26
Case 2162, 1926	box 55	folder 27

Case 2163, 1926	box 55	folder 28
Case 2164, 1926	box 55	folder 29
Case 2171, 1926	box 55	folder 30
Case 2173, 1927	box 55	folder 31
Case 2177, 1926	box 55	folder 32
Case 2178, 1926	box 55	folder 33
Case 2181, 1926-1927	box 55	folder 34
Case 2182, 1926-1927	box 55	folder 35
Case 2184, 1926	box 55	folder 36
Case 2185, 1926	box 55	folder 37
Case 2186, 1926	box 55	folder 38
Case 2189, 1926	box 55	folder 39
Case 2191, 1926	box 55	folder 40
Case 2192, 1926	box 55	folder 41
Case 2194, 1926	box 56	folder 1
Case 2195, 1926	box 56	folder 2
Case 2196, 1926	box 56	folder 3
Case 2198, 1926	box 56	folder 4
Case 2199, 1926	box 56	folder 5
Case 2201, 1926	box 56	folder 6
Case 2202, 1926	box 56	folder 7
Case 2203, 1926	box 56	folder 8
Case 2204, 1926	box 56	folder 9
Case 2206, 1926	box 56	folder 10
Case 2207, 1926	box 56	folder 11
Case 2208, 1926	box 56	folder 12
Case 2210, 1926	box 56	folder 13
Case 2211, 1926	box 56	folder 14
Case 2212, 1926	box 56	folder 15
Case 2214, 1926	box 56	folder 16
Case 2215, 1926	box 56	folder 17
Case 2216, 1926	box 56	folder 18

Case 2218, 1926	box 56	folder 19
Case 2222, 1926	box 56	folder 20
Case 2223, 1926	box 56	folder 21
Case 2226, 1926	box 56	folder 22
Case 2227, 1926	box 56	folder 23
Case 2228, 1926	box 56	folder 24
Case 2229, 1926-1927	box 56	folder 25
Case 2230, 1926-1927	box 56	folder 26
Case 2231, 1926	box 56	folder 27
Case 2232, 1926-1927	box 56	folder 28
Case 2233, 1926	box 56	folder 29
Case 2234, 1926-1927	box 56	folder 30
Case 2236, 1926	box 56	folder 31
Case 2237, 1926	box 56	folder 32
Case 2238, 1926	box 56	folder 33
Case 2239, 1926	box 56	folder 34
Case 2240, 1926	box 56	folder 35
Case 2241, 1926-1927	box 56	folder 36
Case 2242, 1926-1927	box 56	folder 37
Case 2244, 1926	box 56	folder 38
Case 2245, 1926-1927	box 56	folder 39
Case 2248, 1926-1927	box 56	folder 40
Case 2250, 1926-1928	box 56	folder 41
Case 2252, 1926-1927	box 56	folder 42
Case 2253, 1926	box 56	folder 43
Case 2254, 1926-1927	box 56	folder 44
Case 2257, 1926-1927	box 56	folder 45
Case 2260, 1926	box 56	folder 46
Case 2261, 1926	box 56	folder 47
Case 2262, 1926	box 56	folder 48
Case 2263, 1927	box 56	folder 49
Case 2264, 1926-1927	box 56	folder 50

Case 2266, 1926-1927	box 56	folder 51
Case 2267, 1926	box 56	folder 52
Case 2268, 1926	box 56	folder 53
Case 2270, 1927	box 56	folder 54
Case 2271, 1926-1927	box 57	folder 1
Case 2272, 1927	box 57	folder 2
Case 2273, 1927	box 57	folder 3
Case 2274, 1927	box 57	folder 4
Case 2276, 1927	box 57	folder 5
Case 2279, 1927	box 57	folder 6
Case 2280, 1926-1927	box 57	folder 7
Case 2281, 1927	box 57	folder 8
Case 2283, 1927	box 57	folder 9
Case 2284, 1927-1928	box 57	folder 10
Case 2285, 1927	box 57	folder 11
Case 2286, 1927	box 57	folder 12
Case 2287, 1927	box 57	folder 13
Case 2289, 1927	box 57	folder 14
Case 2291, 1927	box 57	folder 15
Case 2293, 1927	box 57	folder 16
Case 2294, 1927	box 57	folder 17
Case 2295, 1927	box 57	folder 18
Case 2298, 1927	box 57	folder 19
Case 2299, 1927	box 57	folder 20
American Trading Company v. Hartfield Telegraph Code Publishing Company,, 1914	box 190	folder 14
Joliet Oil Tractor Company v. Francisco Perez de Alderete, 1916-1917	box 190	folder 15
Mann and Company v. Adolfo Hahn, 1917	box 190	folder 16
Orvis Brothers and Co. v. Charles Maken, 1963	box 325	folder 5

# Subseries V.3: Chairman's Files, 1865-1967

## **Scope and Contents**

Subseries 3 is devoted to the records of the Chairman of the Committee on Arbitration. Correspondence files make up the bulk of the subseries and mostly derive from Committee Chairman Charles Bernheimer's tenure from 1912-1944. Both the correspondence files and the Chairman's administrative files, which make up the remainder of the subseries, illustrate Bernheimer's role in promoting arbitration at the local, national, and international levels. Materials in this subseries are arranged alphabetically by subject.

Title/Description	Instances	
Administrative		
Arbitration and Appeal, Committee on, 1875-1913	box 325	folder 6
The Arbitration Foundation, Inc., 1924-1925	box 325	folder 7
Arbitration SeminarThe Disputed Transaction: How Arbitration is Used in the Securities Industry,, 1967	box 325	folder 8
Arbitration, Special Committee onReport, 1911	box 325	folder 9
Bernheimer Arbitration Education Fund		
1924-1957	box 326	folder 1
Report on Publication and Distribution of Standards for Commercial Arbitration,, 1951	box 326	folder 2
Research Data, 1924-1945	box 326	folder 3
Committee		
Annual Report, 1920-1943	box 326	folder 4
Case Proceedings, 1874-1878 (bound volume), 1874-1878	box 463	
Earliest Arbitration Records of the Chamber of Commerce of the State of New York, 1779-1792 1913, 1779-1792, 1913	box 326	folder 5
List of Official Arbitrators, 1920-1930	box 326	folder 6
Minutes, 1861-1874 (bound volume), 1861-1874	box 462	
Minutes, 1911-1915 (bound volume), 1911-1915	box 464	
Minutes, 1916-1922	box 326	folder 7
Report, 1915-1949	box 326	folder 8
Requests and Inquiries, 1951-1962	box 326	folder 9
Rules and Regulations, 1966	box 326	folder 10
State Laws of Arbitration, 1865	box 1	folder 5
Court of Arbitration		
General, 1922	box 326	folder 11

Laws of Arbitration, 1874-1881	box 326	folder 12
PublicationsAdvantages and Importance to Business Men,, 1875	box 326	folder 13
History of Commercial Arbitration in New York, 1922	box 326	folder 14
International Commercial Arbitration, 1904-1913	box 326	folder 15
Publications		
Arbitration, 1920-1961	box 323	folder 1
Bernheimer, Charles, 1916-1923	box 323	folder 2
Berheimer, Charles and Julius Henry Cohen, 1911-1927	box 323	folder 3
ScrapbookCourt of Arbitration, 1874-1882 (bound volume), 1874-1882	box 465	
Correspondence		
General, 1918-1924	box 323	folder 4-6
Physical Description: (3 Folders)		
Adams, R.L., College of Agriculture, U.C. Berkeley, 1926	box 311	folder 1
American Arbitration Association Textbook, 1926	box 311	folder 2
American Association of Woolen and Worsted Manufacturers, 1915-1916	box 113	folder 1
American Bar Association in San Francisco, 1922	box 113	folder 2
American Chamber of Commerce		
Brazil, 1922	box 113	folder 3
Chile, 1921	box 113	folder 4
Cuba, 1919	box 113	folder 5
American Manufacturers Export Association, 1923-1924	box 311	folder 3
American Washing Machine Manufacturers' Association, 1916	box 113	folder 6
Arbitration Decisions Referred to Outside Courts, 1919-1923	box 113	folder 7
Arbitration Legislation, 1922	box 113	folder 8
A.R. Maas Chemical Company, Inc., 1926	box 311	folder 4
Associated Metals and Minerals Corporation, 1926	box 311	folder 5
Associates Stock Exchange, 1926	box 311	folder 6
Association of American Wood Pulp Importers		
1921	box 113	folder 9

1926	box 311	folder 7
Ayling, Robert D., 1926	box 311	folder 8
Bar Association of the City of Boston, 1918-1919	box 113	folder 10
Barron, George D., 1915	box 113	folder 11
Bergerault, Cremer and Randel, 1926	box 311	folder 9
Board of Commerce Governmental Committee, Detroit, Michigan,, 1926	box 311	folder 10
Boston Wool Trade Association, 1926	box 311	folder 11
California State Arbitration Bill, 1921-1927	box 113	folder 12
Central Committee to Promote Commercial Arbitration in Chicago,, 1918	box 113	folder 13
Chamberlin, EmersonList of Official Arbitrators, 1924	box 323	folder 7
Chamber of Commerce		
Boston, 1927	box 311	folder 12
Connecticut, 1926	box 311	folder 13
Buenos Aires, 1916-1920 <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 113	folder 14-15
Danbury, Connecticut, 1915	box 113	folder 16
International Chamber of Commerce, 1922 <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 113	folder 17-18
International Chamber of Commerce, 1922-1923 <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 113	folder 19-20
London, 1915	box 113	folder 21
Los Angeles, 1916-1919	box 113	folder 22
Los Angeles, 1921-1922	box 114	folder 1
Manchester, 1920-1922	box 114	folder 2
Massachusetts, 1919	box 114	folder 3
Netherlands in New York, 1922-1925 <u>Physical Description</u> : (2 Folders)	box 114	folder 4-5
Netherlands in New York/American Exporter, 1920-1921	box 114	folder 6
New Jersey State, 1922-1923	box 114	folder 7
Panama, 1915	box 114	folder 8
Penang, 1915	box 114	folder 9

Portland, 1915	box 114	folder 10
St. Louis, 1926	box 311	folder 14
United States of America, 1921-1923	box 114	folder 11
United States of America in the Argentine Republic, 1919-1920	box 114	folder 12
Chamber of Commerce and Industrie, Symrna, Turkey, 1926	box 311	folder 15
Chicago Association of Credit Men, 1919	box 114	folder 13
Christy, Edward H., 1927	box 311	folder 16
Cleary, James C., 1923-1924	box 311	folder 17
Cleland, Mrs. H.E., 1919	box 115	folder 1
Commercial Arbitration, 1924	box 311	folder 18-20
Committees		
Commercial Arbitration, Special Committee on, 1910	box 311	folder 21
Commerce, Trade, and Commercial Law, Committee on, 1922	box 114	folder 14
Judiciary Congress, Committee on, 1922	box 114	folder 15
Conlen, William J., 1926	box 311	folder 22
Constitutional Convention of the State of New York, 1915	box 114	folder 16
Credit Association of Building Trades of New York, 1918	box 114	folder 17
Doolittle, H.A., Bureau of Foreign and Domestic Commerce, 1917	box 114	folder 18
Fact DeterminationJ.L. Block and Sons, 1923	box 311	folder 23
Federal Arbitration Bill		
1922-1923	box 114	folder 19-20
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1922-1923	box 115	folder 2
Federal Trade Commission, 1918	box 115	folder 3
Flaxman Dry Goods and Notion Company, 1919	box 115	folder 4
Foreign Trade Financing Corporation, 1919-1921	box 115	folder 5
Fraser, R.S., 1921-1922	box 115	folder 6
Freeman, Charles D., 1926	box 311	folder 24
Freschi, J.J., 1919	box 115	folder 7

Fulton, Robert M., 1916	box 115	folder 8
Government and Merchants, 1918	box 115	folder 9
Grand Rapid Association of Commerce, 1915	box 115	folder 10
Hammitt, J.O., 1926	box 311	folder 25
Haskins and Sells, 1923	box 311	folder 26
Heywood, Johnson, 1926	box 311	folder 27
Hochfelder, Anna W., 1923	box 311	folder 28
Hodgeman Rubber Company, 1918	box 115	folder 11
Hoover, Herbert, 1921-1922	box 115	folder 12
Huff, Truman C., 1915	box 115	folder 13
Jewish Court of Arbitration, 1920	box 115	folder 14
Jiddy, Alfredo, 1926	box 311	folder 29
Jones, John C., 1926	box 311	folder 30
Jottrand, Emile, 1919	box 115	folder 15
"Justice and the Poor" by Reginald H. Smith, 1919-1920	box 115	folder 16
Kajita, Minoru, 1926	box 311	folder 31
Kir, Zade, Chevki and Cie, 1926	box 311	folder 32
Legation of Switzerland, 1913	box 115	folder 17
Legislation, 1919	box 311	folder 33
List of Arbitration Organizations, 1916-1920	box 115	folder 18
Marx, Joseph E., 1926	box 311	folder 34
McKee, Henry S., Jr., 1920	box 115	folder 19
Mediation and Arbitration of Business Differences Conference,, 1915	box 115	folder 20
Merchants Association of New York		
1915	box 115	folder 21
1927	box 311	folder 35
Metropolitan Pottery Company, 1926	box 311	folder 36
Miller, John T., 1915	box 115	folder 22
Mills Bill No. 1212 1915, 1212, 1915	box 115	folder 23
Mount Hope Finishing Company, 1926	box 311	folder 37
Municipal Court of Philadelphia, 1915	box 115	folder 24
Nothan A Jarrold 1022		

	box 115	folder 25
National Association of Hosiery and Underwear Manufacturers,, 1918-1919	box 115	folder 26
National Association of Importers of Hides and Skins, 1927-1928	box 311	folder 38
National Association of Tanners, 1915	box 115	folder 27
National Poultry, Butter and Egg Association, 1919-1922	box 115	folder 28
National Wholesale Grocers Association, 1919	box 115	folder 29
New Jersey Arbitration Law, 1923-1924	box 115	folder 30
New Jersey Association of Nurserymen, 1927-1928	box 311	folder 39
New York Globe, 1921	box 115	folder 31
New York Law Journal, 1921	box 116	folder 1
New York Public Library, 1926	box 311	folder 40
New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants, 1915-1916	box 116	folder 2
Pan American Financial Conference, 1915	box 116	folder 3
Pan American Union, 1912-1919	box 116	folder 4
Phosphate Export Association, 1919	box 116	folder 5
Pratt Paper Company, 1921	box 116	folder 6
Protocol Scheme, 1919	box 116	folder 7
Rapp, Steven K., 1926	box 311	folder 41
Real Estate Board of New York, 1923	box 311	folder 42
Reconstruction Commission of the State of New York, 1919	box 116	folder 8
Reestablishment of Arbitration, 1909-1912	box 311	folder 43
Report on Commercial Arbitration at the Commercial Law League of America,, 1920	box 116	folder 9
Request for Articles written by Bernheimer, 1919	box 116	folder 10
Requests and Inquiries		
1922-1926	box 311	folder 44
1923-1924	box 311	folder 45
Rose and Paskus, 1927	box 311	folder 46
Shishanian, John A., 1926-1927	box 311	folder 47
Silk Association of America, 1921-1925	box 116	folder 11

Snider, J.B., 1926	box 323	folder 8
Snow, C.DForeign Commerce Department, 1921-1924	box 116	folder 12
Speaking Appointments, 1916-1919	box 116	folder 13
Standard Clause for Arbitration, 1920	box 116	folder 14
Starnes, George T., 1926	box 323	folder 9
St.Ledger, A. and Compulsory Arbitration in Australia, 1916-1920	box 116	folder 15
Taft, William, 1919	box 323	folder 10
Toulmin, H.A., 1916	box 116	folder 16
Tregoe, J.H., National Association of Credit Men, 1914-1917	box 116	folder 17
University of Chicago, 1919	box 116	folder 18
Uppercu Cadillac Corporation, 1923	box 323	folder 11
Van Amringe, Guy, 1919	box 116	folder 19
Walton Arbitration Law, 1920-1921	box 116	folder 20
Whitehouse, Davis and Company, Inc., 1926	box 323	folder 12
Wholesale and Retail Credit Men's Associations of Minneapolis,, 1917-1919	box 116	folder 21
Wilkinson, Huxley, Byron and Knight, 1926	box 323	folder 13
Winterville High School, 1916	box 116	folder 22
Wood, Will R., 1921	box 116	folder 23

<sup>^</sup> Return to Table of Contents

## Series VI: Committees, 1822-1972

### **Scope and Contents**

Series VI documents the activities of the Chamber's administrative and general committees. Formed to address a specific subject or function, committees were comprised of voluntary members elected by the Chamber's membership. Committee records contain correspondence, reports, and meeting minutes, both bound and loose.

## Subseries VI.1: Administrative Committees, 1864-1973

#### **Scope and Contents**

The purpose of most of the administrative committees of the Chamber of Commerce was to oversee routine functions such as lunch service, committee nominations, and Chamber membership. This subseries contains materials that document those functions; however, a large portion of the subseries is devoted to the administrative records and meeting minutes of the Executive Committee. Perhaps the

most significant of the administrative committees, the Executive Committee acted as the managerial body of the Chamber. It received all general committee reports prior to their submission to the Chamber's membership; as a result, the Executive Committee meeting minutes found in this subseries often contain these reports as well as a record of suggested actions and final resolutions. It should be noted that in some cases the bound volumes of Executive Committee minutes also contain minutes from the Chamber's general committees; these volumes are identified in the container list.

Title/Description	Instances	
Admissions Committee, 1973	box 342	folder 1
Executive Committee		
General		
1876-1889	box 333	folder 1
1909-1934	box 333	folder 2
1943-1951	box 333	folder 3
1966	box 333	folder 4
1967	box 333	folder 5
Correspondence		
1917-1923	box 333	folder 6
1921-1923	box 333	folder 7
Chairman, 1922-1923	box 333	folder 8
Hearing on Immigration, 1922-1923	box 333	folder 9
Memorandum of Business, 1922-1923	box 333	folder 10
Meeting Minutes		
1860-1882 (bound volume also contains minutes from other committees), 1860-1882	box 484	
1864-1971 (bound volume), 1864-1971	box 412	
1871-1882 (bound volume), 1871-1882	box 413	
1883-1887 (bound volume), 1883-1887	box 414	
1887-1898 (bound volume also contains minutes from other committees), 1887-1898	box 415	
1895-1896 (bound volume also contains minutes from other committees), 1895-1896	box 416	
1898-1910 (bound volume also contains minutes from other committees), 1898-1910	box 417	
1902 Sub-Executive Committee (bound volume), 1902	box 418	
1909-1925 Financial Supplement to Meeting Minutes (bound volume), 1909-1925	box 419	

1910-1918 (bound volume also contains minutes from other committees), 1910-1918	box 420	
1918-1923 (bound volume), 1918-1923	box 421	
1923-1929 (bound volume), 1923-1929	box 422	
1929-1934 (bound volume), 1929-1934	box 423	
1935-1945 (bound volume), 1935-1945	box 424	
1945-1958 (bound volume), 1945-1958	box 425	
1958-1968 (bound volume), 1958-1968	box 426	
1968-1973 (bound volume), 1968-1973	box 427	
Merchants Association, Joint Meeting with, 1920	box 333	folder 11
Monthly Meeting Business, 1922-1923	box 333	folder 12
National Budget System, 1916-1920	box 334	folder 1
Nominating Committee, 1924	box 334	folder 2
Report on the High Cost of Living, 1919	box 334	folder 3
Reports, 1916-1964	box 334	folder 4
Soldier Bonus, 1923	box 334	folder 5
Sub-Committee and Committee on Arbitration, 1922	box 334	folder 6
Sub-Committee on Budget, 1919-1939	box 334	folder 7
House Committee		
Daily Luncheon, 1922-1923	box 334	folder 8
Minutes, 1921	box 334	folder 9
Members ListCommittees, 1894-1903 (bound volume), 1894-1903	box 453	
Nominating Committee		
General, 1880-1923	box 342	folder 2
General, 1963-1964	box 334	folder 10
General, 1965	box 334	folder 11
	1	

## Subseries VI.2: General Committees, 1822-1973

## **Scope and Contents**

The second subseries is comprised of the Chamber's general, or standing, committees. Numerous and widely varied, these committees were formed to provide a through examination of subjects of interest to the Chamber. Joint, special, or sub-committees were often formed to address specific topics in more depth and detail. Committees represented in this subseries address subjects such as commercial education, finance and currency, shipping, trade, transportation, and urban development. Records of each committee are inconsistent; however, files often contain correspondence, meeting minutes, and

reports. It should be noted that, prior to the late 19th century, all general committees were referred to by a uniform title: the Committee of the Chamber of Commerce. Records of these early committees can be found at the beginning of the subseries; the remaining committees are alphabetized by subject.

Title/Description	Instances	
Chamber of Commerce, Committee of the		
General		
1822-1921	box 279	folder 1
1865-1920	box 255	folder 1
1886-1898	box 255	folder 2
1927-1935	box 255	folder 3
Assorted Committees, 1864-1885 (bound volume), 1864-1885	box 477	
Assorted Committees, 1864-1886 (bound volume), 1864-1886	box 481	
Assorted Committees, 1870-1874 (bound volume), 1870-1874	box 478	
Assorted Committees, 1870-1886 (bound volume), 1870-1886	box 483	
Assorted Committees, 1870-1887 (bound volume), 1870-1887	box 482	
Assorted Committees, 1870-1887 (bound volume), 1870-1887	box 485	
The Chinese Exclusion Act, 1889	box 374	folder 10
Quarantine, 1858	box 257	folder 1
Reports, 1868-1874 (bound volume), 1868-1874	box 454	
Scrip Dividend of Mutual Insurance Companies, 1844	box 342	folder 3
Shipping Matters, 1872-1880	box 279	folder 11
Ship-Raising, Undated	box 342	folder 4
U.S.S. Kearsarge, 1864-1865	box 257	folder 2
Chamber of Commerce, Special Committee of theGeneral		
1874	box 279	folder 2
1876-1909	box 255	folder 4
1877-1904	box 255	folder 5
1886-1898	box 255	folder 6
Three, Committee of, undated	box 256	folder 1
Five, Special Committee of, 1878	box 256	folder 2

Five, Sub-Executive Committee of, 1902-1903	box 256	folder 3
Five to Examine Street Congestion, Special Committee of, 1903	box 256	folder 4
Seven in Honor of Whitelaw Reid, Committee of, 1912	box 256	folder 5
Sixteen on the Death of Alexander E. Orr, Committee of, undated	box 256	folder 6
Seventy to the Dock Department, Committee of, 1895-1896	box 256	folder 7
One Hundred, Committee of, 1919-1920	box 256	folder 8
150th Anniversary of the Chamber, Special Committee on, 1916-1918	box 256	folder 9
Abrogation of Discriminating Rates, Special Committee for the,, 1882	box 256	folder 10
Agriculture, Committee on, 1901	box 256	folder 11
Agriculture and its Problems, Committee on, 1923	box 256	folder 12
Agriculture and its Problems, Special Committee on, 1923	box 279	folder 3
American Shipping, Committee on, 1881-1915	box 256	folder 13
Anti-Trust Legislation, Committee on, 1914	box 256	folder 14
Appointed to Consider the Bill Entitled "An Act to provide adequate revenue for the support", Special Committee,, 1900	box 256	folder 15
Arrangements for the 153rd Annual Banquet, Committee on, undated	box 279	folder 4
Arrangements for the Visit to the Navy Yard, Committee of, 1878	box 256	folder 16
Aviation, Special Committee on, 1943-1946	box 279	folder 5
Banking Law, Commission to Revise the, 1914 (3 Folders), 1914	box 279	folder 6-8
Bankruptcy Laws, Special Committee on, 1880-1885	box 256	folder 17
Banquet Committee, 1920-1922	box 279	folder 9
Building Committee, 1882-1911	box 256	folder 18
Building Committee, 1897-1900 (bound volume), 1897-1900	box 480	
"Business Citizenship Award", Sub-Committee on, 1960	box 279	folder 10
Canals, Committee on		
1909	box 256	folder 19
Discussion by Gustav H. Schwab, et al., 1909	box 271	folder 1

Centennial Celebration of the Organization of the Constitutional Government, Committee on the,, 1886-1889	box 256	folder 20
Certiorari Proceedings, Special Committee on, 1944-1945	box 256	folder 21
Chamber of Commerce, Produce Exchange, Maritime Association, Merchants' Association and the Board of Trade and Transportation, Joint Committee of,, 1910	box 257	folder 3
Charity Fund	box 447	
Committee on Fund for Relief of Members and Their Families, 1883-1949 (bound volume), 1883-1949		
Joint meeting of Committee on Investments and Committee on Fund for Relief of Members and Their Families, 1950-1957 (bound volume), 1950-1957	box 448	
City Affairs, Committee on, 1964-1965	box 279	folder 12
City Affairs, Committee on and Committee on Education, Committee on Taxation,, 1964	box 279	folder 13
City Conditions and Ordinances, Committee on, 1914	box 257	folder 4
Commercial Associations of New York, Committee of, 1882-1885	box 257	folder 5
Commercial Education, Committee on		
General, 1899-1915	box 257	folder 6
Advisory Committee for Columbia University's School of Business,, 1918-1924	box 257	folder 7
Americanization, 1918-1921	box 257	folder 8
Board of Education, 1917-1921	box 257	folder 9
Child Welfare, 1919	box 257	folder 10
Continuation School, 1920-1921	box 257	folder 11
Correspondence		
General, 1920-1925	box 257	folder 12
Frederick Lisman, 1920-1922	box 257	folder 13
Henry Ryan, 1920-1923	box 257	folder 14
Sherwin Cody, 1919-1920	box 258	folder 1
Howard C. Smith		
1919-1925	box 258	folder 2
1920-1922	box 258	folder 3
Education Law, 1921	box 258	folder 4

Foreman Training, 1920-1921	box 258	folder 5
High School of Commerce, 1919-1920	box 258	folder 6
Industrial Arts Council, 1912-1922	box 258	folder 7
Kindergartens, 1919-1925	box 258	folder 8
Malnutrition of School Children, 1918	box 258	folder 9
Minutes, 1920-1923	box 279	folder 14
National Transportation Institute, 1922-1923	box 258	folder 10
Public Education System, 1917-1922	box 258	folder 11
Rehabilitation of Soldiers and Cripples in the Industry, 1918-1920	box 258	folder 12
Report on Commercial Education, 1911-1920	box 259	folder 1
School Budget, 1919-1921	box 259	folder 2
"Survey of Adult Technical Education in the New York Industrial Area",, 1933	box 280	folder 1
Teacher Salaries, 1919-1920	box 259	folder 3
Complete the Monument, Special Committee to, 1929	box 280	folder 2
Conservation, Committee on, 1913	box 259	folder 4
Conservation, Special Committee on, 1913-1915	box 259	folder 5
Conservation of State Waters, Lands and Forests, Committee on,, 1917-1923	box 259	folder 6
Conservation of State Waters, Lands and Forests, Special Committee on,, 1921	box 280	folder 3
Corporate Litigation, Special Committee on, 1947	box 259	folder 7
Currency, Special Committee on, 1906	box 259	folder 8
Death of Cornelius Vanderbilt, Committee on, 1899	box 259	folder 9
Death of Francis T. Walker, Committee on, 1882	box 259	folder 10
Death of George E. Waring Jr., Special Committee on, 1899	box 259	folder 11
Defense, Committee on, 1920	box 280	folder 4
Defense, Special Committee on, 1920	box 280	folder 5
Defense, Special Committee on, 1920	box 259	folder 12
Delegates and Representatives, Committee ofGeneral, 1875-1913	folder 13	
Education, Committee on, 1973	box 342	folder 5
Environment Special Committee on 1072 1072		

	box 280	folder 6
Erection of a Monument to Washington in Wall Street, Committee on the,, 1881	box 260	folder 1
Examinations, Sub-Committee of, 1912	box 260	folder 2
Experts, Committee of, 1878	box 260	folder 3
Finance, Committee onInternational Exposition of, 1892		
General, 1889-1890	box 372	folder 2
Correspondence, 1889-1890 (bound volume), 1889-1890	box 487	
Subscribers, 1889-1890 (bound volume), 1889-1890	box 479	
Finance and Currency, Committee on		
1885-1913	box 260	folder 4
1886-1889	box 260	folder 5
1890	box 285	folder 1
1890-1898	box 260	folder 6
1914-1924	box 260	folder 7
1919-1922	box 260	folder 8
1920-1923	box 280	folder 7
1973	box 342	folder 6
Thrift, 1919	box 260	folder 9
Food Supply and Distribution, Special Committee on, 1916-1919	box 260	folder 10
Foreign Commerce, Committee on, 1944-1950	box 280	folder 8
Foreign Commerce and the Revenue Laws, Committee on		
1875-1914	box 260	folder 11
1877-1912	box 261	folder 1
1920-1921	box 261	folder 2
Boston Differential Rate, 1922	box 261	folder 3
Chinese Exclusion Act, 1888	box 261	folder 4
CorrespondenceWilliam Peck, 1922-1924	box 261	folder 5
Minutes, 1916-1924	box 261	folder 6
Minutes, 1920-1924	box 280	folder 9
Reports, 1914-1924	box 261	folder 7

Foreign Trade and Shipping After the War, Special Committee on,, 1918-1919	box 261	folder 8
Freight Differentials Against the Port of New York, Joint Committee on,, 1912-1913	box 261	folder 9
Fund for Relief of Members and their Families, Committee on, 1932-1947 (2 Folders), 1932-1947	box 342	folder 7-8
Grant Monument Association, Special Committee of the Trustees of the		
1928-1929 (3 Folders), 1928-1929	box 280	folder 10-12
1928-1929	box 281	folder 1
1929 (2 Folders), 1929	box 281	folder 2-3
1929-1931	box 281	folder 4
1929-1932 (2 Folders), 1929-1932	box 281	folder 5-6
1930-1932	box 281	folder 7
Harbor and Shipping, Committee on		
1879-1910	box 262	folder 1
1879-1915	box 262	folder 2
1885	box 281	folder 8
1886-1898	box 262	folder 3
1911-1921	box 281	folder 9
1915-1922	box 282	folder 1
1916-1923	box 282	folder 2
1918-1922	box 282	folder 3
1919	box 262	folder 4
1919-1921	box 282	folder 4
1921-1924	box 282	folder 5
1922-1923	box 282	folder 6
1923-1924	box 282	folder 7
1943-1949	box 262	folder 5
Minutes, 1915-1923	box 283	folder 1
Minutes, 1920-1924	box 283	folder 2
Minutes, 1923-1924	box 283	folder 3
Health and Welfare, Committee on, 1959-1962	box 283	folder 4
Height of Buildings, Special Committee on, 1913-1914	box 262	folder 6

Hewitt Statue, Special Committee on the, 1903-1905	box 262	folder 7
Hudson River, Special Committee on the, 1893-1894	box 262	folder 8
Immigration, Special Committee on, 1873	box 262	folder 9
Immigration and Naturalization, Special Committee on, 1939	box 285	folder 2
Improvement of the Channel at Sandy Hook, Special Committee on the,, 1884	box 262	folder 10
Industrial Problems and Relations, Committee on		
1916-1920	box 262	folder 11
1920	box 283	folder 5
1949-1951	box 262	folder 12
Industrial Problems and Relations, Special Committee on		
1920	box 283	folder 6
1943-1949	box 262	folder 13
Industry and Trade, Committee on, 1973	box 342	folder 9
Industry, Trade and Transportation, Committee on		
1959-1965	box 262	folder 14
1959-1965	box 283	folder 7
Industry, Trade and Transportation, Committee on and Committee on Public Service,, 1964	box 283	folder 8
Immigration and Naturalization, Special Committee on Report, 1939	box 283	folder 9
Insurance, Committee on		
1894-1912	box 262	folder 15
1917-1923	box 283	folder 10
1943-1945	box 283	folder 11
CorrespondenceChairman, 1909-1920 (2 Folders), 1909-1920	box 263	folder 1-2
Minutes, 1916-1921	box 283	folder 12
Internal Trade and Improvements, Committee on		
1886-1898	box 263	folder 3
1899-1914	box 263	folder 4
1913-1921	box 283	folder 13
1923-1944	box 263	folder 5

Correspondence, 1916-1921	box 283	folder 14
Correspondence, 1916-1924	box 284	folder 1
Correspondence, 1919	box 284	folder 2
Minutes, 1915-1924 (2 Folders), 1915-1924	box 284	folder 3-4
Minutes, 1920-1923	box 284	folder 5
Reports, 1916-1921	box 284	folder 6
Reports, 1943-1951	box 285	folder 3
Telephone, 1920	box 284	folder 7
International Bills of Lading, Special Committee on		
1876-1910	box 263	folder 6
1884	box 285	folder 4
International Coinage, Special Committee on, 1876	box 263	folder 7
International Exposition of 1892 Committee for the, 1889-1892, 1892, 1889-1892	box 263	folder 8
Interstate Commerce, Committee on, 1914	box 263	folder 9
Investments, Committee onFund for Relief of Members and their Families		
1953	box 263	folder 10
1964	box 263	folder 11
Investments, Securities and Accounting, Special Committee on, 1926-1927	box 264	folder 1
Investments, Securities and Accounting, Special Committee onSyndicate for the Purchase of Certificates of Indebtedness		
1926-1928 (3 Folders), 1926-1928	box 264	folder 2-4
1927 (2 Folders), 1927	box 264	folder 5-6
Labor-Management Relations, Committee on		
1963-1972	box 285	folder 5
1972	box 264	folder 7
Law Reform, Committee on		
1944-1951	box 264	folder 8
1949-1973	box 285	folder 6
Licensing Sailors' Hotels or Board Houses, Board of Commissioners for,, 1902-1913	box 264	folder 9
Malana Nama Vanla a IInia Cula Camaniata and 1001		

	box 285	folder 7
Martinique Relief CommitteeCorrespondence, 1902-1903 (bound volume), 1902-1903	box 450	
Memory of Horace B. Claflin, Special Committee to the, 1886	box 264	folder 10
Memory of Peter Cooper, Special Committee to the, 1883	box 264	folder 11
Memory of Samuel B. Ruggles, Committee to the, 1881	box 264	folder 12
Merchant Marine, Committee on, 1915	box 264	folder 13
Military Affairs, Special Committee on, 1944-1946	box 285	folder 8
Mortgage Payments, Committee onJohn D. Rockefeller Jr., 1945	box 264	folder 14
Municipal Reform, Committee on, undated	box 264	folder 15
National Budget, Special Committee on a		
1920-1921	box 264	folder 16
1920-1921	box 285	folder 9
National Guard and Naval Militia, Committee on the, 1912	box 265	folder 1
National Guard and Naval Militia, Special Committee on the, 1913-1914	box 265	folder 2
National Security, Committee on, 1947-1951	box 285	folder 10
Nautical School of the Port of New York, Council of the		
1875-1885	box 265	folder 3
1886-1897	box 265	folder 4
1899-1912	box 265	folder 5
New Building, Committee on, 1866-1884 (bound volume), 1866-1884	box 449	
Nominations, Special Committee on, 1875-1914	box 265	folder 6
Panama Canal, Special Committee on		
Undated	box 285	folder 11
1909	box 265	folder 7
Pier Head Lines, Special Committee on, 1910-1911	box 265	folder 8
Pilotage, Special Committee on, 1883	box 265	folder 9
Pilots, Board of Commissioners of, 1912-1915	box 265	folder 10
Portrait of the Secretary of the Treasury, Special Committee on a,, 1879	box 265	folder 11

Preservation of Niagara Falls, Special Committee on the, 1906	box 265	folder 12
Problems of Shipments During the European War, Committee on, 1914-1918	box 265	folder 13
Public Health and Welfare, Committee on, 1944-1950	box 285	folder 12
Public Service in the Metropolitan District, Committee on		
1921-1923	box 265	folder 14
1921-1924	box 285	folder 13
1921-1924	box 266	folder 1
1923-1924	box 266	folder 2
1931-1938	box 266	folder 3
1944-1951	box 285	folder 14
Correspondence, 1922-1923 (2 Folders), 1922-1923	box 266	folder 4-5
Crime, 1922	box 266	folder 6
Fire Hazards, 1926	box 266	folder 7
Minutes, 1921-1924	box 285	
Minutes, 1923-1924	box 266	folder 8
Reports, 1921-1924	box 266	folder 9
Public Welfare, Special Committee on		
1920	box 285	folder 15
1920-1923	box 267	folder 1
Quarantine, Committee on / Medical Advisory Committee, 1892-1893	box 267	folder 2
Rapid Transit, Special Committee on		
1891-1910	box 267	folder 3
1905-1921	box 285	folder 16
1921	box 267	folder 4
Railroad Rates from New York to the Interior, Special Committee on,, 1910	box 267	folder 5
Railroad Transportation, Special Committee on, 1878-1884	box 267	folder 6
Real Estate and Buildings in Texas, Committee on, 1901	box 267	folder 7
Reception and Entertainment of Distinguished Foreign Visitors to the World's Fair, Special Committee on the,, 1893	box 267	folder 8

Recognition of the Services of Members of the Chamber on the Rapid Transit Commission, Special Committee on,, 1904	box 267	folder 9
Reduction in the Rates of Pilots Fees, Special Committee on a,, 1882	box 267	folder 10
Reform in the Transfer of Titles to Real Estate, Special Committee on1882	box 267	folder 11
Reforms in the Custom Service, Special Committee on, 1879-1894	box 267	folder 12
Reform of the Revenue Laws, Committee on, 1874 (bound volume), 1874	box 452	
Regional Plan of New York and its Environs, Committee onMaps,, 1928	mapcase 15- L-1	folder 1
<u>Separated Materials:</u> Separated Materials		
Moved from Flat Box 372 to a mapcase		
Relief, Committee onGeneral		
1902-1904	box 267	folder 13
1902-1904 (4 Folders), 1902-1904	box 268	folder 1-4
Relief of the Charleston, South Carolina Sufferers, Special Committee on,, 1886-1887	box 268	folder 5
Relief for Cuba, Committee on, 1898	box 268	folder 6
Relief for Galveston, Special Committee on, 1900-1901	box 268	folder 7
Relief of the Johnstown Sufferers, Special Committee on, 1889	box 268	folder 8
Relief for Martinique, Committee on, 1903	box 268	folder 9
Relief for Martinique and the West Indian Island, Committee onMargaret Gay,, 1902-1903	box 268	folder 10
Relief for Russia, Committee on, 1892	box 268	folder 11
Relief for San Francisco, Committee on, 1906 (bound volume), 1906	box 451	
Relief for San Francisco, Committee on, 1906-1909	box 269	folder 1
Relief for Savannah, Committee on, 1864-1865	box 269	folder 2
Relief for the West Indies, Committee on, 1902-1903	box 269	folder 3
Relief for Yellow Fever in the South, Committee on, 1878-1879	box 269	folder 4
Removal of the Brooklyn Navy Yard, Special Committee on, 1882	box 269	folder 5

Revenue Reform, Special Committee on, 1884-1885	box 269	folder 6
Revision of Storage Rates, Special Committee on, 1893-1904	box 269	folder 7
Safety First Problems, Committee on, 1918-1919	box 269	folder 8
School Sanitation and Equipment, Committee onBuilding Repairs,, 1919-1920	box 269	folder 9
Sherman Statue, Committee on the, 1891-1904 (2) Folders), 1891-1904	box 269	folder 10-11
Sound Financial Legislation, Special Committee on		
1893-1896	box 270	folder 1
1894-1896	box 270	folder 2
Spanish-American Treaty, Special Committee on, 1883-1886	box 270	folder 3
Speed of Canal Boats in the Erie Canal, Special Committee on, 1875	box 270	folder 4
State and Municipal Taxation, Committee on		
1900-1905	box 270	folder 5
1916-1921	box 270	folder 6
1917-1923	box 270	folder 7
Taxation, Committee on		
1905-1913	box 270	folder 8
1917-1923	box 270	folder 9
1920-1924	box 285	folder 17
1943-1951	box 270	folder 10
1963-1966	box 285	folder 18
1973	box 342	folder 10
Thrift, Special Committee on		
Undated	box 285	folder 19
1919	box 270	folder 11
Trade with Korea, Special Committee on, 1884	box 270	folder 12
Treasury Department, Special Committee on the, 1880-1881	box 271	folder 2
Unification of New York, Public Service Sub-Committee on, 1921	box 285	folder 20
Visiting Toyas, Committee on		

Visiting Texas, Committee on

1901	box 285	folder 21
1901	box 271	folder 3
Washington Monument, Sub-Committee on the, 1880-1883	box 271	folder 4
Workmen's Compensation Legislation, Committee on- Monopolistic State Insurance Fund,, 1922-1923	box 271	folder 5
Workmen's Compensation Legislation, Special Committee on, 1913	box 271	folder 6

<sup>^</sup> Return to Table of Contents

# Series VII: Correspondence, 1804-1979

### **Scope and Contents**

The correspondence records found in Series VII are divided into three subseries. While Subseries 1 and 2 deal primarily with the correspondence of the Chamber's officers, the correspondence in the third subseries is a group of subject files that were compiled by the organization in the second half of the 20th century.

#### **Subseries VII.1: Administration**

#### **Scope and Contents**

The majority of records found in Subseries 1 originate from the correspondence of the Chamber's Secretaries, who were responsible for handling most of the communication for the Chamber's President and Vice Presidents, as well as the organization as a whole. Missives directed to the Chamber were generally funneled through the Secretary before reaching those in higher offices. This subseries reflects the tenure of several of the Chamber's Secretaries throughout the late 19th century and 20th century. Correspondence is arranged alphabetically according to the Secretary's last name, and then by subject. Beginning in the early 20th century, records often contain copies of outgoing as well as incoming correspondence.

Title/Description	Instances	
General, 1866-1979		
Air Raid Protection, 1950	box 336	folder 1
Atlantic Telegraph Banquet, 1866	box 455	
Champion, George, 1962-1963	box 336	folder 2
Interstate Commerce Commission Service Orders, 1950	box 336	folder 3
Nominations, 1862-1965	box 486	
Requests and Inquiries		
1919-1924 (2 Folders), 1919-1924	box 336	folder 4-5
1920-1924 (2 Folders), 1920-1924	box 336	folder 6-7
Rockefeller, Nelson A., 1979	box 336	folder 17

Schieffeln, William Jay, 1910-1919	box 336	folder 8
Truman, Harry, 1945-1946	box 336	folder 9
Bush, Irving, 1920-1923		
General		
1920-1923	box 297	folder 1
1922-1923 (4 Folders), 1922-1923	box 297	folder 2-5
Great Lakes-St. Lawrence Tidewater Association, 1923	box 297	folder 6
Hoover, J. Edgar, 1921	box 297	folder 7
Davis, B.C., 1946-1957		
Clarey, Margaret, 1956-1957	box 336	folder 10
Legislative Reorganization Act, 1946-1948	box 336	folder 11
New York Museum of Science and Industry, 1949-1953	box 374	folder 11
Gwynne, John, 1949-1964		
General, 1963-1964	box 329	folder 1
Committees		
Arbitration, Committee on		
1949-1951	box 329	folder 2
1956-1964	box 329	folder 3
Promotion of the Port of New York, Joint Committee for, 1960-1964 (2 Folders), 1960-1964	box 329	folder 4-5
Essay Contest		
1961-1963	box 329	folder 6
1962	box 329	folder 7
Merger with the Commerce and Industry Association, 1964	box 329	folder 8
Monthly Meetings, 1960-1964	box 329	folder 9
Monthly Meetings Guest Tickets, 1963-1964	box 329	folder 10
Monthly Meetings Invitations, 1962-1963	box 329	folder 11
Homans, I.S., 1859-1923		
Atlantic Telegraph Cable Commemorative Medals, 1859-1861	box 336	folder 12
Fort Sumter and Fort Pickens Medals, 1861-1923	box 336	folder 13

Staff Wages, 1915	box 296	folder 6
Orr, A.E., 1898		
McKinley, William, 1898	box 336	folder 14
Ortner, E., 1978-1984		
Insight Transformational Seminars, 1981-1984	box 374	folder 12
Memorandum, 1978-1984	box 374	folder 13
Pratt, Sereno, 1910-1916		
Building Fund, 1910-1916	box 297	folder 8
Building Find Certificates, 1910-1911	box 297	folder 9
Stainback, T., 1972		
Cleveland, Grover, 1972	box 336	folder 15
Tamblyn, Jere, 1902-1929		
General		
1919-1924 (3 Folders), 1919-1924	box 200	folder 1-3
1922-1926	box 200	folder 4
1922-1929	box 200	folder 5
1923-1929	box 200	folder 6
1924	box 200	folder 7
1924-1925	box 200	folder 8
1924-1926 (4 Folders), 1924-1926	box 200	folder 9-12
1925-1926	box 201	folder 1
1927-1929	box 201	folder 2
1928-1929 (10 Folders), 1928-1929	box 201	folder 3-12
General/Membership		
1924-1926	box 201	folder 13
1924-1926	box 202	folder 1
157th Annual Banquet, 1925	box 202	folder 2
Arbitration, 1924-1926 (2 Folders), 1924-1926	box 202	folder 3-4
Building Insurance		
1902-1922	box 286	folder 1
1920-1924	box 286	folder 2
Building Repairs and Improvements, 1919-1924	box 286	folder 3

Chamber of Commerce of the Borough of Queens,	box 202	folder 5
1925-1926	2011 202	
Ecker, Frederick, 1925-1926	box 202	folder 6
'Get Out the Vote!' Placard, 1928	box 202	folder 7
Holland-American Arbitration Compact, 1925	box 202	folder 8
New York City Budget, 1925-1926	box 202	folder 9
New York State Unemployment Insurance Fund, 1936	box 202	folder 10
Requests and Inquiries		
1923-1925	box 202	folder 11
1923-1926 (2 Folders), 1923-1926	box 202	folder 12-13
1924-1925	box 203	folder 1
1924-1926 (8 Folders), 1924-1926	box 203	folder 2-9
1924-1926 (7 Folders), 1924-1926	box 204	folder 1-7
1924-1926 (3 Folders), 1924-1926	box 286	folder 4-6
1925-1926	box 286	folder 7
E1920-1924	box 286	folder 8
F1920-1924	box 286	folder 9
G1920-1924	box 287	folder 1
H1920-1924	box 287	folder 2
I-J, 1920-1924	box 287	folder 3
K1920-1924	box 287	folder 4
L1920-1924	box 287	folder 5
M, 1920-1924 (2 Folders), 1920-1924	box 287	folder 6-7
N1920-1924	box 287	folder 8
O1920-1924	box 287	folder 9
P1920-1924	box 288	folder 1
Q1921	box 288	folder 2
R1920-1924	box 288	folder 3
S1919-1924	box 288	folder 4
T1920-1924	box 288	folder 5
U1919-1924	box 288	folder 6
V1920-1924	box 288	folder 7

	box 288	folder 8
Requests for Photographs of New York, 1927-1929	box 288	folder 9
Tegnell, G.G., 1969		
National Career Exposition, 1969	box 336	folder 16
Wilson, George, 1889-1896		
Chinese Exclusion Act, 1889	box 296	folder 7
Committees		
Sound Financial Legislation, Special Committee on, 1895	box 296	folder 8
Sound Financial Legislation, Sub-Committee of the Special Committee on, 1895-1896 (2 Folders), 1895-1896	box 297	folder 10-11
Gold Standard, 1896	box 296	folder 9

### Subseries VII.2: Gwynne, Charles T., 1916-1941

#### **Scope and Contents**

Perhaps one of the Chamber's most dedicated staff members, Charles Gwynne was first employed by the organization as a clerk in 1894. Advancing through the ranks, Gwynne was elected Assistant Secretary, 1909-1915; Secretary, 1915-1924; Vice-President 1922-1924; and Executive Vice-President, 1924-1944. Subseries 2 contains Charles Gwynne's correspondence with national and international businesses and chambers of commerce, and the Chamber's committees and members; it mostly derives from Gwynne's time as Secretary. Like the materials found in Subseries 1, the items found here are a part of the administration's correspondence; however, because Gwynne retained such a large volume of his correspondence, his materials were given a separate subseries. Due to Gwynne's prolific correspondence it appears that documents were occasionally misfiled; therefore, it may be useful to view folders on similar subjects.

Title/Description	Instances	
General		
1919-1920	box 150	folder 1
1920	box 198	folder 1
1920-1922 (2 Folders), 1920-1922	box 150	folder 2-3
1920-1923	box 150	folder 4
1920-1924 (2 Folders), 1920-1924	box 150	folder 5-6
1920-1924	box 289	folder 1
1921	box 150	folder 7
1921-1922	box 150	folder 8
1921-1924 (3 Folders), 1921-1924	box 150	folder 9-11
1921-1929 (2 Folders), 1921-1929	box 151	folder 1-2

1922 (3 Folders), 1922	box 151	folder 3-5
1922-1923 (5 Folders), 1922-1923	box 151	folder 6-10
1922-1923 (12 Folders), 1922-1923	box 156	folder 1-12
1922-1924 (2 Folders), 1922-1924	box 152	folder 1-2
1922-1929	box 152	folder 3
1923-1924 (7 Folders), 1923-1924	box 152	folder 4-10
1923-1924	box 198	folder 2
1923-1924 (6 Folders), 1923-1924	box 161	folder 1-6
1923-1925 (2 Folders), 1923-1925	box 161	folder 7-8
1923-1925 (3 Folders), 1923-1925	box 153	folder 1-3
1924 (2 Folders), 1924	box 153	folder 4-5
1924-1925 (5 Folders), 1924-1925	box 153	folder 6-10
1924-1925 (12 Folders), 1924-1925	box 154	folder 1-12
1924-1925 (2 Folders), 1924-1925	box 155	folder 1-2
1925 (3 Folders), 1925	box 155	folder 3-5
1925-1926 (2 Folders), 1925-1926	box 155	folder 6-7
1925-1926	box 164	folder 1
1926 (4 Folders), 1926	box 164	folder 2-5
155th Annual Banquet, 1923 (2 Folders), 1923	box 117	folder 1-2
Acknowledgement of Reports, 1923-1924	box 117	folder 3
Advisory Committee to the School of Business of Columbia University		
1924	box 117	folder 4
1924	box 289	folder 2
American Chamber of Commerce in London/Greece, 1921-1922	box 289	folder 3
American Legion, 1920	box 117	folder 5
American Peace Award, 1923-1924	box 117	folder 6
Aneha, J., 1925	box 117	folder 7
Arbitration		
1921	box 289	folder 4
1921-1923	box 198	folder 3
Arbitration Legislature, 1919-1921	box 289	folder 5

Barge Canal, 1921	box 117	folder 8-9
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Bernheimer, Charles		
1922-1923	box 198	folder 4
1923	box 198	folder 5
Quit Claim Deed, 1918	box 289	folder 6
Portrait, 1925	box 289	folder 7
Bethell, Union N., Chairman of the Committee on Public Welfare,, 1920-1921	box 117	folder 10
Blackwood, W.A., 1920	box 117	folder 11
Bowen, Millard, 1921	box 289	folder 8
Brooklyn Chamber of Commerce, 1921-1924	box 289	folder 9
Building Fund Certificates, 1916-1919	box 289	folder 10
Building Repairs and Improvements, 1907-1923	box 289	folder 11
Bush, Irving T.		
1921-1922	box 289	folder 12
1922	box 117	folder 12
1922-1923	box 117	folder 13
1922-1923 (2 Folders), 1922-1923	box 147	folder 1-2
1923-1924 (3 Folders), 1923-1924	box 147	folder 3-5
1923-1924	box 289	folder 13
1924-1925	box 289	folder 14
Articles, 1923	box 147	folder 6
Committee on Harbor and Shipping, 1919-1920	box 198	folder 6
Building Alterations and Repairs		
1921	box 147	folder 7
1921-1922	box 147	folder 8
Business Information Requests from other Cities, 1922-1924	box 147	folder 9
Calendar Reform, 1922-1923	box 198	folder 7
Cathedral of St. John the Divine, 1924-1925	box 159	folder 1
Certificate of Ownership from the Broadway Tabernacle Society,, 1912-1920	box 289	folder 15
Chamber of Commerce of the Borough of Queens		

1922-1923	box 159	folder 2
1923-1924	box 159	folder 3
1924-1925	box 159	folder 4
Cohen, Julius Henry, Counsel, 1919-1922	box 159	folder 5
Committee Appointments, 1924	box 289	folder 16
Committee Nominations, 1925	box 289	folder 17
Committees		
One Hundred, Committee of, 1919	box 289	folder 18
Arbitration, Committee on		
1919-1921	box 289	folder 19
1920-1922	box 198	folder 8
1921	box 290	folder 1
1921-1922	box 290	folder 2
Commercial Education, Committee on		
1920-1922	box 290	folder 3
1921-1924	box 290	folder 4
1923	box 198	folder 9
Conservation of State Waters, Lands and Forests, 1919-1921	box 290	folder 5
Cooperate with the Lower Taxes-Less Legislation League, Committee to,, 1924	box 290	folder 6
Defense, Special Committee on, 1917-1920	box 195	folder 1
Diversion of Freight for Export from the Port of New York, Sub-Committee on,, 1920	box 195	folder 2
Finance and Currency, Committee on		
1919-1920	box 198	folder 10
1919-1920	box 290	folder 7
1920-1922	box 290	folder 8
1922-1923	box 198	folder 11
1922-1924	box 290	folder 9
Foreign Commerce and Revenue Laws, Committee on		
1919	box 198	folder 12
1919-1920 (2 Folders), 1919-1920	box 198	folder 13-14

1919-1920	box 290	folder 10
1920-1921	box 290	folder 11
1921	box 291	folder 1
1921-1923	box 198	folder 15
1922	box 159	folder 6
1922-1923	box 291	folder 2
Harbor and Shipping, Committee on		
1918-1920	box 198	folder 16
1919-1921	box 291	folder 3
1920-1921 (2 Folders), 1920-1921	box 291	folder 4-5
1920-1923	box 195	folder 3
1921-1922	box 159	folder 7
1922	box 159	folder 8
1922-1923	box 195	folder 4
1923	box 195	folder 5
1923-1924 (2 Folders), 1923-1924	box 291	folder 6-7
Hearing on the return of funds held by Alien Property Custodian,, 1925	box 159	folder 9
Industrial Problems and Relations, Committee on, 1919-1921	box 118	folder 1
Industrial Problems and Relations, Special Committee on, 1921-1922	box 291	folder 8
Insurance, Committee on		
1919-1920	box 195	folder 6
1920	box 195	folder 7
1920-1921	box 118	folder 2
1921	box 291	folder 9
1922-1923	box 195	folder 8
Internal Trade and Improvements, Committee on,		
1919-1920	box 195	folder 9
1919-1920	box 179	folder 1
1919-1921	box 118	folder 3
1920-1921	box 292	folder 1

box 292 box 118 box 118 box 179 box 292 box 292 box 159 box 159	folder 2 folder 4-6 folder 7 folder 2 folder 3 folder 4 folder 10 folder 11
box 118 box 179 box 292 box 292 box 159 box 159	folder 7 folder 2 folder 3 folder 4 folder 10
box 179 box 292 box 292 box 159 box 159	folder 2 folder 3 folder 4 folder 10
box 292 box 292 box 159 box 159	folder 3 folder 4 folder 10
box 292 box 159 box 159	folder 4 folder 10
box 159 box 159	folder 10
box 159	
	folder 11
box 118	folder 8
box 158	folder 1
box 118	folder 9
box 118	folder 10
box 118	folder 11
box 179	folder 3
box 179	folder 4
box 292	folder 5
box 292	folder 6
box 179	folder 5
box 179	folder 6
box 158	folder 2
box 195	folder 10
box 179	folder 7
box 195	folder 11
box 195	folder 12
DOX 133	
	box 292 box 292 box 179 box 179 box 158 box 195 box 179

1919-1922	box 292	folder 7
1922	box 179	folder 8
1922-1924 (2 Folders), 1922-1924	box 293	folder 1-2
Thrift, Committee on, 1919-1921	box 179	folder 9
Trade Relations, Joint Committee on, 1923	box 195	folder 14
Conference regarding Diversion of Export Freight from New York to Other Ports,, 1920	box 179	folder 10
Conventions, 1923-1924	box 179	folder 11
Data for Annual Report, 1918	box 293	folder 3
Dime for Outclassing Rockefeller, 1929	box 293	folder 4
Dingle, Edwin J., 1921-1922	box 293	folder 5
Discrimination of North Atlantic Ports and Railroads, 1920 (2 Folders), 1920	box 162	folder 1-2
Eastern Apple Exposition and Fruit Fair Essay Contest, 1923 (2 Folders), 1923	box 162	folder 3-4
Ecker, Frederick		
1923-1924	box 162	folder 5
1924 (2 Folders), 1924	box 293	folder 6-7
1925	box 293	folder 8
Eisman, Max, 1923-1924	box 162	folder 6
European Tour		
1924 (3 Folders), 1924	box 162	folder 7-9
1927	box 162	folder 10
Executive Committee		
1919-1921	box 293	folder 9
1920-1922	box 294	folder 1
1920-1924	box 162	folder 11
Federal Seaman Compensation Bill, 1921	box 162	folder 12
Fontaine/Textiles, 1923	box 162	folder 13
Foreign Trade, 1916-1924 (3 Folders), 1916-1924	box 294	folder 2-4
Form Letters, 1919-1922	box 195	folder 15
Haller, Josef Visit, 1923	box 294	folder 5
Howhow and Chinning		

	· ·	
1919	box 294	folder 6
1920	box 162	folder 14
Harlem River, 1921	box 162	folder 15
Hearing on Port Authority Plans, 1922	box 294	folder 7
Hostility Toward New York, 1922	box 195	folder 16
House Committee, 1921-1922	box 118	folder 12
Hudson Valley Federated Chamber of Commerce, 1925-1926	box 162	folder 16
Hughes, Charles E., 1925	box 294	folder 8
Hydrographic Office, 1920-1921	box 162	folder 17
The Intercollegiate Cosmopolitan Club Reception, 1923	box 195	folder 17
International Joint Commission on the St. Lawrence Ship Canal,, 1920	box 199	folder 1
Kingsley, Darwin P.		
1921	box 148	folder 1
1921-1922 (2 Folders), 1921-1922	box 148	folder 2-3
1923-1924	box 148	folder 4
Committee on Insurance, 1919-1920	box 148	folder 5
Kyoto Round-the-World Party, 1925-1927	box 148	folder 6
Luncheon		
Bush, Irving T., 1923	box 148	folder 7
Chinese High Commission, 1924	box 148	folder 8
Meeting, 1923	box 294	folder 9
Newly Elected Members	box 148	folder 9
1923 February	box 148	folder 10
1923 March	box 148	folder 11
1923 April	box 148	folder 12
1923 May	box 148	folder 13
1923 December	box 148	folder 14
1924 May	box 294	folder 10
Relation to the National Retail Dry Goods Association Convention,, 1923	box 148	folder 15
Lusk Report, 1923	box 199	folder 2
Mans Undated		

	box 294	folder 11
Marling, Alfred E., 1921-1923	box 294	folder 12
Marshall Stillman Movement, 1923-1924	box 199	folder 3
Mellon Tax Reduction Plan, 1923	box 294	folder 13
Membership, 1925	box 295	folder 1
Membership Luncheon, 1923-1924 (2 Folders), 1923-1924	box 199	folder 4-5
The Merchants Association of New York, 1921-1924	box 199	folder 6
Monthly Meetings, 1924-1925	box 295	folder 2
New York Chamber of Commerce Funds, 1912-1934	box 295	folder 3
New York State Waterways Conference Committee Recording Secretary		
1921-1923 (3 Folders), 1921-1923	box 199	folder 7-9
1923-1925	box 295	folder 4
Narrative of European Tour, 1924	box 160	folder 1
National Civic Federation, 1919-1924	box 160	folder 2
National Defense, 1922-1923	box 160	folder 3
New York Chamber of Commerce Commercial Examination Awards, 1923-1924	box 160	folder 4
Nominating Committee, 1922-1923 (2 Folders), 1922-1923	box 160	folder 5-6
Outerbridge, E.H., 1919-1923	box 295	folder 5
Peace Treaty, 1919-1920 (2 Folders), 1919-1920	box 160	folder 7-8
Peed, Garland Powell, New Membership Campaign, 1941-1942 (2 Folders), 1941-1942	box 160	folder 9-10
Personal, 1917-1919	box 160	folder 11
Plan for the Comprehensive Development of the Port of New York, 1921-1923 (2 Folders), 1921-1923	box 157	folder 1-2
Pollution of Navigable Waters; Pontoon Bridge, Hudson River, 1921	box 157	folder 3
Port and Harbor Development, 1920-1921	box 157	folder 4
Port Treaty, 1920	box 157	folder 5
Public Service Commission, 1922	box 295	folder 6
Public Welfare, 1922-1923	box 157	folder 6
Purchase of Cape Cod Canal, 1923	box 196	folder 1
Reception for Lloyd George, 1923 (4 Folders), 1923	box 196	folder 2-5

Reconstruction Commission/Consumption Tax, 1919-1920	box 196	folder 6
Report on Arbitration Court of the Chamber of Commerce, 1922-1923	box 196	folder 7
Representatives of the Commercial Organizations of New York State,, 1920-1922	box 196	folder 8
Requests and Inquiries		
1920-1924	box 295	folder 7
1921-1924	box 295	folder 8
1922-1923 (2 Folders), 1922-1923	box 295	folder 9-10
1923-1924 (2 Folders), 1923-1924	box 196	folder 9-10
1923-1924 (5 Folders), 1923-1924	box 197	folder 1-5
Revision of the New York City Charter, 1922	box 197	folder 6
Ring, Welding, 1919-1921	box 197	folder 7
Russia		
1919-1920	box 157	folder 7
1919-1920	box 158	folder 3
Safeguarding Small Investors, 1922	box 158	folder 4
Safeguarding Small Investors, 1922-1923	box 197	folder 8
Schwab, Gustav, 1915	box 197	folder 9
Smith, Philip D., 1923	box 158	folder 5
Southern Exposition, 1924-1925 (2 Folders), 1924-1925	box 296	folder 1-2
Staten Island Ferry Service, 1920-1921	box 158	folder 6
St. Lawrence Canal		
1920-1921	box 158	folder 7
1920-1922	box 296	folder 3
Sterling Bill, 1923	box 197	folder 10
Thrift Citizens Movement, 1919-1921	box 158	folder 8
Transportation Congestion Meeting, 1920	box 296	folder 4
United States Chamber of Commerce, 1921-1925	box 296	folder 5
Use of the Great Hall, 1923	box 197	folder 11
Viviani, René, 1921-1922	box 158	folder 9
Yale University Press Film Service, 1925	box 158	folder 10

#### **Scope and Contents**

The correspondence subject files in subseries 3 remains true to its original order, though researchers should note that the original arrangement appears to have been contrived by the organization itself in the second half of the 20th century. The correspondence found here focuses on a wide range of topics, and derives largely from the 19th century. Subjects of local concern, such as urban development, New York City harbor defense, and sanitation are noted. National issues related to commerce and industry also figure into the correspondence in this subseries; the Chamber's involvement with the establishment of the first transatlantic cable, international canals as a means of transport, national currency, interstate commerce, and government offices are all subjects addressed here. Correspondence is arranged alphabetically by subject.

Title/Description	Instances	
General		
Undated	box 225	folder 1
1816-1907	box 225	folder 2
1830-1839	box 225	folder 3
1840-1849	box 225	folder 4
1841-1937	box 225	folder 5-6
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1850-1859	box 225	folder 7
1860-1869 (3 Folders), 1860-1869	box 225	folder 8-10
1870-1879	box 225	folder 11
1870-1879	box 226	folder 1-2
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1880-1885	box 226	folder 3
1880-1889	box 226	folder 4
1880-1908	box 226	folder 5
1890-1899	box 226	folder 6
1900-1909	box 226	folder 7
1910-1919	box 226	folder 8
1920-1929	box 226	folder 9
1930-1939	box 226	folder 10
1940-1949	box 226	folder 11
1970-1979	box 226	folder 12
Academy of Medicine, 1896	box 227	folder 1
Acknowledgements, 1877-1934	box 227	folder 2
Annual Banquets, 1887-1900	box 227	folder 3

Arbitration, 1804-1866	box 227	folder 4
Arbitration, 1822-1911	box 227	folder 5
Arbitration, 1851-1886	box 227	folder 6
Assay Office, 1853-1863	box 227	folder 7
Association of Partners of Stock Exchange Firms, 1913	box 227	folder 8
Assessments, 1862	box 227	folder 9
Atlantic Cable, 1862-1864	box 227	folder 10
Atlantic CableDinner for Cyrus Field, 1866	box 227	folder 11
Atlantic Cable Portrait, 1893-1895	box 227	folder 12
Aviation, 1862	box 227	folder 13
Bankruptcy, 1840-1889	box 227	folder 14
Banking LawsNew York City, 1838-1864	box 227	folder 15
Bark Maury, 1855-1863	box 227	folder 16
Battery Extension, 1857-1870	box 227	folder 17
Benner, Hiram H., Case, 1879-1906	box 227	folder 18
Bills of Lading, 1875-1885	box 227	folder 19
Board of Commissioners of Pilots, 1896-1931	box 227	folder 20
Bookkeeping, 1848-1849	box 227	folder 21
Brazil, 1863-1865	box 227	folder 22
Bureau of American Republics, 1898	box 227	folder 23
California, 1864-1866	box 227	folder 24
Canals		
Inter Oceanic Nicaragua, 1879-1901	box 227	folder 25
New York State, 1857-1882	box 228	folder 1
Panama, 1909-1912	box 228	folder 2
Suez, 1865-1871	box 228	folder 3
Census, 1828-1891	box 228	folder 4
Central System, 1866-1878	box 228	folder 5
Certification of Origin, 1911	box 228	folder 6
Chamber of Commerce of the United States, 1912-1913	box 228	folder 7
Chambers of Commerce, 1838-1902	box 228	folder 8
Charleston, 1896	box 228	folder 9

"Charter, By-Laws, and Organization of the Chamber of Commerce of the State of New York",, 1844	box 228	folder 10
Cheap Transportation Association, 1867-1877	box 228	folder 11
Chicago Fire, 1871-1872	box 228	folder 12
China, 1844-1918	box 228	folder 13
Cholera OutbreaksSwine Disease, 1883	box 228	folder 14
Citizens Budget Commission, 1932	box 228	folder 15
City Development and Planning, 1912	box 228	folder 16
City HallGeography, 1867	box 228	folder 17
Civil WarUnited States, 1862-1868	box 228	folder 18
Clinton Vases, 1893-1908	box 228	folder 19
Coast Survey, 1845-1862	box 228	folder 20
Collector of the Port, 1849	box 228	folder 21
Colleges of Commerce in New York City, 1899-1915	box 228	folder 22
Committees		
Claims Against the Government, Committee on, 1850-1857	box 229	folder 1
Seigniorage, Committee on, 1853	box 229	folder 2
Sherman Statue, Committee on the, 1891-1913	box 229	folder 3
Wharves, Piers and Slips, Committee on, 1836-1910	box 229	folder 4
Communications with New York State Government Officials		
1837-1914 (2 Folders), 1837-1914	box 229	folder 5-6
1849-1892	box 229	folder 7
Consular Service, 1862-1894	box 229	folder 8
Copyright		
Monthly Bulletin, 1939-1963	box 229	folder 9
Monthly Bulletin, 1960-1964	box 229	folder 10
Cotton, 1843-1898	box 230	folder 1
	box 230	folder 2
Cuba, 1853-1902	2011 200	
Currency	50A <b>2</b> 00	
	box 230	folder 3

Custom House		
Administration, 1862	box 230	folder 5
Forms, 1858-1879	box 230	folder 6
Customs Inspection, 1836-1856	box 230	folder 7
Danish Sound Dues, 1853	box 230	folder 8
DebtorsNonresident, 1839	box 230	folder 9
Debts of the Southern States, 1861	box 230	folder 10
Department of Commerce and Labor, 1907	box 230	folder 11
Defense, 1860-1893	box 230	folder 12
Diving Apparatus, 1857	box 230	folder 13
Dodge Statue, 1883-1885	box 230	folder 14
Dudley Observatory, 1856	box 230	folder 15
Duties Collection, 1856-1867	box 230	folder 16
Ecuador, 1880	box 230	folder 17
England, 1862	box 230	folder 18
Expeditions, 1863 1893, 1863, 1893	box 230	folder 19
Fire DepartmentNew York City, 1856	box 230	folder 20
Flynn's Knoll Lighthouse, 1842	box 374	folder 14
France, 1850-1893	box 230	folder 21
Francis, Joseph, 1889-1892	box 230	folder 22
Freight, 1885-1913	box 230	folder 23
Garfield, President James A., 1881	box 230	folder 24
General Average, 1860-1878	box 230	folder 25
Germany, 1883	box 230	folder 26
Gifts, 1833-1859	box 230	folder 27
Governor's Island, 1912	box 230	folder 28
Grant's Tomb, 1928-1930	box 230	folder 29
Harbor DefenseNew York City, 1863	box 230	folder 30
Harbor Master's Bill, 1862	box 230	folder 31
Harbor Supervisor, 1884	box 230	folder 32
History of CommerceUnited States, 1863-1910	box 231	folder 1
Honorary Members, 1860-1910	box 231	folder 2

Hudson River Navigation, 1845	box 231	folder 3
Immigration, 1862-1867	box 231	folder 4
Institution for the Savings of Merchants' Clerk, 1847-1909	box 231	folder 5
Insurance, 1844-1914	box 231	folder 6
International Law, 1877	box 231	folder 7
International Reciprocity, 1853-1865	box 231	folder 8
Interstate Commerce, 1879	box 231	folder 9
Italy, 1909	box 231	folder 10
Japan, 1860-1872	box 231	folder 11
Korea, 1883	box 231	folder 12
Labor, 1868-1913	box 231	folder 13
Langeloth Home, 1914	box 231	folder 14
Laws Related to Principals and Factors or Agents, 1825	box 231	folder 15
Letters of Appreciation, 1837-1866	box 231	folder 16
Lexon Committee, 1894-1895	box 231	folder 17
Life PreservationMarine, 1840-1870	box 231	folder 18
Life PreserversSteam Boats, 1821	box 231	folder 19
Lighthouses, 1838-1867	box 231	folder 20
Lincoln, AbrahamDeath, 1865	box 231	folder 21
Location, 1857	box 231	folder 22
Low Reception, 1867	box 231	folder 23
Madagascar, 1896	box 231	folder 24
Marine Hospital, 1848	box 231	folder 25
Marine Signals, 1846-1864	box 231	folder 26
Marine Surveyor, 1843-1857	box 231	folder 27
Maury, Matthew Fontaine, 1853	box 231	folder 28
Mercantile Marine, 1836-1885	box 232	folder 1
Merchants Coffee House, 1914	box 232	folder 2
Metropolitan Fair, 1864	box 232	folder 3
Mexico, 1838-1878	box 232	folder 4
Mississippi Court Records, 1866-1867	box 232	folder 5
Morse, Samuel F.BDeath, 1872	box 232	folder 6

National Commerce, 1880-1915 box 232 folder 8 Nautical School, 1867-1906 box 232 folder 9 Navigation  1846-1885 box 232 folder 10 1847-1894 box 232 folder 11 New York Chamber of Commerce  Administrative Records, 1837-1873 box 232 folder 12 Building, 1902-1912 box 232 folder 13 Bronze Building Plaque, 1910-1911 box 232 folder 14 By-Laws, 1843 box 232 folder 15  Meeting Rooms, 1855 box 232 folder 15  Member Resignations, 1863-1870 (2 Folders), box 233 folder 1-2 1863-1870 Monthly Meetings, 1849-1856 box 233 folder 3  Membership Concerns, 1855-1914 box 233 folder 4  Officer Acceptances and Resignations, 1839-1915 box 233 folder 5  Special Meeting Requests, 1838-1914 (3 Folders), 1838-1914 New York Produce Exchange, 1879 box 233 folder 9 ObservatoriesNew York City, 1847-1859 box 233 folder 10 PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914 box 233 folder 11 Port of New York Commission, 1914 box 233 folder 12 Privateering, 1854-1862 box 233 folder 12 Privateering, 1854-1862 box 233 folder 12 Privateering, 1854-1862 box 234 folder 1 Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864 box 234 folder 2 Public DebtNew York State, 1860-1861  Public DebtNew York State, 1890-1891 box 234 folder 3  Public Health, 1880-1914 box 234 folder 4  Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865 box 234 folder 5  Railroads, 1838-1868 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 7			
Navigation  1846-1885	National Guard, 1898	box 232	folder 7
Navigation  1846-1885 box 232 folder 10  1847-1894 box 232 folder 11  New York Chamber of Commerce  Administrative Records, 1837-1873 box 232 folder 12  Building, 1902-1912 box 232 folder 13  Bronze Building Plaque, 1910-1911 box 232 folder 14  By-Laws, 1843 box 232 folder 15  Meeting Rooms, 1855 box 232 folder 16  Member Resignations, 1863-1870 (2 Folders), box 233 folder 1-2  1863-1870 box 233 folder 3  Membership Concerns, 1855-1914 box 233 folder 4  Officer Acceptances and Resignations, 1839-1915 box 233 folder 5  Special Meeting Requests, 1838-1914 (3 Folders), box 233 folder 6-8  1838-1914 New York Produce Exchange, 1879 box 233 folder 9  ObservatoriesNew York City, 1847-1859 box 233 folder 10  PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914 box 233 folder 10  Police-New York Commission, 1914 box 233 folder 12  Privateering, 1854-1862 box 233 folder 12  Privateering, 1854-1864 box 234 folder 1  Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860 box 234 folder 1  Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860 box 234 folder 2  Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864 box 234 folder 2  Public DebtNew York State, 1890-1891 box 234 folder 3  Public Health, 1880-1914 box 234 folder 4  Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865 box 234 folder 5  Railroads, 1838-1868 box 234 folder 6  Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 7	National Commerce, 1880-1915	box 232	folder 8
1846-1885         box 232         folder 10           1847-1894         box 232         folder 11           New York Chamber of Commerce         Folder 12           Administrative Records, 1837-1873         box 232         folder 12           Building, 1902-1912         box 232         folder 13           Bronze Building Plaque, 1910-1911         box 232         folder 14           By-Laws, 1843         box 232         folder 15           Meeting Rooms, 1855         box 232         folder 16           Member Resignations, 1863-1870 (2 Folders),         box 233         folder 1-2           1863-1870         box 233         folder 3           Monthly Meetings, 1849-1856         box 233         folder 3           Membership Concerns, 1855-1914         box 233         folder 4           Officer Acceptances and Resignations, 1839-1915         box 233         folder 5           Special Meeting Requests, 1838-1914 (3 Folders),         box 233         folder 6-8           1838-1914         New York Produce Exchange, 1879         box 233         folder 9           ObservatoriesNew York State, 1872-1914         box 233         folder 10           PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914         box 233         folder 12           Privateering, 1854-1862 <td< td=""><td>Nautical School, 1867-1906</td><td>box 232</td><td>folder 9</td></td<>	Nautical School, 1867-1906	box 232	folder 9
New York Chamber of Commerce	Navigation		
New York Chamber of Commerce         Administrative Records, 1837-1873       box 232       folder 12         Building, 1902-1912       box 232       folder 13         Bronze Building Plaque, 1910-1911       box 232       folder 14         By-Laws, 1843       box 232       folder 15         Meeting Rooms, 1855       box 232       folder 16         Member Resignations, 1863-1870 (2 Folders), 1863-1870       box 233       folder 1-2         Member Resignations, 1849-1856       box 233       folder 3         Membership Concerns, 1855-1914       box 233       folder 4         Officer Acceptances and Resignations, 1839-1915       box 233       folder 5         Special Meeting Requests, 1838-1914 (3 Folders), 1838-1914       box 233       folder 6-8         New York Produce Exchange, 1879       box 233       folder 9         Observatories—New York Site, 1872-1914       box 233       folder 10         Police—New York State, 1872-1914       box 233       folder 11         Port of New York Commission, 1914       box 233       folder 12         Privateering, 1854-1862       box 234       folder 1         Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860       box 234       folder 1         Public Debt—New York State, 1863-1864       box 234 <td< td=""><td>1846-1885</td><td>box 232</td><td>folder 10</td></td<>	1846-1885	box 232	folder 10
Administrative Records, 1837-1873 box 232 folder 12  Building, 1902-1912 box 232 folder 13  Bronze Building Plaque, 1910-1911 box 232 folder 14  By-Laws, 1843 box 232 folder 15  Meeting Rooms, 1855 box 232 folder 16  Member Resignations, 1863-1870 (2 Folders), box 233 folder 1-2  1863-1870 Monthly Meetings, 1849-1856 box 233 folder 3  Membership Concerns, 1855-1914 box 233 folder 4  Officer Acceptances and Resignations, 1839-1915 box 233 folder 5  Special Meeting Requests, 1838-1914 (3 Folders), box 233 folder 6-8  1838-1914 New York Produce Exchange, 1879 box 233 folder 9  ObservatoriesNew York City, 1847-1859 box 233 folder 10  PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914 box 233 folder 11  Port of New York Commission, 1914 box 233 folder 12  Privateering, 1854-1862 box 233 folder 12  Privateering, 1854-1862 box 234 folder 1  Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864 box 234 folder 2  Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891 box 234 folder 2  Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891 box 234 folder 3  Public Health, 1880-1914 box 234 folder 4  Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865 box 234 folder 5  Railroads, 1838-1868 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 7	1847-1894	box 232	folder 11
Building, 1902-1912 box 232 folder 13 Bronze Building Plaque, 1910-1911 box 232 folder 14 By-Laws, 1843 box 232 folder 15 Meeting Rooms, 1855 box 232 folder 16 Member Resignations, 1863-1870 (2 Folders), box 233 folder 1-2 Monthly Meetings, 1849-1856 box 233 folder 3 Membership Concerns, 1855-1914 box 233 folder 4  Officer Acceptances and Resignations, 1839-1915 box 233 folder 5 Special Meeting Requests, 1838-1914 (3 Folders), box 233 folder 6-8 1838-1914 New York Produce Exchange, 1879 box 233 folder 9 ObservatoriesNew York City, 1847-1859 box 233 folder 10 PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914 box 233 folder 11 Port of New York Commission, 1914 box 233 folder 12 Privateering, 1854-1862 box 233 folder 12 Privateering, 1854-1862 box 234 folder 1 Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864 box 234 folder 2 Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891 box 234 folder 3 Public Health, 1880-1914 box 234 folder 3 Public Health, 1880-1914 box 234 folder 4 Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865 box 234 folder 5 Railroads, 1838-1868 box 234 folder 7 Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 7 Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 8	New York Chamber of Commerce		
Bronze Building Plaque, 1910-1911 box 232 folder 14  By-Laws, 1843 box 232 folder 15  Meeting Rooms, 1855 box 232 folder 16  Member Resignations, 1863-1870 (2 Folders), 1863-1870  Monthly Meetings, 1849-1856 box 233 folder 3  Membership Concerns, 1855-1914 box 233 folder 4  Officer Acceptances and Resignations, 1839-1915 box 233 folder 5  Special Meeting Requests, 1838-1914 (3 Folders), 1838-1914  New York Produce Exchange, 1879 box 233 folder 9  ObservatoriesNew York City, 1847-1859 box 233 folder 10  PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914 box 233 folder 11  Port of New York Commission, 1914 box 233 folder 12  Privateering, 1854-1862 box 233 folder 13  Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860 box 234 folder 1  Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864 box 234 folder 2  Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891 box 234 folder 3  Public Health, 1880-1914 box 234 folder 3  Public Health, 1880-1914 box 234 folder 4  Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865 box 234 folder 5  Railroads, 1838-1868  Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 8	Administrative Records, 1837-1873	box 232	folder 12
By-Laws, 1843 box 232 folder 15  Meeting Rooms, 1855 box 232 folder 16  Member Resignations, 1863-1870 (2 Folders), 1863-1870  Monthly Meetings, 1849-1856 box 233 folder 3  Membership Concerns, 1855-1914 box 233 folder 4  Officer Acceptances and Resignations, 1839-1915 box 233 folder 5  Special Meeting Requests, 1838-1914 (3 Folders), 1838-1914  New York Produce Exchange, 1879 box 233 folder 9  ObservatoriesNew York City, 1847-1859 box 233 folder 10  PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914 box 233 folder 11  Port of New York Commission, 1914 box 233 folder 12  Privateering, 1854-1862 box 233 folder 12  Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860 box 234 folder 1  Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864 box 234 folder 2  Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891 box 234 folder 3  Public Health, 1880-1914 box 234 folder 4  Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865 box 234 folder 5  Railroads, 1838-1868 box 234 folder 6  Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 8	Building, 1902-1912	box 232	folder 13
Meeting Rooms, 1855         box 232         folder 16           Member Resignations, 1863-1870 (2 Folders), 1863-1870         box 233         folder 1-2           Monthly Meetings, 1849-1856         box 233         folder 3           Membership Concerns, 1855-1914         box 233         folder 4           Officer Acceptances and Resignations, 1839-1915         box 233         folder 5           Special Meeting Requests, 1838-1914 (3 Folders), 1838-1914         box 233         folder 6-8           New York Produce Exchange, 1879         box 233         folder 9           ObservatoriesNew York City, 1847-1859         box 233         folder 10           PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914         box 233         folder 12           Privateering, 1854-1862         box 233         folder 12           Privateering, 1854-1862         box 233         folder 13           Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860         box 234         folder 1           Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864         box 234         folder 2           Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891         box 234         folder 3           Public Health, 1880-1914         box 234         folder 5           Railroads, 1838-1868         box 234         folder 5           Railroads, 1838-1868         box 234	Bronze Building Plaque, 1910-1911	box 232	folder 14
Member Resignations, 1863-1870 (2 Folders), 1863-1870         box 233         folder 1-2           Monthly Meetings, 1849-1856         box 233         folder 3           Membership Concerns, 1855-1914         box 233         folder 4           Officer Acceptances and Resignations, 1839-1915         box 233         folder 5           Special Meeting Requests, 1838-1914 (3 Folders), 1838-1914         box 233         folder 6-8           New York Produce Exchange, 1879         box 233         folder 9           ObservatoriesNew York City, 1847-1859         box 233         folder 10           PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914         box 233         folder 11           Port of New York Commission, 1914         box 233         folder 12           Privateering, 1854-1862         box 233         folder 13           Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860         box 234         folder 1           Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864         box 234         folder 2           Public Health, 1880-1914         box 234         folder 3           Public Health, 1880-1914         box 234         folder 5           Railroads, 1838-1868         box 234         folder 5           Railroads, 1838-1868         box 234         folder 6           Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894         b	By-Laws, 1843	box 232	folder 15
Monthly Meetings, 1849-1856 box 233 folder 3  Membership Concerns, 1855-1914 box 233 folder 4  Officer Acceptances and Resignations, 1839-1915 box 233 folder 5  Special Meeting Requests, 1838-1914 (3 Folders), 1838-1914  New York Produce Exchange, 1879 box 233 folder 9  ObservatoriesNew York City, 1847-1859 box 233 folder 10  PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914 box 233 folder 11  Port of New York Commission, 1914 box 233 folder 12  Privateering, 1854-1862 box 233 folder 13  Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860 box 234 folder 1  Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864 box 234 folder 2  Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891 box 234 folder 3  Public Health, 1880-1914 box 234 folder 4  Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865 box 234 folder 5  Railroads, 1838-1868 box 234 folder 6  Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 8	Meeting Rooms, 1855	box 232	folder 16
Membership Concerns, 1855-1914         box 233         folder 4           Officer Acceptances and Resignations, 1839-1915         box 233         folder 5           Special Meeting Requests, 1838-1914 (3 Folders), 1838-1914         box 233         folder 6-8           New York Produce Exchange, 1879         box 233         folder 9           ObservatoriesNew York City, 1847-1859         box 233         folder 10           PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914         box 233         folder 11           Port of New York Commission, 1914         box 233         folder 12           Privateering, 1854-1862         box 233         folder 13           Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860         box 234         folder 1           Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864         box 234         folder 2           Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891         box 234         folder 3           Public Health, 1880-1914         box 234         folder 4           Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865         box 234         folder 5           Railroads, 1838-1868         box 234         folder 6           Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894         box 234         folder 7           Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855         box 234         folder 8		box 233	folder 1-2
Officer Acceptances and Resignations, 1839-1915 box 233 folder 5  Special Meeting Requests, 1838-1914 (3 Folders), 1838-1914  New York Produce Exchange, 1879 box 233 folder 9  ObservatoriesNew York City, 1847-1859 box 233 folder 10  PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914 box 233 folder 11  Port of New York Commission, 1914 box 233 folder 12  Privateering, 1854-1862 box 233 folder 13  Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860 box 234 folder 1  Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864 box 234 folder 2  Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891 box 234 folder 3  Public Health, 1880-1914 box 234 folder 4  Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865 box 234 folder 5  Railroads, 1838-1868 box 234 folder 6  Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 8	Monthly Meetings, 1849-1856	box 233	folder 3
Special Meeting Requests, 1838-1914 (3 Folders), 1838-1914       box 233       folder 6-8         New York Produce Exchange, 1879       box 233       folder 9         ObservatoriesNew York City, 1847-1859       box 233       folder 10         PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914       box 233       folder 11         Port of New York Commission, 1914       box 233       folder 12         Privateering, 1854-1862       box 233       folder 13         Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860       box 234       folder 1         Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864       box 234       folder 2         Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891       box 234       folder 3         Public Health, 1880-1914       box 234       folder 4         Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865       box 234       folder 5         Railroads, 1838-1868       box 234       folder 6         Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894       box 234       folder 7         Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855       box 234       folder 8	Membership Concerns, 1855-1914	box 233	folder 4
1838-1914         New York Produce Exchange, 1879       box 233       folder 9         ObservatoriesNew York City, 1847-1859       box 233       folder 10         PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914       box 233       folder 11         Port of New York Commission, 1914       box 233       folder 12         Privateering, 1854-1862       box 233       folder 13         Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860       box 234       folder 1         Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864       box 234       folder 2         Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891       box 234       folder 3         Public Health, 1880-1914       box 234       folder 4         Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865       box 234       folder 5         Railroads, 1838-1868       box 234       folder 6         Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894       box 234       folder 7         Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855       box 234       folder 8	Officer Acceptances and Resignations, 1839-1915	box 233	folder 5
ObservatoriesNew York City, 1847-1859 box 233 folder 10  PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914 box 233 folder 11  Port of New York Commission, 1914 box 233 folder 12  Privateering, 1854-1862 box 233 folder 13  Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860 box 234 folder 1  Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864 box 234 folder 2  Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891 box 234 folder 3  Public Health, 1880-1914 box 234 folder 4  Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865 box 234 folder 5  Railroads, 1838-1868 box 234 folder 6  Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 8		box 233	folder 6-8
PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914 box 233 folder 11  Port of New York Commission, 1914 box 233 folder 12  Privateering, 1854-1862 box 233 folder 13  Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860 box 234 folder 1  Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864 box 234 folder 2  Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891 box 234 folder 3  Public Health, 1880-1914 box 234 folder 4  Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865 box 234 folder 5  Railroads, 1838-1868 box 234 folder 6  Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 8	New York Produce Exchange, 1879	box 233	folder 9
Port of New York Commission, 1914 box 233 folder 12  Privateering, 1854-1862 box 233 folder 13  Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860 box 234 folder 1  Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864 box 234 folder 2  Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891 box 234 folder 3  Public Health, 1880-1914 box 234 folder 4  Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865 box 234 folder 5  Railroads, 1838-1868 box 234 folder 6  Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 8	ObservatoriesNew York City, 1847-1859	box 233	folder 10
Privateering, 1854-1862 box 233 folder 13  Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860 box 234 folder 1  Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864 box 234 folder 2  Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891 box 234 folder 3  Public Health, 1880-1914 box 234 folder 4  Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865 box 234 folder 5  Railroads, 1838-1868 box 234 folder 6  Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 8	PoliceNew York State, 1872-1914	box 233	folder 11
Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860 box 234 folder 1  Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864 box 234 folder 2  Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891 box 234 folder 3  Public Health, 1880-1914 box 234 folder 4  Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865 box 234 folder 5  Railroads, 1838-1868 box 234 folder 6  Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 8	Port of New York Commission, 1914	box 233	folder 12
Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864       box 234       folder 2         Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891       box 234       folder 3         Public Health, 1880-1914       box 234       folder 4         Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865       box 234       folder 5         Railroads, 1838-1868       box 234       folder 6         Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894       box 234       folder 7         Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855       box 234       folder 8	Privateering, 1854-1862	box 233	folder 13
Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891       box 234       folder 3         Public Health, 1880-1914       box 234       folder 4         Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865       box 234       folder 5         Railroads, 1838-1868       box 234       folder 6         Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894       box 234       folder 7         Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855       box 234       folder 8	Protection of Property During War Time, 1859-1860	box 234	folder 1
Public Health, 1880-1914 box 234 folder 4  Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865 box 234 folder 5  Railroads, 1838-1868 box 234 folder 6  Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 8	Public DebtNew York State, 1863-1864	box 234	folder 2
Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865 box 234 folder 5 Railroads, 1838-1868 box 234 folder 6 Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894 box 234 folder 7 Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 8	Public DebtUnited States, 1890-1891	box 234	folder 3
Railroads, 1838-1868 box 234 folder 6  Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 8	Public Health, 1880-1914	box 234	folder 4
Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894 box 234 folder 7  Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 8	Quarantine StationNew York City, 1835-1865	box 234	folder 5
Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855 box 234 folder 8	Railroads, 1838-1868	box 234	folder 6
<u> </u>	Rapid TransitNew York City, 1888-1894	box 234	folder 7
Relief CommitteeJohnstown, 1889 box 234 folder 9	Recovery Efforts After Fire of 1835 1855, 1835, 1855	box 234	folder 8
	Relief CommitteeJohnstown, 1889	box 234	folder 9

Relief Fund		
Russia, 1892	box 234	folder 10
San Francisco, 1908	box 234	folder 11
Resumption of Specie Payments, 1869-1873	box 234	folder 12
Revenue Laws, 1854-1874	box 234	folder 13
Revenue Steam-Cutter Service, 1839-1891	box 234	folder 14
Sailors Hotels and Boarding Houses-Licensing, 1864-1894	box 234	folder 15
Salt Manufacture, 1853	box 234	folder 16
SanitationNew York City, circa, 1900s	box 234	folder 17
Seamens' Retreat-Hospital Tax, 1845	box 234	folder 18
ShippingUnited States, 1827-1897	box 234	folder 19
Shipwrecks, 1868-1872	box 234	folder 20
Shipwrecks-Prevention, 1846-1867	box 234	folder 21
Sounding Tubes, 1833-1856	box 234	folder 22
Southern Trade Regulations, 1864-1867	box 234	folder 23
Statue of Liberty, 1886	box 234	folder 24
Street ConditionsNew York City, 1868-1920	box 234	folder 25
Sugar, 1879-1881	box 234	folder 26
Taxation, 1864-1915	box 234	folder 27
Tariffs, 1864-1979	box 234	folder 28
Texas, 1843-1901	box 234	folder 29
Tobacco, 1868-1881	box 235	folder 1
Topographical Survey of the State of New York, 1892	box 235	folder 2
Treasury Department, 18[46]	box 235	folder 3
Treaties, 1847-1911	box 235	folder 4
Union Defense Committee, 1886	box 235	folder 5
United States MintNew York City, 1843-1854	box 235	folder 6
United States Navy, 1856-1882	box 235	folder 7
United States Post OfficeNew York City, 1836-1871	box 235	folder 8
United States Postal Service, 1839-1910	box 235	folder 9
Usury Laws, 1837-1867	box 235	folder 10
Venezuela, 1863-1896	box 235	folder 11

Warden's Office in the Port of New York, 1852-1857	box 235	folder 12
Warehousing, 1838-1872	box 235	folder 13
Waring Trust-Columbia University, 1899	box 235	folder 14
Washington Monument, 1880-1887	box 235	folder 15
Water Supply, 1905	box 235	folder 16
Weather Data, 1868	box 235	folder 17
Webb Academy, 1889	box 235	folder 18
Weights and Measures		
1838-1843	box 235	folder 19
1839-1858	box 235	folder 20
West Side Improvement, 1915	box 235	folder 21
Wool, 1865	box 235	folder 22
Worlds' Fair, 1892-1893	box 235	folder 23

<sup>^</sup> Return to Table of Contents

### Series VIII: Member Meeting Minutes, 1768-1973

#### **Scope and Contents**

The minutes contained in this series, which date back to the Chamber's founding in 1768, offer an intimate look at the key functions of the organization and its involvement in New York City and State business and development throughout the 19th and 20th centuries. These meetings centered on issues that were of significance to local and national commerce, pinpointing how current events would affect business practices. Members used these gatherings as a time to draw attention to their concerns and establish a collective position among the Chamber constituency. Prominent guests were a regular part of each meeting and included state and local politicians, foreign dignitaries, and national luminaries--Herbert Hoover, John D. Rockefeller III, and Frank Lloyd Wright are among several of the iconic figures invited to address the Chamber's monthly meetings over the years. Minutes run continuously from 1768 to 1933 and are documented in oversize bound volumes. Subsequent years are inconsistently represented and are recorded as typescript; minutes from the 1940s are lacking entirely. Administrative documentation and candid photographs for several 20th century guest speakers can be found respectively in Series I: Administration and Series X: Photographs.

Title/Description	Instances
1768-1818 (bound volume), 1768-1818	box 394
1818-1835 (bound volume), 1818-1835	box 395
1836-1846 (bound volume), 1836-1846	box 396
1847-1858 (bound volume), 1847-1858	box 397
1858-1868 (bound volume), 1858-1868	box 398
1868-1874 (bound volume), 1868-1874	box 399

1875-1880 (bound volume), 1875-1880	box 400	
1880-1886 (bound volume), 1880-1886	box 401	
1886-1892 (bound volume), 1886-1892	box 402	
1892-1898 (bound volume), 1892-1898	box 403	
1899-1906 (bound volume), 1899-1906	box 404	
1906-1912 (bound volume), 1906-1912	box 405	
1912-1917 (bound volume), 1912-1917	box 406	
1918-1921 (bound volume), 1918-1921	box 407	
1921-1923 (bound volume), 1921-1923	box 408	
1923-1925 (bound volume), 1923-1925	box 409	
1925-1928 (bound volume), 1925-1928	box 410	
1928-1933 (bound volume), 1928-1933	box 411	
1959	box 205	folder 1
1960	box 205	folder 2-3
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1961	box 205	folder 4
1963	box 205	folder 5
1964	box 206	folder 1-2
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1965	box 206	folder 3
1967	box 206	folder 4-5
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1968	box 335	folder 1
1969	box 335	folder 2-3
Dhariaal Darawintians (O.Faldana)		
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1970	box 335	folder 4-5
•	box 335	folder 4-5
1970	box 335	folder 4-5 folder 6
1970 Physical Description: (2 Folders)		

<sup>^</sup> Return to Table of Contents

# Series IX: Printed Materials, 1774-1977

#### **Scope and Contents**

The printed materials of Series IX encompass a diverse assortment of small pamphlets, leaflets, and booklets intended primarily for limited circulation among a targeted audience. Committee reports, tributes to members, and annual compilations of national chambers of commerce are examples of some of the items found here. A significant portion of Series IX is devoted to a selection of pamphlet publications which have been bound in volumes according to date of issuance. Each volume contains pamphlets on an assortment of topics such as currency, commercial law, defense, and quarantine laws; fold out maps often serve as illustration. Printed materials are organized according to their subject matter or title. For the Chamber of Commerce's more formal publications that were intended for wider distribution, researchers should consult the New York Chamber of Commerce and Industry Publications collection.

Title/Description	Instances	
Pamphlets		
Catalogue of Portraits, 1924-1941	box 337	folder 2
Chambers of Commerce of the World, 1928	box 337	folder 3
Charter, By-Laws and List of Members, 1951-1962	box 337	folder 4
Commercial Interests		
International, 1928-1962	box 337	folder 5
New York City, 1916-1977	box 337	folder 6
United States, 1866-1965	box 337	folder 7
Laws of New York from the Year 1691 to 1773 inclusive, 1774, 1691, 1773, 1774	box 371	folder 1
Legislative Directory, 1953-1968	box 337	folder 8
List of Chambers of Commerce in the United States		
1920-1939	box 337	folder 9
1940-1949	box 338	folder 1
1950-1959	box 338	folder 2
1960-1969	box 338	folder 3
Memorial		
Bliss, Cornelius Newton, 1911	box 338	folder 4
Morgan, John Pierpont, 1913	box 338	folder 5
Orr, Alexander E., 1914	box 338	folder 6
Smith, Charles Stewart, 1909	box 338	folder 7
New York Chamber of Commerce Organization		
Circa, 1913-1945	box 338	folder 8

1956-1970	box 338	folder 9
New York City Promotional Material, 1927-1966	box 338	folder 10
New York State, 1875-1955	box 339	folder 1
Pamphlet Publications		
1865	box 352	
1866	box 467	
1867-1870	box 361	
1871-1872	box 348	
1873	box 365	
1876-1877	box 468	
1878-1880	box 466	
1881	box 363	
1881-1883	box 369	
1884	box 469	
1885-1886	box 470	
1887-1888	box 471	
1889-1890	box 472	
1891	box 473	
1892	box 474	
1893-1894	box 475	
1895-1897	box 356	
1898-1900	box 354	
1901-1902	box 357	
1903	box 355	
1904	box 351	
1905	box 349	
1906	box 353	
Reports		
1855-1858	box 350	
1855-1859	box 367	

Proceedings on the Presentation of a Gold Medal by the Chamber of Commerce of the State of New York to the Honorable Abram S. Hewitt,, 1901	box 347	
Reports Prepared by the Membership, 1926-1947	box 339	folder 3
Tributes		
Cleveland, Grover, 1908	box 339	folder 4
Queen Victoria, 1901	box 339	folder 5
Rockefeller, John D., 1950	box 339	folder 6
Simmons, Joseph Edward, 1910	box 339	folder 7
Wilson, George, 1908	box 339	folder 8

<sup>^</sup> Return to Table of Contents

# Series X: Photographs, 1860-1980

# **Scope and Contents**

The final series in this collection is comprised largely of photographic prints, though a few photographic slides and glass plate slides are present. A significant portion of these items lack any identifying information and several are undated. Photographs are arranged alphabetically according to subject; a few are oversized. Of particular note are photographs from the Chamber's annual banquet, candid shots of guest speakers at the organization's monthly meetings, and portraits of Chamber members throughout the years.

Title/Description	Instances	
200th Anniversary		
General, 1968	box 343	folder 1-2
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
Booklet, 1968	box 343	folder 3
Annual Banquet		
1929	box 343	folder 4
1948	box 343	folder 5
1949	box 343	folder 6
1950	box 343	folder 7
Arbitration Award, 1942	box 343	folder 8
Ceremony for Designation as a National Historic Landmark, 1980	box 343	folder 9
Chamber of Commerce Buildings, undated	box 343	folder 10
Chamber of Commerce Buildings, undated	box 346	folder 1

"Chamber of Commerce" Week, undated	box 343	folder 11
"Come Back" Pictures, undated	box 343	folder 12
Committee on School Sanitation and EquipmentBuilding Repairs, 1919-1920	box 343	folder 13
Essay Contest Winners, undated	box 343	folder 14
Essay Contest Winners, 1945-1962	box 343	folder 15
Gallery Portraits, undated	box 343	folder 16
Group Portraits and Candid Photographs		
Undated	box 346	folder 2
Undated	box 343	folder 17
1860	box 343	folder 18
1921-1950	box 346	folder 3
1922	box 343	folder 19
1930-1939	box 343	folder 20
1940-1947	box 343	folder 21
1951-1959	box 343	folder 22
1967	box 343	folder 23
The Hundred Year Association		
General, undated	box 344	folder 1
General, 1957-1976	box 344	folder 2
General, 1968-1975	box 344	folder 3
Annual Dinner, 1959	box 344	folder 4
Annual Dinner, 1961	box 344	folder 5
Inventory, undated	box 344	folder 6
Members and Guests		
Undated	box 344	folder 7-8
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1930-1939	box 344	folder 9
1940-1949	box 344	folder 10
1950-1959	box 344	folder 11-12
Physical Description: (2 Folders)		
1960-1969	box 345	folder 1
1970-1979	box 345	folder 2

New York City, undated	box 345	folder 3
New York Port Promotion Association, 1960-1962	box 345	folder 4
New York Yankees Reception, 1967-1971	box 345	folder 5
Paperwork Management Exhibit, 1954	box 345	folder 6
Plans for Grant's Tomb, undated	box 345	folder 7
Portraits		
Undated	box 346	folder 4
Undated	box 345	folder 8-10
Physical Description: (3 Folders)		
1865-1896	box 345	folder 11
1941-1949	box 345	folder 12
1951-1956	box 345	folder 13
1960-1961	box 345	folder 14
1970-1972	box 345	folder 15
World Trade Forum, undated	box 345	folder 16
SlidesStaff Members, circa, 1960s	box 345	folder 17
Glass Plate Slides		
Edison, ThomasChamber of Commerce Portrait, undated	box 376	
TabletCity Hall Subway Station, undated	box 376	

<sup>^</sup> Return to Table of Contents